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Welcome to  
Enterprise Inns plc
We are the largest pub company 
in the UK, owning around 4,900 
properties, predominantly run as 
leased and tenanted pubs. We aim to 
partner with those who are passionate 
about pubs, by granting leases and 
tenancies to the best publicans, and 
recruiting high quality, entrepreneurial 
managers for our managed pubs, as 
well as collaborating with experienced  
experts in the pub industry.
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Investment case
In May 2015, Enterprise announced a new long-term strategy 
that embraces different operating models for our pubs to allow 
the Group to respond to changing markets, consumer needs and 
regulation and to best serve our publicans, employees and the 
communities in which they are based.

Our strategy is designed to deliver significant value to shareholders 
by optimising the returns from each asset within our property 
portfolio.

The key components of our investment case are:

•	 Leading operator of leased and tenanted pubs in the UK with 
growing managed pubs and commercial property division

•	 Highly cash generative, largely freehold asset-backed business

•	 Clear strategy to deliver value for shareholders by optimising the 
value of assets in our portfolio

•	 Secure capital structure comprising equity and primarily fixed rate 
long-term debt

•	 Experienced leadership team with a track record of delivering net 
income growth in the leased and tenanted business
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Chairman’s  
statement

Introduction
I am pleased to present our Annual 
Report and Accounts for the year 
ended 30 September 2016, a year in 
which we have made strong progress 
in building a more valuable Enterprise 
Inns. The business is performing well 
with continued growth momentum 
and strategic evolution on track, 
providing a clear path to maximising 
shareholder value through the 
optimisation of returns from every 
one of our 4,920 properties.

Market and strategy
The market in which the Group 
operates is routinely subject to 
regulatory and legislative scrutiny and 
during the year the Government’s 
response to the Pubs Code and Pubs 
Code Adjudicator consultation was 
published, resulting in a new statutory 
code which became effective on 
21 July 2016. We are pleased that 
the uncertainty created during the 
wait for its implementation has now 
ended and believe that our strategic 
plans represent the most appropriate 
response to this change in regulatory 
environment.

We are evolving from a predominantly 
leased and tenanted operation to a 
portfolio of businesses which operate 
a variety of models and trading styles, 
providing the flexibility to optimise the 
returns from every asset. These take 
the form of publican partnerships, 
commercial properties, managed 
operations and managed investments. 

We are on track with our conversions 
to these various operating models. 
We have 273 properties trading as 
commercial properties and more 
than 100 pubs within our managed 
business. 

Performance  
and dividends
The Group delivered EBITDA before 
exceptional items of £292 million, 
resulting in a profit before tax and 
exceptional items for the 2016 year of 
£122 million and an adjusted earnings 
per share (EPS) of 19.6p, 0.2p up on 
the previous year.

Publican Partnerships (our leased and 
tenanted estate) continues to achieve 
positive like-for-like net income growth 
for each quarter and an increase of 
2.1% for the full year. We have now 
achieved 13 successive quarters 
of like-for-like growth. Commercial 
Properties like-for-like net income 
has increased by 3.8%. These strong 
results have generated free cash flow, 
which has been used to reinvest in 
the business to drive future growth 
and reduced leverage. In addition, and 
while the Board continues to believe 
that the resumption of dividend 
payments is not appropriate, we 
took the opportunity to create value 
by returning funds to shareholders, 
through the share buyback 
programme launched in March 2016. 
The Board has committed to return 
£25 million to shareholders, and at the 
date of this report £13 million has so 
far been returned from the 14 million 
shares bought back.

People
I would like to acknowledge  
and say thank you on behalf of 
the Board for the hard work and 
dedication that our colleagues 
and publicans have demonstrated 
throughout the year. It has been a 
year of incredible change, as our new 
strategy has significant ramifications 
across the Group. Our colleagues 
have responded with renewed energy 
and commitment. The fact that 
Enterprise can deliver such strong 
results throughout this period is a real 
testament to our people.

Outlook
Whilst the legislation is now certain, 
its impact on our business is not yet 
clear; however, with the work done 
over the last few years, the Group 
is in the best position to be able 
to respond to the challenges and 
opportunities, as they arise. Although 
mindful of the potential consequences 
of Brexit, we have seen no discernible 
impact to date on consumer spending 
and no consequential impact on our 
trading performance.

R M Walker 
Chairman
14 November 2016

Robert Walker
Chairman
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Enterprise Inns plc
Provides oversight and direction

4,470 
pubs

273  
pubs

Our vision: to be recognised as the most innovative, 
progressive, value-creating portfolio manager of pubs 
and properties in the UK.

2 www.enterpriseinnsplc.com
Stock code: ETI

At a glance

To work in partnership with our 
publicans to develop great  

pub businesses

To maximise the value of Group 
assets using our commercial 

property expertise

Group finance and commercial services
To partner with, and support, our businesses to enable the  

Group to achieve its purposes 

LFL 
growth

 2.1%

44%

Pub C-Stores Other

2%
8%

90%

44%

47%

26%

20%

7%

Neighbourhood

Urban

Rural

Destination

LFL 
growth

 3.8%
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To identify talented operators 
and enable them to create 

exceptionally successful businesses 
that deliver strong financial returns

THE CRAFT UNION  
PUB COMPANY

To put quality pubs back 
in the heart of local 

communities, standing 
shoulder to shoulder with 

our operators

71 pubs

BERMONDSEY  
PUB COMPANY

To create individual pubs 
with an unbeatable 
sense of belonging 

28 pubs
5

8  
pubs 

  expert  
partners
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Pub beer/cider volumes (%) UK eating out and 
drinking out growth
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Our market

The Group operates in the highly 
dynamic UK out-of-home eating and 
drinking market, a market of large 
scale and wide reach: the value of 
out-of-home eating and drinking is 
in excess of £75 billion1 and 85% 
of consumers claim to visit pub 
restaurants to eat and drink out. 
Notably, more people visit pub 
restaurants than any other eating out 
channel2 with the sector well placed 
to capture lower-spend casual dining 
occasions.

The market is increasingly fluid, as 
historic conventions between in-
home and out-of-home consumption 
blur. Supermarkets are extending 
their in-store offer into hospitality, 
food delivery services are rapidly 
expanding in the major conurbations, 
the ‘on-the-go’ food sector is growing 
as out-of-home breakfast sales 
increase, and ‘pop-up’ street-food 
providers and event spaces are adding 
further diversity and innovation into 
this already complex market. 

Long-term growth in the out-of-home 
food and drink market is aligned 
to consumers’ desire to add more 
leisure activity into their available 
time, and is an embedded trend going 
back several decades, interrupted only 
by periods of economic uncertainty. 
Whilst the Brexit referendum result 
earlier this year may affect consumer 
and business confidence in the 
short-term, eating out has escaped 
the slowdown in consumer spending 
during the last recession and has 
achieved strong growth in the past 
few years.

Around 40%1 of food and drink 
spending in the UK now takes place 
out-of-home. However, the underlying 
long-term trend for food spending 
to move out-of-home, where the UK 
is emulating the USA market, is in 
contrast to the UK beer sector. This 
was historically dominated by the 
on-premise channel, but just over half3 
of market volume is now sold through 
the off trade, a trend that has been 
encouraged by long-term movements 
in relative price.

These structural shifts are reflected 
in the changing pub market. The 
number of pubs in the UK has fallen 
from 59,000 to just over 52,000 since 
the end of 2010, with the leased and 
tenanted sector in which the Group 
predominantly operates reducing 
by the most. However, leased and 
tenanted pubs still account for over 
40% of the UK pub population4 
and it is progressively focusing on 
fewer better sites, with average-
per-pub drinks sales growing by 3% 
in the year to June 20165. At the 
same time the sector is developing 
trading models and formats that give 
operating companies more control 
over the pub proposition, including the 
evolution of managed operations.

The consequence of rationalisation 
is that standards are improving, and 
with over £7 billion of pub industry 
turnover now derived from food, 
the pub sector is aligning more 
closely with contemporary consumer 
aspirations. Pubs are well suited to 
an increasingly informal out-of-home 
eating market, but they are also 

Q4
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Q2
2013

Q1
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Q4
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Q3
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Q2
2014

Q1
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Q4
2014

Q3
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Source: ONS, Datastream, Numis Securities Research
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widening their consumer appeal, 
particularly addressing the potential 
of trade in the mornings, with more 
sophisticated breakfast, brunch and 
coffee propositions.

On-premise retailers are also adapting 
to rising consumer expectations, 
moving their proposition in a 
more aspirational direction. This 
is manifested in product category 
trends, with a move towards more 
premium products. Whilst volume 
sales in the out-of-home drink market 
are flat, overall sales have grown by 
3%, driven by strong performance 
from premium categories, exemplified 
by double digit market volume growth 
for premium and super-premium 
spirits, and over 40%5 volume growth 
for craft beer. We believe this broad 
and long-running trend towards 
premiumisation will continue.

The Group’s estate strategy 
acknowledges these market 
dynamics. In particular we are 

developing the capability to operate a 
significant managed house business, 
with over 100 pubs already trading, 
and a plan in place for around 800 
by 2020. This includes an expanding 
series of innovative partnerships with 
selected managed house ’expert’ 
operators, to develop opportunities in 
high quality sites in our estate. 

In this leaner, fitter pub market, 
industry sales are expected to 
grow to around £21.5bn2 in 2016, an 
increase of 1% on 2015, with modest 
sales increases also forecast for the 
near-term future. 

Regulation and 
legislation
The market in which the Group 
operates is routinely subject to 
regulatory and legislative scrutiny, 
and over the past decade, the pub 
sector has been affected by a number 
of important changes, on top of the 
Government’s fiscal adjustments to 
the alcohol duty regime. 

Among the more significant examples 
of recent legislative actions are:

•	 the National Living Wage, which 
disproportionately affects the 
hospitality sector;

•	 the proposed ‘sugar tax’ which will 
be applied to certain types of soft 
drinks; and 

•	 the Pubs Code, and the 
appointment of an independent 
Adjudicator to enforce the Code.

The advent of the Pubs Code brings 
significant specific changes to the 
leased and tenanted pub sector and 
these are discussed in more detail in 
the Chief Executive’s review.

1 ONS Consumer Trends Q1 2016.
2 MCA, The Pub Market report, 2016.
3 BBPA Beer Barometer report.
4  CGA Strategy, Outlet Index on trade universe 

database, June 2016.
5 CGA Strategy, OPM to mid-June 2016.
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Enterprise Inns was created in 1991 as a leased and 
tenanted pub operator. The business model has since 
evolved to ensure that we can optimise returns from 
each of our assets.

6 www.enterpriseinnsplc.com
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Our business model
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The Group enhances value by ensuring the right offer is available in each of its 
assets, supported by the best people under the most appropriate operating 
model. Under-pinning our model, and critical to its success, is a broad range of 
support functions. The Group’s success towards its business model is measured 
by its business performance KPIs.

ASSETS
We have c.4,900 
properties geographically 
spread in England and 
Wales.

Value drivers:
•	 93% freehold

•	 High quality estate

•	 Returns based 
capital investment 
programme

•	 Sustainable and secure 
capital structure that 
facilitates the delivery 
of our operational 
strategy.

OFFER
We have a ‘plan for every pub’.

Each of our properties is matched to its optimum retail 
proposition taking into consideration food and drink mix in 
the value, mid-market and premium markets. 

Value drivers:
Identify the optimum retail position to enable  
maximisation of returns from each property.

PEOPLE
We partner with those who are passionate about pubs, by 
granting leases and tenancies to the best publicans, and 
recruiting high quality, entrepreneurial managers for our 
managed pubs, as well as collaborating with experienced 
experts in the pub industry.  

Value drivers:
Working with committed and dedicated people 
builds valuable businesses.

VISION
To be recognised as the most innovative, progressive, value creating  

portfolio manager of pubs and properties in the UK.

OPERATING  
MODEL
We have operational 
flexibility through various 
trading models to facilitate 
the optimum offer identified.

•	 Publican Partnerships 

•	 Commercial Properties

•	 Craft Union  
Pub Company

•	 Bermondsey  
Pub Company

•	 Managed Investments

Value drivers:
Provides the optionality with 
which to optimise returns 
and unlock the embedded 
value.

Enabling the vision

Read more about our 
balance sheet in the 
financial review on page 23

Read more about our publicans and employees 
in corporate social responsibility on page 26

Read more about our 
strategy on page 8

Read more about our 
operating business units 
on page 10

7Enterprise Inns plc Annual Report and Accounts 
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For further information please see our  
KPIs on pages 20 and 21
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Our strategy
Our key strategic objective is to optimise value creation  
for every asset in our portfolio. 
To achieve this we have developed a broader mix of operating 
models, employing our four stage process to optimise the use of 
every asset and underpin value creation.

Using our segmentation 
tool, understand the retail 
potential of each of our 
property assets.

Take the recommendations 
from the segmentation tool 
and match each asset to 
the most suitable retail offer.

Manage the transition 
of assets to their final 
destination, in order to 
generate the greatest 
returns.

Through the asset optimisation 
process using returns-based 
assessment, select the best 
operating model to support 
delivery of the chosen retail 
proposition.

FY16 progress: Roll out of our segmentation 
tool to assist in identification of opportunities 
to enhance performance, and when 
recruiting, helping match the right publicans 
to the right pub.

FY16 progress: All site investment 
supports retail offers that match 
segmentation recommendations. 

FY16 progress: This year we opened 
over 70 managed houses and 
significantly increased our commercial 
properties estate. We are on track to 
achieve our vision for 2020.

FY16 progress: The Asset 
Optimisation Panel approves our 
asset conversions, taking into account 
required return thresholds for each 
operating model. In 2016, over 850 
sites passed through the Panel.

ANALYSE 
1

MATCH  
2

EXECUTE  
4

EVALUATE 
3

Read more about our capital allocation framework in the  
Chief Executive’s review on page 17

Where an asset is deemed to generate the most value to the Group through disposal, 
this is considered. Free cash flow generated by disposals is put through the capital 
allocation framework to determine the highest return. 

Enterprise Inns - AR2016 - Strategic-cs6.indd   8 07/12/2016   14:20:46
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As we follow a disciplined path of change and manage transition events over time, 
we are evolving from the established predominantly leased and tenanted business 
into this portfolio of businesses. We are making good progress, building operational 
capabilities and back office infrastructure whilst strengthening our capital structure.

A reinvigorated 
leased and tenanted 
business:

•	 smaller, higher quality estate

•	 like-for-like net income growth

•	 continually evolving to  
attract the best publicans  
(new Partnership Tenancy  
Plus agreement)

•	 ready for MRO and  
mitigating risk

More commercial 
properties:

•	 high quality estate

•	 good operators with strong 
covenant strength

•	 significant growth and  
REIT potential

•	 unlocking latent property value

Expanded  
managed pubs:

•	 control over retail execution

•	 clarity over return  
on investment

•	 profitable models address 
distinct segments

•	 applying learnings to improve 
returns across entire estate

VISION
To be recognised as the most innovative, progressive, value creating  

portfolio manager of pubs and properties in the UK.

Three discrete segments have been created in order to facilitate the  
execution of asset optimisation. They are set independent targets and objectives  

to ensure complete accountability and focus on results delivery.

Read more about our strategic KPIs on pages 20 to 21

Which we will measure using our strategic KPIs:

Number of 
properties in 

each business 
unit

Capital 
allocation

Investment  
and disposal

Colleague  
engagement 

index
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Our strategy
Operating business units
To be truly successful we must be confident about the strengths 
and capabilities of our operating models. 

They have been developed as best suited to optimise the range 
of retail propositions identified from the segmentation exercise, 
most of these operating models extend beyond individual retail 
propositions and some operating business units overlap creating 
competition and ultimately the optimum outcome for the Group.

Our leased and tenanted estate continues 
to be our core business and we strive to 
maintain our like-for-like net income growth by 
supporting publicans to continually grow their 
businesses. We pride ourselves on our ability 
to attract and retain new and experienced 
entrepreneurial publicans to run our pubs 
and continually reassess our offer to ensure 
that both the nature of our contractual 
agreements and the range of support we 
provide is competitive and impactful. Whilst 
we expect the size of our Publican Partnership 
estate to gradually reduce, we will endeavour 
to continually improve its quality.

The Group’s commercial property business manages 
a developing portfolio of assets which it leases to third 
parties on commercial property terms. The portfolio 
incorporates predominantly pub assets, which are 
let to tenants on a commercial free-of-tie basis and 
also assets that were previously pubs, now converted 
to an alternative use (such as a convenience store). 
Our tenants include household names as well as 
independent public house and restaurant operators.

We work alongside other business units in evaluating 
group assets, identifying opportunities to optimise 
value by bringing assets into our commercial property 
portfolio. While this will often be by granting a lease 
on a free-of-tie basis, we also add value by obtaining 
planning consents and deploying development 
capital where there is opportunity to release the 
embedded value in properties through development. 
This includes releasing value from land and buildings 
adjacent to our pub properties. We also develop 
standalone and residential sites on land that is surplus 
to pub requirements, which may then be sold. 

Enterprise Inns - AR2016 - Strategic-cs6.indd   10 07/12/2016   14:20:50
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THE CRAFT UNION PUB COMPANY

The Craft Union Pub Company aims to put quality 
pubs back in the heart of local communities. We 
want to be the pub of choice for locals to meet up 
and watch their favourite sports as we believe pubs 
play a vital role in the lives of their customers and 
we are committed to nurturing this, through working 
with outstanding operators that share our passion. 
Our pubs are generally smaller operations with 
no food offering, but have excellent audio visual 
equipment, with sports and entertainment being 
key footfall drivers. 

We have pubs in our estate where we believe there is a significant 
upside potential which has yet to be realised. We recognise that 
this is often due to the pub needing a specialist offering from an 
experienced operator in order to release the optimum value. For 
these sites, we are looking to partner with some of the best operators 
in the pub industry in order to tap into their expertise. We provide a 
good pipeline of sites, and the buying power and support of a large 
business, whilst they bring exceptional retail capability.

Our first managed investment partnership, with Rupert Clevely as 
Hippo Inns Limited, has opened six sites during the year, following 
transformational capital investment projects. Since that time, we have 
announced further partnerships, which include:

•	 Mash Inns, with Laine Pub Group

•	 Frontier Pubs, with Food & Fuel

•	 Hunky Dory Pubs, with Oakman Inns & Restaurants

•	 Marmalade Pub Co, with The Marylebone Leisure Group

BERMONDSEY PUB COMPANY

Bermondsey Pub Company is our business 
unit for operating our fully managed pubs.  We 
are dedicated to giving our customers great 
service, good food and drink, and above all, fun 
times in any of our Bermondsey pubs, and are 
passionate about the great British pub being 
at the heart of every community.  The principal 
format is our Meeting House offer, which attracts 
passing trade as well as locals through offering 
an informal and vibrant atmosphere

Enterprise Inns - AR2016 - Strategic-cs6.indd   11 07/12/2016   14:20:55
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Our strategy
The diagrams below show the indicative shape of the Group by 
2020 and the progress made toward that target. The targets are 
set in the context of the mix of retail propositions in our estate and 
linked to the operating model best suited to optimise value.

Premium

Food-ledWet-led

Value

273

4,470

71

8

28
Bermondsey

Craft Union

2016

TOTAL ESTATE
c.4,200 properties

Premium

Food-ledWet-led

Value

c.100

c.200

c.1,000

c.2,400

c.500

Bermondsey

Craft Union

2020

TOTAL TRADING ESTATE
4,850 properties

Progress towards 2020 
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Formerly a leased and tenanted pub that had closed, the 
Ye Olde George Inn is a picturesque country pub on an 
estuary, with the majority of its trade coming from tourists in 
the summer. 

Using our segmentation tool to assess the best offer and 
our asset optimisation process to assess the investment 
opportunity, we determined this to be an upper/mid-market, 
food-led pub, ideal for conversion to a Bermondsey site. This 
also gave Bermondsey a prime location presence on the 
south coast, in line with its expansion plans. 

Through some extensive renovation work, to ensure the pub 
maintained its traditional feel whilst introducing a modern 
urban twist, we made improvements to all areas of the site, 
paying particular attention to the courtyard, which sets 
the site apart from its competitors. Following a full review of 
those competitors, we opened the pub with an innovative 
pizza-led offer in partnership with Dough Ball Pizza, who 
specialise in traditional handcrafted dough, to drive speed 
of service and provide a quality food solution to customers 
with year round appeal. 

After much hard work and targeted social media activity, 
the pub was successfully opened by the local MP in July 
2016, exceeding all expectations since with a significant 
increase in weekly trade.

The new manager who was extremely keen to join the 
Bermondsey team given the exciting potential of the new 
site and the chance to help refine the Bermondsey offer, has 
worked hard building relationships with the local community 
to ensure a steady flow of regular customers through the off 
peak winter months, establishing regular events such as jazz 
evenings and quiz nights. 

Overall the Ye Olde George Inn is a great example of how 
an under-invested site can be turned into a true hub of the 
community and an excellent addition to the Bermondsey 
family.

BErMOndsEy PUB COMPAny 
yE OldE GEOrGE Inn, 
ChrIsTChUrCh 
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Chief Executive’s 
reviewFinancial highlights –

[NOT TO PRINTED IN A LIST BUT TO BE USED AS INFOGRAPHICS/PULLOUTS/CAPTIONS THROUGH THE CEO 
REVIEW AND FINANCE REVIEW]

•	 EBITDA* before exceptional items of £292 million (2015: £296 million), in line with expectations and reflecting the 
impact of planned disposals

•	 Profit before tax and exceptional items of £122 million (2015: £122 million) as interest savings from reduced debt 
offset reduction in EBITDA* 

•	 Profit after tax of £71 million (2015: £65 million loss), primarily due to lower exceptional refinancing costs and lower 
property charges arising from the annual estate valuation. This year’s estate valuation increased by 0.1% (2015: down 
2.7%) 

•	 Adjusted earnings per share# up to 19.6p (2015: 19.4p)

•	 Strong cash generation enables further net debt reduction, to £2.2 billion (2015: £2.3 billion)

•	 Smoother and extended debt maturity profile achieved through the partial refinancing of the 2018 corporate bonds, 
completed on 4 November, and a new revolving bank facility in place to 2020 

* Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation  
# Excludes exceptional items

Operational and strategic progress
•	 Publican Partnerships – our reinvigorated tied leased and tenanted business

 — Continued momentum with leased and tenanted like-for-like net income up 2.1% (2015: up 0.8%) with growth 
achieved across all geographic regions

 — Improved trading and enhanced operational support have helped to further reduce unplanned business failures, 
down 14% compared to the prior year

•	 Commercial Properties – our high quality commercial property portfolio

 — Commercial property like-for-like net income up 3.8% 

 — Rapidly expanding portfolio with 291 commercial properties at 15 November 2016 at an improved average 
annualised rental income of £62,000 (2015: £56,000)

•	 Managed Operations – our directly managed house business

 — The total number of pubs trading within our 100% owned Managed Operations business at 15 November 2016 has 
grown to 105 with 30 trading under our Bermondsey operation and 75 under our Craft Union operation

•	 Managed Investments – our innovative partnerships with expert managed house operators

 — There are 11 pubs at 15 November 2016 which are trading within our Managed Investments business unit and are 
operated through trading agreements with five managed partners

•	 Capital allocation

 — Net cash flows from operating activities increased to £269 million (2015: £265 million)

 — Net proceeds from disposals of £98 million (2015: £75 million) 

 — Total capital investment of £74 million (2015: £69 million) with 57% focused on growth driving investment initiatives 
(2015: 44%) yielding an average return on investment of 22% (2015: 19%)

 — In line with amortisation schedule, repaid £74 million (2015: £71 million) and purchased and cancelled an additional 
£10 million (2015: £nil) of Unique securitised notes 

 — Commenced a share buyback programme of up to £25 million in respect of the issued share capital of ETI, with 14 
million shares purchased to date for cancellation

Overview
We are pleased to report our full 
year results for the year ended 30 
September 2016, during which period 
we have delivered EBITDA before 
exceptional items of £292 million, 
down £4 million on the comparative 
period primarily as a result of planned 
asset disposals. Profit before taxation, 
excluding exceptional items, was 
unchanged at £122 million as lower 
interest costs, resulting from reduced 
levels of debt, have offset the decline 
in EBITDA. 

Through the execution of our strategic 
plan we have set out to improve our 
capability in retailing, developing 
our understanding and usage of 
consumer insights to help us to 
identify the most appropriate retail 
proposition for each of our assets, to 
inform our subsequent investment 
decisions and to determine the 
appropriate operating model with 
which to optimise the return from 
each asset and deliver greater 
shareholder value. This means we are 
evolving from a predominantly leased 
and tenanted operation to a portfolio 

of businesses operating a variety of 
models and trading styles. Our Group 
vision is to be recognised as the 
most innovative, progressive, value-
creating portfolio manager of pubs 
and properties in the UK. 

Enterprise Publican 
Partnerships 
Enterprise Publican Partnerships is 
the trading name for our tied leased 
and tenanted business which is the 
largest part of our Group. Whilst the 
scale of our tied leased and tenanted 
business is expected to decline over 
the coming years, as we migrate 
assets to alternative operating 
models, we are confident that the 
quality of the retained Enterprise 

Publican Partnerships estate will be 
enhanced. Such quality enhancement 
will be delivered through the disposal 
of the poorer performing sites; 
continued capital investment in tied 
tenancies to drive enhanced retail 
offers; market-leading support from 
our highly trained regional managers; 
our plans to share the knowledge 
and experience we are gaining from 
our directly managed operations with 
our tied publicans; and our ability to 
leverage scale benefits from managed 
operations which can then be shared 
with our tied publicans.

As at 30 September 2016, there 
were 4,470 pubs trading within the 
total leased and tenanted estate 
which delivered growth in like-for-like 
net income of 2.1% in the financial 
year. The improvement in trading 
performance has been achieved 
across all geographic regions within 
our estate throughout the year. 

It is particularly pleasing to see 
like-for-like net income growth being 
delivered across all regions with the 
North reporting growth for the first 
time in several years (up 1.1%). We 
have maintained our like-for-like net 
income growth in the Midlands (up 
1.7%), and delivered strong growth in 
the South (up 2.7%).

Location

No.  
of trading 

pubs at 
30 September 

2016

Net  
income

FY16
£m

% of 
total net 
income

FY16

Net 
income

FY15
£m

Net 
income 
change

FY16
%

North 1,261 89 26% 88 1.1%

Midlands 903 61 18% 60 1.7%

South 2,306 188 56% 183 2.7%

Total 4,470 338 100% 331 2.1%

Simon Townsend
Chief Executive Officer

OPERATIONAL AND 
STRATEGIC REVIEW 

£122m

PROFIT  
BEFORE TAX 

2015: £122m

£292m
EBITDA

2015: £296m

(before exceptional items)

(before exceptional items)
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We provide our tied leased and 
tenanted publicans with a broad range 
of services to help them operate 
their pubs efficiently and effectively. 
Where appropriate we also provide 
direct financial assistance to publicans. 
In the year we provided £5 million 
(2015: £6 million) of such assistance. 
As a consequence of the successful 
application of these initiatives we 
have further reduced the number of 
unplanned business failures, down 
14% in the current year compared 
to the prior year. The proactive 
intervention of our regional managers 
to identify and then avoid these 
potential business failures is a key 
driver of the consistent improvements 
achieved in our like-for-like net income. 

Following the recent regulatory 
changes and specifically the 
introduction of the Market Rent 
Only (MRO) option for publicans 
there is now a degree of uncertainty 
with regard to the level of future 
income that we might earn from 
long-term tied leases. Therefore we 
no longer offer new tied leases for 
a period of greater than five years, 
we are unlikely to invest significantly 
in existing long-term tied leases 

and we more closely scrutinise 
such agreements at the time of 
renewal or assignment to protect 
our interests. We do offer a wide 
range of tied tenancy agreements to 
prospective publicans including our 
Beacon “managed tenancy”, for the 
competitive value wet-led retail offer, 
and our new Partnership Tenancy 
Plus, which we launched in the 
second half of the financial year. 

Enterprise Commercial 
Properties 
We continue to expand our high 
quality commercial property portfolio 
operated within our Enterprise 
Commercial Properties business and 
in the financial year properties that 
traded as commercial properties 
throughout both this year and the 
prior year increased like-for-like net 
income by 3.8%. 

As at 30 September 2016 we had  
273, and at 14 November 2016 we 
have 291, commercial properties, the 
vast majority of which trade as pubs 
on a free-of-tie basis. These properties 
have an annualised rental income of 
£18.0 million (with an average rent 

of £62,000) and were valued at 30 
September 2016 at £208 million, 
resulting in a gross yield of 8.7%. 

On 7 June 2016 we sold a portfolio 
of 22 commercial properties 
which comprised of 17 pubs and 5 
convenience stores geographically 
spread across England. The disposal 
generated £20 million of net proceeds, 
representing a 9% premium to the 
prior year-end book value and a 6.7% 
yield based upon the gross rental 
income of £1.34 million. The disposal 
package is typical of the type of assets 
we are now adding to our commercial 
property portfolio and therefore 
provides an indication of the inherent 
value of the portfolio.

We expect to be operating around 
400 to 450 commercial properties 
by 30 September 2017, although, 
as demonstrated by the recent 
disposal described above, growing 
the scale of our commercial property 
portfolio in itself is not our primary 
objective, and we will constantly 
assess opportunities to crystallise and 
capture value from this estate.

Our reinvigorated tied  
leased and tenanted business

 — Continued momentum with leased and tenanted 
like-for-like net income up 2.1% (2015: up 0.8%) 
with growth achieved across all geographic regions

 — Improved trading and enhanced operational 
support have helped to further reduce unplanned 
business failures, down 14% compared to the 
prior year

like-for-like  
net income

2.1% 
Our high quality  
commercial property portfolio

 — Commercial property like-for-like net income up 3.8% 

 — Rapidly expanding portfolio with 273 commercial 
properties at an improved average annualised rental 
income of £62,000 (2015: £56,000)

273  
commercial 
properties
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Our innovative  
partnerships with expert 
managed house operators
There are 8 pubs which are trading within our 
Managed Investments business unit and are 
operated through trading agreements with five 
managed partners.

8  
pubs 

Our directly managed  
house business
The total number of pubs trading within our 
100% owned Managed Operations business 
has grown to 99 with 28 trading under our 
Bermondsey operation and 71 under our Craft 
Union operation.

99  
pubs 

16

Sept
 2017

Sept
 2018

Sept
 2019

Sept
2020

Craft Union Pub Company 170 275 375 500

Bermondsey Pub Company 50 100 150 200

Enterprise Managed Operations 220 375 525 700

Enterprise Managed Investments 30 50 75 100

Total Managed Pubs 250 425 600 800

Managed Pubs 
We are building the capability to 
operate a significant managed house 
business and we are pleased with 
the progress made to date. Greater 
operational control, complete 
transparency of all sales and cost 
lines and the use of consumer 
insights are giving us increased 
certainty over the returns achievable 
from these managed pubs.

Utilising our segmentation model 
we have identified that our existing 
pub estate provides us with a robust 
pipeline for the future expansion of 
our managed retail formats and we 
are confident that the original target, 
set in May 2015, of a managed house 
estate comprising between 750 and 
850 pubs by 2020 is deliverable.

Indicative forecast profile of pubs 
under management:

Chief Executive’s 
review

Enterprise Managed 
Operations: Craft Union  
Pub Company
Our largest managed house operation 
is the Craft Union business which 
operated 71 sites at 30 September 
2016. It operates 75 sites at 14 
November 2016 and we expect it 
to be operating around 170 sites by 
30 September 2017. This business 
predominantly operates in the north 
of England, but is beginning to 
expand south and we expect its offer 
to appeal nationally. Currently, its 
offer is wet-led with quality beers, 
at affordable prices, served in local, 
well-invested, community pubs. The 
simplicity of the offer mitigates our 
execution risk and also improves the 
efficiency of our capital investment. 

As at 14 November 2016, we had 38 
pubs operating within Craft Union 

that had traded for more than six 
months and these pubs are to-date 
generating average annualised site 
EBITDA of £92,000, from an average 
capital investment of £126,000, 
which delivers pre-tax returns of 
36%. A number of these early sites 
have delivered exceptional trading 
performance which we may not be 
able to replicate as we extend our offer 
and accelerate the rollout programme. 
We would expect our Craft Union sites 
to generate site EBITDA in the range 
of £80,000 to £100,000 on average. 
After an average capital investment in 
the region of £100,000, we expect to 
yield returns on investment in excess 
of 20%.

Enterprise Managed 
Operations: Bermondsey 
Pub Company 
As at 30 September 2016 we 
operated 28 managed pubs within 
our Bermondsey business. As at 14 
November 2016 we operated 30 pubs 
and expect to have in the region of 50 
pubs in this model by 30 September 
2017. All of these Bermondsey 
pubs operate under our successful 
“Meeting House” format, an upper 
mid-market, mixed food and drink offer.
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Capital allocation framework

Q  Are we comfortable with leverage projections?

ERR* model 15% 
IRR† pre-tax

Incremental 
investment

Return to 
shareholders

Bond  
buyback

Refinancing/
reprofiling

Bank debt 
reduction

Invest or return Leverage reduction

yEs nO

yEs nO

* Expected rate of return
† Internal rate of return
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During the year we trialled five 
Bermondsey sites operating under 
our “Friends and Family” format in 
the value-led, mixed food and drink 
segment. We found this market 
segment to be highly competitive, 
requiring significant investment 
and scale of operation in order to 
deliver adequate returns. We have 
therefore determined that this retail 
segment should not be a priority for 
our business and have subsequently 
either sold, let free-of-tie or converted 
the trial sites to an amended retail 
offer within our managed operations.

At 14 November 2016 we had 11 pubs 
operating within our Bermondsey 
business that had traded for more 
than six months and these pubs 
are to-date generating average 
annualised site EBITDA of £116,000, 
from an average capital investment 
of £187,000, which delivers pre-tax 
returns of 25%. As we enhance 
our offers within the Bermondsey 
business we would expect the 
average capital investment to be in 
the region of £200,000 with average 
site EBITDA expected to grow to be 
in the range of £125,000 to £175,000, 
which we expect to yield returns on 
investment in excess of 15%.

Enterprise Managed 
Investments 
In some retail segments, pub 
operators have to be both innovative 
and highly flexible in order to be 
able to continually adapt more 
complex retail offers to the changing 
demands of consumers. Within our 
Managed Investments business we 
have developed a partnership model 
whereby we can work with carefully 
selected managed house operators to 
share in the benefits of trading certain 
high quality establishments in such 
retail segments. 

We entered our first such partnership 
with Hippo Inns, established with 
Rupert Clevely, founder of Geronimo 
Inns, and Hippo Inns currently has 
six pubs in operation. To date we 
have established four additional 
partnerships with the creation of: 
Mash Inns, a new venture with Laine 
Pub Group; Frontier Pubs, a venture 
with Food & Fuel; Hunky Dory Pubs 
in conjunction with Oakman Inns; and 
Marmalade Pub Company, a venture 
with the Marylebone Leisure Group. 
In aggregate these partnerships 
enable us to provide a broader range 
of consumer offers across a wider 

geographic market than we might 
have achieved on our own. As at 30 
September 2016 we had eight pubs 
and as at 14 November 2016 we had 
a total of 11 pubs trading under our 
various relationships and we expect 
to grow this model in the coming year 
such that by 30 September 2017 we 
expect to be operating with around 
ten partners and trading in the region 
of 30 pubs. 

Optimising capital 
allocation to enhance 
returns
Enterprise generates significant 
cash flows from trading activities 
supplemented by disposals of 
under-performing assets. We have 
established a returns-based approach 
to the use of our future cash flows 
which seeks to continue our debt 
reduction programme and to provide 
a balance between additional value 
enhancing investment opportunities 
and more immediate returns to 
shareholders. 

Our capital allocation framework 
first seeks to ensure that all priority 
calls upon cash flows are satisfied, 
including corporation tax, interest, 
scheduled debt amortisation 
and costs associated with debt 
refinancing, followed by on-going 
investment in our business. We are 
committed to gradually reducing our 
leverage over the medium-term and, 
assuming we are on track to satisfy 
this objective, then any “excess” cash 
flow can be assessed for alternative 
use, including in particular, further 
investment in the estate or the return 
of capital to shareholders. 
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Capital investment
Capital investment is a value-
enhancing use of cash generated 
by the business and includes the 
recycling of proceeds of disposals. It is 
an important contributor to delivering 
improved like-for-like net income within 
our leased and tenanted business and 
is an essential element of the strategic 
evolution of the business as we invest 
in the conversion of pubs to our 
managed operations. 

Total capital investment in the year 
was £74 million (2015: £69 million), 
of which 57% was directed toward 
income growth opportunities 
(2015: 44%). We target Return on 
Investment (ROI) in excess of 15% 
on our growth oriented capital 
expenditure and have achieved an 
average ROI of 22% (2015: 19%) on 
schemes delivered during the  
financial year. 

Allocation of excess cash
During the year to 30 September 
2016 we generated £48 million of 
excess cash flow. Applying our capital 
allocation framework, the Board 
decided to utilise this excess cash 
flow to fund the £27.5 million cost 
to repurchase £250 million of the 
2018 bonds and, in order to optimise 
shareholder returns, to fund a £25 
million share buyback of ETI shares 
for cancellation. This share buyback 
programme was initiated on 22 March 
2016 and as at 14 November 2016 we 
have purchased 14 million shares at 
an average price of 91p per share.

Outlook 
Trading in the first six weeks of the 
new financial year has been in line 
with our expectations and we are 
confident that the actions we are 
taking to execute our strategic plans 
are the most appropriate response 
to changes in the regulatory and 
economic environment. Whilst 
mindful that the potential impact of 
the regulatory changes is not yet 
completely clear, we plan to deliver 
positive like-for-like net income growth 
in our leased and tenanted tied pub 
estate for the full year and to further 
expand our commercial property and 
managed house businesses in line 
with our strategy.   

Regulatory review
On 21 July 2016 the new Statutory 
Code of Practice introduced by the 
Small Business, Enterprise and 
Employment Act 2015 came into 
effect. The Pubs Code applies to 
the six companies with over 500 
pubs operating under tied leased 
and tenancy agreements in England 
and Wales, and is overseen by an 
independent Adjudicator.

The new legislation includes 
a tenant’s right, under certain 
circumstances, to change the freely-
negotiated commercial terms of 
their existing agreement to a new 
Market Rent Only (MRO) compliant 
agreement. This enables some 
occupational tenants to elect to 
opt-out of the supply tie at certain 
points or after certain exceptional 
events during the term of their lease 
agreement and therefore occupy the 
premises on a standard commercial 
property lease, paying rent only. In 
the event that a tenant elected to 
invoke this option, whilst our income 
derived from the supply of tied drinks 
products would be partially offset by 
increases in rent, it is possible that 
our total income from that property 
would be adversely affected.

The impact of MRO is expected to 
take effect over five years, as MRO 
trigger events are largely expected 
to arise through the cycle of five 
yearly rent reviews and agreement 
renewals, which apply only to our 
leases. As such, since the concept 
of MRO agreements was first 
announced in November 2014, 
we have worked hard to reduce 
our exposure to such longer-term 
leases and increase the proportion 
of our tied business operating under 
shorter-term tenancies where rent 
reviews and renewals do not apply. 
As at November 2014 we had 3,035 
long-term lease agreements and this 
has reduced by 634 to 2,401 as at 30 
September 2016. 

From the date of the implementation 
of the new Pubs Code, there have 
been 285 potential MRO trigger 
events. In 94 of these cases the 
publican made a valid request for an 
MRO quote. Whilst none of these 
requests has yet to result in the 
introduction of an MRO compliant 
agreement, at this stage it is too 
early to say how many may ultimately 
do so. In our 2017 financial year we 
expect to have approximately 600 
cyclical rent reviews and agreement 
renewals which may potentially 
constitute MRO events. Although we 
experienced a short-term slowdown 
in letting activity upon implementation 
of the Pubs Code, due to the need to 
re-market all lets in line with the new 
regulatory requirements, we do not 
expect this to impact our expectations 
for the current year financial 
performance.

W S Townsend 
Chief Executive Officer
14 November 2016

£74m
2015: £69m

CAPITAL  
INVESTMENT 

Chief Executive’s 
review
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The Duke of Sussex in Lower Marsh, Waterloo was the third 
site in our Hippo Inns Managed Investments business, 
opening in April 2016. The pub had been operated as a 
traditional ‘wet-led’ pub for over 30 years by the previous 
publican. Following lease expiry, Enterprise, under its new 
strategy was able to occupy, invest and evolve the offer 
to include great food, trade longer hours and create a 
modern vibrant pub. The opening has been celebrated by 
customers and local community groups alike, has increased 
employment in the local area, and is now one of the most 
successful businesses in Lower Marsh, providing solid 
returns for the investment and creating substantial value for 
Enterprise. 

Our partnership with Rupert Clevely and the unique ‘magic’ 
that is provided through design, great service culture and 
people has allowed us to deliver what many have described 
as the future pub experience today. Hippo Inns now 
operates six pubs in this model with more in the pipeline.

hIPPO Inns  
ThE dUKE Of sUssEx,  
WATErlOO
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Key performance 
indicators
The key performance indicators below are those used by the Group to 
measure its performance. These are the Group’s way of assessing how 
successful it has been at delivering its business model, and ultimately 
driving value for its shareholders. These have been grouped into 
business performance, strategic development and capital structure KPIs.

Business performance

Adjusted EPS 
Measures earning per share using  
pre-exceptional profits. Read more in: 

• Chairman’s statement 
• Financial review 
•  Directors’ remuneration 

report

Free cash flow* 
Measures cash flow from operations 
less interest and taxes but before capital 
expenditure and disposals. Read more in: 

• Chief Executive’s review 
• Financial review 
•  Directors’ remuneration 

report

ROCE* 
Measures return on capital employed as 
pre-exceptional EBITDA divided by net 
assets less net debt less deferred tax 
provisions. Read more in: 

•  Directors’ remuneration 
report

Like-for-like net income
Measures the leased and tenanted change 
in net income on a same estate basis, 
i.e. adjusting for disposals at the end of 
each year. Net income is defined as pre-
exceptional EBITDA, stated before property 
costs and administrative expenses.

Read more in: 
• Chairman’s statement 
• Chief Executive’s review 
• Financial review 
•  Directors’ remuneration 

report

Capital spend on growth 
driving initiatives 
Measures the proportion of capital spend 
on projects aimed at driving sales growth. Read more in: 

• Chief Executive’s review 
•  Directors’ remuneration 

report

Returns on investment  
Measures the incremental income 
delivered as a result of the investment 
divided by the value of the capital 
investment on growth driving initiatives.

Read more in: 
• Chief Executive’s review 
•  Directors’ remuneration 

report

19.6p
19.4p

19.0p

2014 2015 2016

7.6%7.6%

7.5%

2014 2015 2016

2.1%

0.8%

1.4%

2014 2015 2016

22%

19%19%

2014 2015 2016
15

20

25

44% 57%

2%

41%

£111m
2014

£108m
2015

£121m
2016†

†  The results for 2016 also excludes expenditure 
associated with capital structure review.
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Strategic development

Number of properties*
Measures the number of properties in 
each business unit. Read more in: 

• Chairman’s statement 
• At a glance 
• Our strategy 
• Chief Executive’s review 
•  Directors’ remuneration 

report

Capital allocation* 
Measures the allocation of free cash to 
improving leverage (through purchase and 
cancellation of bonds on the open market)
and returns to shareholders.

Read more in: 
• Chief Executive’s review 
• Financial review

Investment and disposal 
Measures the use of disposal proceeds to 
reinvest in the estate.

Read more in: 
• Chief Executive’s review 
• Financial review 

Colleague engagement index* 
Measures staff engagement by summing 
the scores from 7 specific questions 
within the employee engagement 
survey undertaken by Parent Company 
employees.

Read more in: 
•  Corporate social 

responsibility

Capital structure

Net debt 
Measures the level of debt in the Group, 
offset by the cash balances.

Read more in: 
• Financial review 
• Note 32 of the accounts

Leverage 
Measures net debt over pre-exceptional 
EBITDA, to give an indication of how 
much debt the Group has as compared to 
profit levels.

Read more in: 
• Financial review

Interest cover 
Measures how many times the Group 
can cover its interest charges with profits, 
calculated as pre-exceptional EBITDA 
divided by net finance costs.

Read more in: 
• Financial review 
• Note 23 of the accounts

* Denotes a new KPI added in the year.

Several of the KPIs selected by the Group have been changed in the year to better reflect the linkages between strategy, 
performance and the remuneration of directors. In addition, the prior year included KPIs for EBITDA and PBT before 
exceptional items and for business failures. The EBITDA and PBT measures are clearly shown in our income statement 
and business failures has been omitted this year as our KPI for like-for-like net income for the leased and tenanted estate 
is considered to incorporate the impact of business failures. 

Bonds/£m
Shares/£m

201620152014

10

5

10

201620152014

Disposals/£m Capex/£m

66
73 69

75 74

98

82.1%81.3%
79.6%

2014 2015 2016

£2.2bn
£2.3bn£2.4bn

2014 2015 2016

2014: 8.0x
2015: 7.8x
2016: 7.5x

25

2014: 1.8x
2015: 1.9x
2016: 1.9x

4,470
PUBLICAN 

PARTNERSHIPS 

2015: 4,821

28
BERMONDSEY

2015: 14

273
COMMERCIAL 

PROPERTY

2015: 213

8
MANAGED 

INVESTMENTS

2015: nil

71
CRAFT UNION

2015: 21
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We have delivered EBITDA before 
exceptional items of £292 million, 
down £4 million compared to the 
prior year primarily due to our disposal 
programme. 

Leased and tenanted estate like-
for-like net income, the primary 
component of our EBITDA, is derived 
from our rental income and our net 
income from the sale of beer and 
other products to our publicans. 
Adjusted for the effect of disposals 
we have seen our like-for-like leased 
and tenanted net income grow to 
£338 million (2015: £331 million), up 
2.1%. In the year our like-for-like net 
income from rents is in line with last 
year, primarily assisted by growth 
at rent reviews and the reduction 
in unplanned business failures. This 
reduction in failures has enabled us to 
reduce our discretionary support by 
£1 million, whilst our net income from 
beer supply has grown by £6 million 
as pricing and mix benefits, net of 
discounts, have offset volume decline. 

Pre-exceptional administrative costs in 
the year were £40 million (2015: £37 
million), reflecting the recruitment of 
additional capability to assist in the 
delivery of our strategic objectives 
and an element of incremental cost 
associated with the introduction 
of the new Pubs Code. Whilst we 
continue to apply rigorous focus on 
tightly controlling our cost base we 
do expect our administrative costs to 
grow further, to around £42 million, in 
the current financial year in support of 
our strategic development. 

Pre-exceptional net finance costs of 
£154 million (2015: £158 million) are 
£4 million lower than the comparative 
period as a result of our strategy 
of debt reduction, a strategy which 
we plan to continue in the current 
financial year, resulting in expected 
pre-exceptional net finance costs of 
around £148 million to £150 million.

Total pre-tax exceptional charges 
are £47 million (2015: £193 million) 
comprising a charge of £7 million 
(2015: £26 million) in respect of debt 
refinancing costs; a £33 million (2015: 
£163 million) charge in respect of 
the valuation of the property estate; 
a £9 million (2015: £8 million) charge 
relating to goodwill allocated to 
disposals; a £3 million  
(2015: £1 million) charge of 
exceptional administrative costs and 
a profit on disposal of property, plant 
and equipment of £5 million (2015: £5 

million). The property estate valuation 
charge of £33 million (2015: £163 
million) consists of a charge of £18 
million (2015: £120 million) arising 
from the annual valuation exercise 
and a charge of £15 million (2015: £43 
million) arising from the revaluation 
of assets on transfer to non-current 
assets held for sale.

Total tax in the period was a charge 
of £4 million (2015: £6 million credit), 
representing a charge of £25 million 
(2015: £25 million) on the pre-
exceptional trading profit and a credit 
of £21 million (2015: £31 million) 
relating to the tax on exceptional 
items. The effective tax rate on the 
pre-exceptional trading profits arising 
in the year is 20.1% (2015: 20.5%) 
which is in line with our estimated 
effective tax rate for the financial year 
ending 30 September 2017.

Adjusted earnings per share (EPS) of 
19.6p (2015: 19.4p), was up 0.2p on 
the prior year. Basic EPS was 14.2p 
compared to a loss per share of 13.0p 
in the prior year, primarily due to 
lower exceptional charges incurred 
in respect of debt refinancing and 
property valuation movements. 

Financial 
review

Income statement
2016

£m
2015

£m

Revenue 632 625

Operating costs before depreciation and amortisation* (340) (329)

EBITDA* 292 296

Profit before tax* 122 122

Earnings per share* 19.6p 19.4p

* Presented before exceptional items.

Neil Smith
Chief Financial Officer

19.6p

ADJUSTED 
EARNINGS PER 

SHARE

2015: 19.4p
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ThE CrAfT UnIOn PUB COMPAny 
ThE QUEEns, BrAdfOrd

The Queens, Bradford started trading as a Craft Union site in May 2015 
following a £140,000 investment to redevelop its entire retail proposition and 
is an excellent example of how this Craft Union offer works within an urban 
location. The Queens is very much a local community hub with the majority 
of its income driven by day time trade. The customer base for the pub is a 
mix of locals and passing trade to and from the main train station in Bradford 
City Centre, but its sports related offer is a key footfall driver for this site. Whilst 
boxing is proving very popular, it has become a key venue for home fans of 
Bradford City Football Club. 

By the end of September 2016, the Queens was consistently trading ahead 
of our original expectation and delivering annual house EBITDA nearly five 
times higher than the year before conversion as a leased and tenanted pub.

Using our segmentation tool we were able to ensure the site had the ideal 
demographic statistics for the Craft Union offer, demonstrating how Bradford 
falls within our target socio-economic catchment. Craft Union targets this 
particular demographic audience as we can offer competitive pricing in an 
environment with a high quality retail proposition.
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Cash flow
Net cash flow from operating 
activities at £269 million  
(2015: £265 million), was higher than 
the comparative period primarily as 
a result of tax payments being lower 
by £15 million due to the tax benefits 
from the prior year refinancing costs 
and repayments from HMRC in 
respect of prior year overpayments 
and capital allowance claims. 

Net cash flows from investing 
activities created an inflow of £24 
million (2015: £6 million). We reinvest 
the majority of our net disposal 
proceeds in capital investment in the 
estate, with net proceeds received 
from disposals of £98 million  
(2015: £75 million) helping fund 
the £74 million (2015: £69 million) 
invested in the period.

Financing cash flows of £275 million 
(2015: £267 million), primarily reflect 
net interest paid of £154 million  
(2015: £157 million), net loan 
repayments of £104 million  
(2015: £77 million), refinancing costs 
of £7 million (2015: £28 million) 
and £11 million (2015: £5 million) of 
payments to acquire own shares.

Balance sheet
Our balance sheet remains strong 
with a total net asset value of £1.4 
billion, represented by £3.6 billion of 
property assets offset by net debt 
of £2.2 billion. The property asset 
valuation is based upon the valuation 
undertaken as at 30 September 
2016. The Unique property estate 
is valued by Colliers International 
and the assets that secure the ETI 
corporate bonds are valued by GVA 
Grimley with the balance of the estate 
being valued internally. The basis of 
valuation is consistently applied with 
94% of the property portfolio valued 
by independent external valuers. 

The result from this year’s valuation 
was an increase in the total value of 
the estate by £3 million, or 0.1%, 
compared to a reduction in the prior 
year of £101 million, or 2.7%.

The share price at 30 September 2016 
of 93p (2015: 108p), which equates to 
an equity value of £454 million  
(2015: £540 million), compares to a 
net asset value per share of £2.96 
(2015: £2.70). We believe that the 
successful execution of our strategic 
plan, which will optimise the use and 
value of our asset portfolio, should 
lead to a significant reduction of this 
value differential. 

£2.2bn
NET DEBT

2015: £2.3bn

£269m
OPERATING 

CASH FLOWS

2015: £265m
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Capital structure
We have a long-term, secure, flexible 
and tax efficient financing structure 
comprising of bank borrowings, 
securitised notes and corporate 
bonds. We are a cash generative 
business and have, over the past few 
years, used excess cash to reduce 
debt. During the year we have used 
cash generated by the business to 
meet the scheduled amortisation of 
securitised notes leaving total net 
debt at £2.2 billion (2015: £2.3 billion). 

Corporate and  
convertible bonds 
As at 30 September 2016 we had 
£1,125 million (2015: £1,125 million) of 
secured corporate bonds outstanding 
which are non-amortising, secured 
against ring-fenced portfolios of 
freehold pubs and attracting fixed 
interest rates averaging approximately 
6.5% (2015: 6.5%). 

On 4 November 2016, we completed 
a partial refinancing of our corporate 
bonds. Prior to the refinancing, £350.5 
million of secured corporate bonds 
due in 2018 were outstanding with 
a coupon of 6.5%. We repurchased 
£250 million of these bonds at a 
cash purchase price of 111.0% of 
their principal amount, representing 
a cash repurchase premium of £27.5 
million, which will be recorded as 
an exceptional finance charge in 
the current year income statement. 
The repurchase was financed by the 
issue of a new £250 million secured 
corporate bond due in February 2022 
at a coupon of 6.375%. The result of 
the transaction is a reduction of the 
corporate bonds maturing in 2018 to 
£100.5 million.

In addition to the corporate bonds, 
we have unsecured convertible bonds 
that were issued in September 2013 
for gross proceeds of £97 million and 
which mature in 2020. The convertible 
bonds have a coupon rate of 3.5% 
and are convertible at a share price of 
£1.91 into 50.8 million ordinary shares 
at any time up to 2020.

Bank borrowings 
At 30 September 2016 our drawn 
bank borrowings net of Enterprise 
company cash were £32 million  
(2015: £50 million). The non-amortising 
revolving credit facility of £138 million, 
which was in place throughout the 
financial year ended 30 September 
2016, was replaced on 24 October 
2016 by a new £120 million non-
amortising revolving credit facility 
which is available through to August 
2020. The terms of the new facility 
are consistent with the old facility, 
including a coupon rate of 3% above 
LIBOR applicable to any drawn portion 
of the facility.

securitised notes 
During the period we have repaid, 
in accordance with scheduled 
amortisation, £74 million of the 
Unique A3 and A4 securitised 
notes. In addition we purchased and 
cancelled £10 million (2015: nil) of 
securitised notes in the open market, 
which left £1.1 billion outstanding at 
30 September 2016. Operational cash 
generated from the business has 
been used to meet this scheduled 
amortisation of the securitised notes. 
The notes amortise over a period 
to 2032 and attract interest rates 
of between 5.7% and 7.4%. At 30 
September 2016 the Group was £80 
million ahead of the amortisation 
schedule of the “class A” securitised 
notes through early repayment 
and market purchases. Scheduled 
amortisation will require us to make 
payments of £77 million in 2017, £81 
million in 2018 and £85 million in 
2019.

On 24 March 2016 the noteholders 
of the Unique securitisation voted 
in favour of proposals to amend 
certain aspects of the transaction 
documentation to permit increased 
numbers of managed houses within 
the securitisation property portfolio. 
With these amendments in place, 
we believe the capital structure can 
fully accommodate the delivery of our 
strategic plans. 

N R Smith 
Chief Financial Officer
14 November 2016

Financial 
review
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Walk in each other’s shoes 
rEsPECT
We consider things from others’ points of view and treat 
others the way we would like to be treated ourselves.  
We value everyone’s contribution and say “thank you”.

Think service first
sErVICE-lEd
We have a service mindset. We see things through our 
customers’ eyes, both internal and external. We have high 
standards and work hard to achieve and exceed them.

Stay ahead of the game
InnOVATIVE
We don’t just respond to change; we drive it. We don’t 
accept the way it’s always been done, we shake things up. 
We look for new ways. Better ways. We think one step ahead.

Pull together
COllABOrATIVE
We are all part of the same team; we don’t work in silos.  
We are aligned and stronger when we work together.

Drive for results. 
COMMErCIAl
We are performance focused and hold ourselves 
accountable for results. Our commitment to metrics sets  
up apart. We raise the bar.

Vision
and values
In 2016 we launched our new vision and values into the business. We recognise 
that a strong organisation culture with clarity on its vision and values binds the 
business around shared goals, values and behaviours. This work provides clarity 
and consistency for our business units as they pursue their ambitions and is 
designed to enhance our performance and deliver success. Together our vision 
and values allow the Company to be more than just a sum of its parts. We have 
cascaded our vision and values throughout the business and will now look to fully 
embed them in everything we do.

Enterprise Inns plc Annual report and Accounts 
for the year ended 30 September 2016
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We are continuously evolving our 
corporate social responsibility (CSR) 
agenda, and are committed to 
operating our business in an ethical 
and responsible manner. This is 
demonstrated in particular this year 
by the launch of our vision and values, 
which will help deliver consistent 
behaviours amongst all those who 
interact with the Group and its 
employees in whatever capacity. 

This report does not contain 
information about any policies of the 
Group in relation to human rights 
issues since it is not considered 
necessary for an understanding of the 
development, performance or position 
of the Group’s business activities. 

Our CSR delivery framework is based 
on strategic drivers being community, 
people, publicans, responsible 
retailing and environment and they 
are now underpinned by our vision 
and values.

COMMUNITY
Our focus on community recognises 
that we have over 4,900 properties 
across the length and breadth of 
England and Wales, each responsible 
for delivering a service to the 
community in which it operates. We 
strive to ensure we do the best that 
we can to positively impact those 
communities, through partnering 
with publicans and employing people 
that want to live and work in these 
areas, and remaining sensitive to local 
issues.

Each of the pubs we own or operate 
is unique and we and our publicans or 
employees aim to provide a distinctive 
service to attract a diverse range of 
customers and community groups. 
All pubs aim to create a congenial, 
non-discriminatory atmosphere and 
promote the prevention of crime 
and disorder, preservation of public 
safety, prevention of public nuisance 
and protection of children from 
harm, and must operate so that 
commercial initiatives do not override 
our core values. We work to ensure 
that licensing hours and conditions 

attached to pub premises licenses 
are appropriate and take account of 
the opportunities and interests of all 
parties.

Community heroes awards
At the start of our Community Heroes 
scheme, we committed to spend £1 
million, which we have done over the 
past five years. Each year, the number 
of entrants has increased, and we 
have heard and seen some incredible 
contributions to local communities. 
Our 2016 winners were Russell 
and Sarah Clark of The Cleveland 
Bay in Redcar, North Yorkshire. They 
impressed the judges with their 
tireless efforts to make their pub 
a true hub of the community, with 
various groups meeting there almost 
every night, and the great lengths 
they have gone to in ensuring the pub 
is fully accessible to those less able, 
and won the £6,000 top prize.

supporting industry trade 
bodies and associations
We support key industry trade bodies 
and associations including the British 
Beer and Pub Association (BBPA), the 
leading body representing Britain’s 
brewers and pub companies who 
strive to promote and protect one of 
the nation’s most iconic and important 
industries, and the Federation of 
Licensed Victuallers Associations 
(FLVA), an organisation looking after 
the business interests of self-
employed licensees in the licensed 
trade. The FLVA and the British 
Institute of Innkeeping (BII) regularly 
attend our recruitment events and 
entepriselive roadshows to discuss 
the benefits of membership with both 
potential and existing publicans. 

We also continue to be a proud 
sponsor of the Pub is The Hub 
campaign, which offers guidance and 
advice to publicans on how to offer 
additional services through their pub, 
to cement it at the heart of its local 
community.

Charity
The Group is committed to supporting 
charitable causes through its charity 
committee. The committee both 
organises fundraising events at Head 
Office to support various causes, such 
as Macmillan, and agrees Company 
donations to sponsor employees in 
their individual challenges.

Enterprise is again working with 
Charles Wells to support the British 
Legion, and has re-launched ‘Poppy’ 
beer for which the Legion will 
receive 10 pence for each pint sold. 
This initiative raised £15,000 when 
launched in 2015, with a similar 
amount hoped for this year.

We continue to work in a Primary 
Authority Scheme partnership with 
West Midlands Fire Service. Our 
contribution of £15,000 per year 
to support this partnership is used 
to promote the charity Safeside, 
experiential learning centres 
in Eastside and Handsworth in 
Birmingham. 

Through our managed businesses 
we have sought to align our ethos of 
being involved in and supporting the 
communities in which we operate. 
We have worked with Stride Ventures 
over the last year running the ‘Putting 
Young Minds to Work’ programme 
of eight classes of school children 
in London. This project is designed 
to kick start entrepreneurship, 
develop employability skills and raise 
aspirations. The children participating 
showed self-assessed improvement 
in their understanding of the 
economy, how the UK makes its 
money and what businesses need to 
be successful.

Corporate 
social 
responsibility

Enterprise Inns - AR2016 - Strategic-cs6.indd   26 07/12/2016   14:21:35



24766.04    7 December 2016 2:18 PM    Proof 6

* Full time equivalent employees. This includes all staff now employed in the managed businesses.

EMPLOYEES MALE FEMALE

541

421

Directors

Senior managers

Employees*

EMPLOYEES MALE FEMALE

541

421

Directors

Senior managers

Employees*
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Employee engagement
The Group is committed to 
communicating with its employees, 
and does so by way of its intranet and 
regular briefing sessions throughout 
the business. Since 2014 we have 
held an annual opinion survey with 
employees to understand how they 
feel about their jobs. In 2016, 94% 
of our team completed the survey 
and we achieved another high score 
of 82% of people who are proud 
to work for Enterprise. The output 
of the survey, and various sessions 
across the business to interrogate the 
results, has enabled us to identify the 
drivers of engagement to focus on 
for 2016/17 to continue to promote 
engagement.

diversity and inclusion
We are committed to equal 
opportunities and the creation 
of an entirely non-discriminatory 
working environment and operate 
to ensure that all employees are 
recruited, developed, promoted and 
remunerated on the basis of their 
skills and job suitability. In addition, 
the Group is dedicated to undertaking 
its business operations in a way which 
respects individual human rights, 
diversity and equality, and treats 
individuals with dignity and allows 
freedom of association.

We give full consideration to 
applications for employment 
from disabled persons where the 
requirements of the job can be 
adequately fulfilled by them. We 
endeavour to retain the employment 
of, and arrange suitable retraining for, 
any employee who becomes disabled 
during their employment as well as 
providing training, career development 
and promotion to disabled employees 
wherever appropriate.

Training
We recognise that in order to get the 
best from our employees and drive 
business performance, we need to 
provide training to enhance skills and 
development opportunities to advance 
our employees. We endeavour to 
fill our vacancies through internal 
progression, however where people 
join us we aim to provide the best 
possible start with structured 
induction plans in place for everyone. 
All new starters receive a Group 
induction, followed by department 
specific inductions and training. 
We encourage and support our 
employees to develop a long-term 
career with us, with 46% of our 
employees having been with us for 
over five years and 30% of employees 
having over 10 years’ experience.

 PEOPLE
At 30 September 2016 the number of employees was as follows:

82%  
of employees are 
proud to work for 

Enterprise
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Internal progression is something we 
are proud to champion. Our series 
of dedicated training programmes, 
which includes our Management 
Development Programme that we 
launched last year, support our 
employees to develop their career 
from stepping into their first line 
manager role through to becoming 
a member of our Senior Leadership 
Team. Since the launch of our strategy 
in May 2015, over 10% of our team 
have achieved internal progression.

We have also supported 31 
employees to obtain professional 
qualifications during the year, 
covering a broad range of areas from 
accountancy and legal to marketing 
and chartered surveying, and we have 
recruited our first apprentices into 
finance and administrative roles at our 
head office. Our managed businesses 
are committed to a target of 10 
apprentices through 2017 which will 

give qualifications in front of house 
hospitality and kitchen service.

In 2016 we retained our Gold 
accreditation by Investors in People, 
an accolade we have held since 1999.

reward and recognition
Enterprise offers a flexible benefits 
scheme to employees, which allows 
them to choose from a selection 
of benefits to suit their individual 
lifestyle. The benefits include a 
cycle to work scheme, leisure club 
membership, private medical and 
dental insurance, flexible holiday 
benefits, a health screening service 
and a childcare voucher scheme. Over 
half of our employees have opted to 
join at least one available scheme. 
In addition, the Group supports the 
provision of a confidential employee 
assistance programme. Enterprise 
encourages employee ownership 
of Company shares through the 

provision of a Save as You Earn 
Scheme and a Share Incentive Plan.

Our employee handbook takes 
account of relevant employment 
legislation and best practice. New 
policies, procedures and related 
training are developed as required. 
The Group’s anti-bribery and 
corruption code of conduct sets out 
how Group employees, publicans and 
suppliers must act to ensure that our 
zero tolerance approach to bribery and 
corruption is upheld.

We recognise that paying the National  
Living Wage supports our aim of 
attracting and retaining great people 
to operate our businesses and in turn 
will reduce staff turnover and improve 
motivation and productivity. As a 
result, we have built the implications 
of paying the National Living Wage 
into our expansion plans in our 
managed businesses. 

Corporate 
social 
responsibility
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PUBLICANS
Enterprise is committed to fair, 
transparent and lawful dealing 
with our publicans. Our Code of 
Practice was replaced in the year 
by a Statutory Pubs Code which 
now governs our dealings with our 
publicans. The Pubs Code is overseen 
by an Independent Adjudicator for 
the six companies with over 500 
pubs operating under tied lease and 
tenancy agreements in England and 
Wales. 

new publican support 
Our new publican support programme 
gives our new publicans the best 
possible chance of success to run 
a sustainable business. From the 
first contact with Enterprise we 
ensure they have all the support and 
information they need and explain 
everything that will happen in the first 
few months of being an Enterprise 
publican. 

As part of the first months and 
beyond, publicans have access to 
award-winning training, business 
tools and materials, comprehensive 
commercial support, a dedicated 
Regional Manager and an 
independent mentor to help them 
shape their plans for their future 
business and run it to achieve their 
goals.

Operating a pub for the first time 
can be a challenge. The new publican 
support programme ensures that 
all of the focus is on building a 
great business and for areas where 
they need support, there should be 
experienced people available and at 
their disposal.

Training
We are passionate about the training 
support we provide to our publicans 
and have 11 different courses 
available for our publicans and their 
teams to attend free of charge. In 
the past 12 months, Enterprise and 
our retained training partners have 
trained 1,617 people and delivered 
11,319 hours of training, with 16% of 
pub businesses taking advantage of 

training opportunities. We market our 
training online through our Publican 
Channel, targeted e-shots and at the 
enterpriselive roadshows. 

We continue to add to the variety of 
courses and their availability, with 
particular focus currently on helping 
our publicans maintain quality and 
drive performance. 

There are currently 180 apprentices  
in the leased and tenanted estate 
which is a rapid expansion and we 
are pleased that we are really starting 
to see some traction compared with 
prior years. 

retail standards
As part of our drive for continual 
improvement our Regional Managers 
work with our publicans and 
employees to help them ensure 
they offer the highest level of retail 
standards to their customers and 
provide a safe and welcoming 
environment. We also work closely 
with Cask Marque who provide 
customer visits and specialist advice 
to our publicans on all things cask 
related.

RESPONSIBLE RETAILING
Alcohol
Enterprise recognises that it has a 
responsibility towards the promotion 
and management of responsible 
drinking, and that we have to work 
with our publicans, consumers, 
other retailers and the wider 
legislative environment to ensure 
that irresponsible behaviour does 
not adversely affect our pubs or 
the communities they sit within. To 
fulfil its responsibilities, the Group 
participates in various schemes such 
as sponsoring the Drinkaware Trust, 
promoting proof of age schemes, 
and other initiatives associated with 
addressing the consequences of 
alcohol misuse and minimising alcohol 
related harm.

Within our managed pubs, we ensure 
that all members of staff are fully 
trained on responsible retailing, such 
that they are confident in challenging 

for both proof of age and alcohol or 
drug misuse. We also make sure that 
our pricing and promotional strategies 
do not encourage irresponsible 
behaviours towards alcohol.

supply chain management
In 2015 we revisited the need for an 
ethical purchasing policy and formed 
a dedicated procurement team who 
over the last 12 months have worked 
with our key suppliers to ensure they 
share similar values to our own, to 
ensure sustainability is considered 
as part of the procurement process 
and that suppliers have the highest 
standards of ethical business 
decisions and practices. In our 
managed businesses we seek to 
promote relationships with local 
suppliers and where practical our 
managed pubs stock at least one local 
real ale helping to support breweries 
in the communities where we trade.

health and safety
Enterprise takes the health and 
safety management of its employees, 
publicans, supply chain partners and 
customers very seriously. To ensure 
the health and safety function is best 
placed to meet the evolving needs 
of the business, we operate two 
groups which deal with strategic 
safety and operational issues. These 
are designed to ensure that every 
area and function of the organisation 
can contribute to the development 
of relevant safety systems and 
procedures. We continue to 
participate in the Government’s 
Primary Authority Scheme (PAS) and 
regularly interact with regulators. 
The Company has a relationship with 
Westminster City Council for health 
and safety, West Midlands Fire and 
Rescue Service for fire safety and 
Milton Keynes Borough Council for 
food safety and related enforcement. 
The PAS arrangement ensures a 
company trading across council 
boundaries is guaranteed access to 
robust and reliable advice in relation 
to regulatory responsibilities.
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ENVIRONMENT
We recognise our responsibilities 
to operate effective environmental 
practice and to continue to strive 
for improvement in areas of 
environmental impact. Our approach 
is to work through education, 
communication and direct action. 

Working with our specialist energy 
consultants we have completed 
energy saving upgrades in our 
managed and our leased and tenanted 
estate to reduce consumption and 
monitor and identify savings made in 
kWhs and energy spend. Upgrading 
included installation of ECO flo 
chillers to reduce the energy usage 
by the cellar beer chillers. These 
are fitted with smart controls which 
can be pre-set to reflect the trading 
hours of the site along with variable 
speed drive which reduces the fan 
speed of the chillers dependent on 
the trading demand. Upgrades also 
included LED lighting reducing the 
majority of lamps from between 40 
and 55 watts per unit to between 
4 and 5 watts, installing weather 
compensation controls to boilers to 
optimise the heating systems and 
room thermostats installed to control 
private accommodation heating 
separately to the pub.

Our managed businesses
Where we now have operational 
control of our estate of managed 
pubs, this enables us to influence 
how best to manage waste disposal, 
recycling and energy efficiency. As 
our managed business grows we 
will grow our capabilities to deliver 
sustainable operating procedures 
which are mindful of the environment 
and the local community.

Water management
We are reviewing ways of working to 
better manage water consumption 
across our head office, in our 
managed estate and by offering 
training and solutions to the leased 
and tenanted estate. With our energy 
consultants we are monitoring water 
meter readings for our managed 
houses and acting on any anomalies 
or irregularities to drive efficiencies. 
Our managed houses are in the 
process of having SMART water 
meters installed which will provide us 
with more visibility on usage. As part 
of the energy reduction programme in 
the managed estate we are reviewing 
new technologies including waterless 
urinals and cistermisers. Our learnings 
from these trials will influence the 
way we are able to support publicans 
in our leased and tenanted estate to 
benefit from the same efficiencies we 
are delivering in our own managed 
estate.

distribution efficiencies
Wherever possible we combine 
all drinks deliveries into a single 
vehicle drop to reduce road miles, 
congestion, fuel and costs.

Packaging waste
Enterprise continues to fulfil its 
obligations imposed by the Packaging 
Waste Regulations based on all 
recyclables sold to publicans. In 2015, 
Enterprise changed its membership 
to the SUSTAIN Drinks Packaging 
Partnership, a pub industry initiative 
led by the BBPA, which will provide 
an improved waste packaging 
consultancy service and lowest cost 
compliance. SUSTAIN will also help 
us prepare for the more complex 
obligations required for our managed 
pubs, including food packaging waste. 
All our managed pubs have the 
facilities to recycle 100% of the glass 
used in the business.

Oil recycling
Enterprise has been working with 
suppliers to recycle cooking oil used 
in the estate. Publicans participating 
in this initiative receive a cash back 
incentive encouraging them to recycle 
oil. In the past year this has delivered 
over £70,000 cash back to publicans 
and we are seeing the amount of 
oil recycled increasing significantly, 
with over 350,000 litres deposited 
for recycling, almost double the prior 
year.

Greenhouse gas emissions:
Carbon reduction 
During the course of this year 
we have implemented initiatives 
promoting carbon reduction. We have 
made good progress in assessing the 
benefits of and installing new energy 
efficient equipment in a number of 
sites across the estate, highlighting 
where the greatest reductions could 
be achieved and prioritising those 
sites. Utilising the industry standard 
measures of Scope 1 and Scope 2 of 
the Greenhouse Gas Protocol (GHG 
Corporate Accounting and Reporting 
Standard Revised Edition 2004) we 
aim to engender a carbon saving 
culture across all stakeholders in the 
organisation. 

head office
Our head office building is now 15 
years old and some of the plant 
and systems are reaching the end 
of their life cycle. After completing 
a feasibility study assessing the 
upgrading of a number of systems it 
is intended to replace items in 2017 
with the aim of achieving improved 
energy performance, reduce running 
and maintenance costs and overall 
reduction in energy consumption. 

Corporate 
social 
responsibility
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Waste reduction 
To reduce waste we are targeting 
a minimum 75% of all waste being 
recycled. This has already been 
achieved at the head office and to 
ensure this is attained within the 
managed estate our approved supply 
chain has been instructed that our 
policy is to return all packaging to 
source for recycling. We will monitor 
and manage this process to ensure 
adherence.

We are working with waste 
management providers across our 
managed estate with trials at over 
10 sites. Across the trial we have 
achieved 0% waste direct to landfill, 
3% residual to landfill, 63% direct to 
recycling and 34% to energy from 
waste initiatives. 

Business travel
We have conferencing telephony 
available in all meeting rooms and 
encourage web-based meetings 
and conference calls where 
feasible. On completion of our 
head office refurbishment we have 

the opportunity to further mitigate 
our Carbon Footprint by enhanced 
facilities aiming to reduce road miles.

We continue to proactively promote 
to our staff the potential alternatives 
for each journey undertaken including 
public transport, car sharing and 
cycling. 

Our Car Fleet Policy ensures all new 
cars procured are subject to CO2 
restrictions and car option choices 
have been extended to include at 
least one super hybrid/ECO car.

Energy Performance 
Certificates (EPC)
We continue to make good progress 
towards compliance with the 
Minimum Energy Performance 
Standards Regulations to ensure that 
where in our portfolio leases and 
tenancies are approaching expiry they 
are appropriately rated for energy 
performance prior to deadlines set for 
2018. We are proactively managing 
the future requirements of EPCs 
and where low efficiencies are 
identified we are seeking to prioritise 

those by investing in remedial 
works and following these up by 
further trial installations to capture 
the consumption savings prior to 
reviewing the roll out possibilities 
across the wider estate and 
businesses. 

In 2016 we embarked on a project 
to model and evaluate energy saving 
measures that will help to underpin 
an eco-friendly approach to operating 
our leased and tenanted business. 
In conjunction with our energy 
consultants we have undertaken a 
series of energy reduction feasibility 
studies across the estate to better 
understand the running costs 
associated with energy usage in the 
pub estate and methods to reduce 
them. The sample sites all vary in 
size, trading style and opening hours 
and allow us to generate an accurate 
picture of energy usage associated 
with lighting, heating, water and 
cellar cooling and then model these 
with various methods of reducing 
consumption. We expect feasibility 
surveys to be completed early in 2017.
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Energy savings Opportunity 
scheme (EsOs)
We confirm that we were fully 
compliant with reporting requirements 
by 5 December 2015 and have 
embraced this initiative and take 
learnings from all of the energy saving 
opportunities highlighted in our ESOS 
report. We have continued to complete 
surveys on all properties moving into 
our managed estate, working towards 
the next ESOS submission in 2019 and 
highlighting the ways to reduce energy 
consumption when pubs move from 
the leased and tenanted estate to our 
management.

Greenhouse Gas Emissions 
(GhG) statement
The greenhouse gas emissions 
statement (GHG) below provides a 
summary of Enterprise’s greenhouse 
gas (carbon) emissions each year from 

1 October 2015 to 30 September 2016. 
It gives a summary of emissions from 
fuel combustion and the operation of 
our facilities which include our offices, 
managed houses and company cars 
(Scope 1), and from our purchased 
electricity used during the year 
(Scope 2). 

We have adopted the operational 
control approach, as defined in 
The Greenhouse Gas Protocol, A 
Corporate Accounting and Reporting 
Standard (Revised Edition), 2004. 
Therefore, emissions associated with 
our tenanted pubs and commercial 
property portfolio are not included in 
this statement as they are considered 
to be outside of our operational 
control. For ease of comparison the 
GHG statement is set out in two parts; 
an assessment breakdown for the 
head office only with the baseline year 
2013 and the total combined emission 

statement (head office and managed 
houses) with the baseline year of 2015 
ensuring year on year continuity as we 
grow our managed businesses.

When comparing the greenhouse gas 
statement against that reported for 
2015, a 4% reduction in emissions at 
our head office has been made. There 
has been an increase in the overall 
emissions across the entire estate due 
to the increased number of managed 
pubs under our direct operational 
control which opened and operated in 
2016. 

Our strategy is to grow the number of 
pubs in our managed business over 
the coming years and it is expected 
that with that the carbon emissions 
will continue to rise. As stated above, 
as we are better able to harness 
energy efficiencies where we have 
direct control we will do so to manage 
the growth in emissions. 

Assessment parameters
Head office only Head office and managed houses

Baseline year 2013 2015

Consolidation approach Operational control Operational control

Boundary summary Head office only
All facilities under operational control were 
included including our managed houses

Consistency with the financial 
statements

The use of the operational control approach causes a variation to those assets listed in 
our financial statements. The tenanted pubs listed on our balance sheet were not under 
our operational control and are therefore not included in our emissions table. However, 
approximately 273, (2015: 233) leased vehicles and 46 hire cars, which were under our 
operational control appear in our emissions table but not in our consolidated financial 
statements

Emission factor data source Defra (October 2015)

Assessment methodology The Greenhouse Gas Protocol and ISO 14064-1 (2006)

Materiality threshold Materiality was set at group level at 5%, with all facilities estimated to contribute >1% of 
total emissions included

Intensity ratio Emissions per full time equivalent employee (FTEE)

Corporate  
social 
responsibility
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Head office only

2016  2015 2014 2013

tCO2e
tCO2e/ 

FTEE tCO2e
tCO2e/ 

FTEE tCO2e
tCO2e/

FTEE tCO2e
tCO2e/

FTEE

Scope 1

Fuel combustion (natural gas, diesel 
and fleet vehicles) 1,528  2.84 1,454  2.86 1,403 2.84 1,380 2.94

Operation of facilities (refrigerants)  5  0.01 – – 6 0.01 9 0.02

1,533  2.85 1,454 2.86 1,409 2.85 1,389 2.96

Scope 2

Purchased electricity 388  0.72 444 0.87 481 0.97 450 0.96

Statutory total (Scope 1 & 2)* 1,921  3.57 1,898 3.73 1,890 3.82 1,839 3.92

Group metrics

Full time equivalent employee 
(FTEE) 538 509 494 470

Intensity ratios (gross emissions)

Tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent 
per full time equivalent employee 
(tCO2e/FTEE) 3.57 3.73 3.82 3.92

Head office and managed houses

2016 2015

tCO2e
tCO2e/ 

FTEE tCO2e
tCO2e/ 

FTEE

Scope 1

Fuel combustion (natural gas, diesel and fleet vehicles) 2,673 2.72 1,997 3.14

Operation of facilities (refrigerants) 126 0.13 77 0.12

2,799 2.85 2,074 3.26

Scope 2

Purchased electricity 2,525 2.57 1,244 1.95

Statutory total (Scope 1 & 2)* 5,324 5.43 3,318 5.21

Group metrics

Full time equivalent employee (FTEE) 981 637

Intensity ratios (gross emissions)

Tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent per full time equivalent 
employee (tCO2e/FTEE) 5.43 5.21

* Statutory carbon reporting disclosures required by the Companies Act 2006 (Strategic Report and Directors’ Report) Regulations 2013. Note: Items that 
did not meet the materiality threshold have been excluded, in particular, a small number of managed houses that had not been opened and trading for four 
weeks prior to the end of the financial year 
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Risks and 
uncertainties
The Board formally reviews the principal risks identified through our 
risk identification and evaluation process that is described in the 
Audit Committee report and ensures that these are appropriately 
managed by the executive management team.

The Board retains ultimate 
responsibility for the Group’s risk 
management framework, including 
the on-going monitoring and review 
of its effectiveness, however it has 
delegated responsibility for annually 
reviewing the overall effectiveness of 
the risk management programme to 
the Audit Committee, who formally 
report back to the Board. 

The internal audit function provides 
assurance to the Audit Committee 
on the effectiveness of the internal 
control procedures through 

completion of the annual internal 
audit plan, which takes into account 
current business risks.

The following table sets out the 
principal risks and uncertainties facing 
the Group and how we mitigate them. 
Our principal risks are those that are 
deemed by the Board as high risk, 
together with some medium risks 
which the Board deems should be 
disclosed due to their nature. This is not 
intended to be an exhaustive analysis of 
all the risks the Group may face.

Key:

Increase

Decrease

Unchanged

Considered as 
part of viability 
assessment
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Description and potential impact Mitigation processes

Strategy and business model

Regulation of the tied pub model
Due to the introduction of MRO during the current year the risk 
presented to the business of regulation has increased.

The new Statutory Code of Practice introduced by the Small 
Business, Enterprise and Employment Act 2015 came into effect 
on 21 July 2016. This includes a tenant’s right, under certain 
circumstances, to change the freely-negotiated commercial 
terms of their agreement to a new MRO compliant agreement, 
and is overseen by an independent Adjudicator. 

Although this removes some of the uncertainty in the sector, 
there remains a lack of clarity around some areas of the Code, 
leaving elements open to interpretation. The operation of 
the regime could have an impact upon our profitability, our 
operational strategy and our relationships with our publicans.
In addition, there is a risk that other changes to the regulations 
relating to the sale of alcohol could have an impact on the 
Group’s business and the ability of our publicans to operate 
their pubs. These risks include changes to licensing legislation, 
increases to alcohol duties imposed by the Government and the 
impact of social responsibility issues on the industry in general.

The Group already operated effective policies and procedures in 
order to satisfy the existing industry code of practice framework, 
and had recruited additional compliance resource to ensure 
that we could satisfy any additional requirements of the Pubs 
Code. Now that we have more certainty over the content of the 
Code, we can ensure that our resource is suitably directed to 
safeguard compliance.

In order to mitigate any potential impact to total income, the 
Group is developing the necessary operational flexibility and 
capabilities to enable it to apply alternative operating models to 
the pubs in the estate that could potentially be affected by MRO.

We also work closely with Local Authorities as necessary to ensure 
licensing requirements are dealt with whenever appropriate.

The Group is a member of a number of trade bodies and 
associations, is a contributor to the Drinkaware Trust, and works 
closely with these organisations to promote responsible drinking 
practices. Further details can be found in the corporate social 
responsibility section of our website at www.enterpriseinnsplc.com.

Litigation The Board believes there is no change to this risk.

The Group operates in a heavily regulated industry and may be 
involved in legal or statutory proceedings in relation to our pubs 
or publicans. The impact of such litigation may be immaterial in 
value but may result in harm to the Group’s reputation.

The Group employs an in-house solicitor and other specialists to 
ensure we comply with legislation and to manage any litigation 
with our publicans.

The Group will work with Local Authorities as necessary 
whenever any statutory issues are raised in relation to its pub 
estate. Where appropriate, the Group takes legal proceedings 
against publicans to ensure compliance with their agreements.

Health and safety
As our estate of managed houses has grown, the risk associated 
with health and safety has increased.

A health and safety incident could result in serious injury to the 
Group’s employees, publicans or customers.

The Group has developed an effective health and safety 
management system to ensure compliance with all legal 
duties placed on the organisation by health and safety law. All 
systems are subject to regular review with training provided as 
appropriate.

These measures have been expanded to ensure effective 
control of the managed house operations as well as continued 
appropriate focus on the issues facing the leased and tenanted 
estate.

The Group employs a health and safety manager and a fire 
safety manager to maintain the health and safety management 
system along with the identification and remediation of specific 
risks. It also operates a strategic and operational health and 
safety regime and operates within a Primary Authority Scheme 
with Westminster City Council, Milton Keynes Borough Council 
and also with the West Midlands Fire Service.

Implementation of strategy
This risk has decreased slightly from last year as the  
Group has established its various operating models  
and transitioned pubs in line with its plans.

There is a risk that there is not enough expertise, resource 
or time to build the necessary support infrastructure to 
successfully execute the strategy in the desired timeframe. 
In addition, there is a risk that assets are not allocated to the 
optimum segment, impacting the effectiveness of the strategy.

The Group is developing the necessary infrastructure to support 
the strategy, including the recruitment of high quality, skilled 
individuals into areas of the business for which it historically 
has less experience. The Group also uses outsourced resources 
where required. 

The Group strategy includes a diverse portfolio of operating 
approaches, including ensuring that we utilise external specialist 
operating experience, for example in the managed investments 
model, where their retail flair and capability in pubs with retail 
complexity and exceptional profit potential will allow us to 
optimise the value of such sites.
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Description and potential impact Mitigation processes

General economic conditions 
Following the European referendum result, and the uncertainty  
of its impact on the economy, this risk has increased.

The Group’s business operations are sensitive to economic 
conditions and the general economic outlook remains uncertain, 
especially post Brexit which could impact publican profitability 
due to decreased consumer spending or an increase in the 
underlying cost base of our publicans. In addition, changes 
in interest rates and other economic factors could lead to 
an increase in the Group’s weighted average costs of capital 
(WACC), reduced revenues or increased costs, all of which could 
impact our profitability and could lead to an impairment in the 
value of goodwill carried on the balance sheet.

The Group regularly monitors its key income streams and 
publicans’ performance to ensure the Group is competitively 
placed in the market, including regularly reviewing financial 
forecasts to assess the impact of economic conditions on its 
budget, strategic plans and its publicans. Careful consideration 
is given to all publicans’ requests for additional operational and 
financial support as well as assessing appropriate investment 
in the development of our pubs to ensure that we remain 
competitively placed in the market.

The Group continues to foster mutually beneficial relationships 
with key suppliers to ensure the impact of any price increases is 
minimised wherever possible.

The Group regularly reviews its WACC in line with the capital 
structure, and how it compares to its competitors. It annually 
reviews the carrying value of goodwill and would write down the 
value if it deemed an impairment was necessary. Any goodwill 
that is allocated to pubs that are disposed, is written off during 
the year.

Pub operations

People The Board believes there is no change to this risk.

The Group is reliant on the ability to attract, train and retain 
the best employees, publicans for its leased and tenanted 
pubs as well as managers and team members for its managed 
pubs. Failure to do this could impact on the Group’s strategic 
objectives.

The Group is committed to providing appropriate employee 
training, retention and reward policies and holds the prestigious 
accolade of ‘Gold’ status for Investors in People. As outlined in 
the corporate social responsibility section on pages 26 to 33, 
we conduct an annual staff engagement survey which is used 
to identify issues and opportunities to improve the working 
environment. 

The Group’s publican recruitment and training programme and 
its variety of tenancy and lease agreements are designed to 
attract the best quality people. We offer an industry leading 
range of flexible agreements, funding options, tailored deals for 
appropriate applicants and award winning training courses.

The Group has also established a robust programme for the 
recruitment, induction and training of all of the managers and 
team members in each of its managed pub operations.

Supply chain management The Board believes there is no change to this risk.

The Group places reliance on key suppliers and distributors to 
ensure that there is a continuous supply of drinks and other 
products to its publicans. Interruption or failure of these key 
suppliers and distributors could result in such products not being 
delivered to publicans on time.

The Group works closely with its key suppliers and distribution 
partners to ensure good working relationships, as well as 
taking reasonable steps to try to ensure that key suppliers and 
distributors have appropriate disaster recovery plans in place to 
maintain continuity of supply.

The Group also has its own contingency plans to minimise the 
disruption of any external interruption to supply.

Risks and 
uncertainties
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Description and potential impact Mitigation processes

Property management

Property valuations The Board believes there is no change to this risk.

Valuations of the Group’s property portfolio have historically 
been affected by general economic conditions and resulting 
downwards pressure on maintainable income streams. These 
circumstances could continue and therefore reduce the 
valuation of the portfolio over time. There is a risk that future 
changes in the UK property market, including the uncertainty 
following the vote to exit the EU persisting, and general 
economic conditions could impact the value of our portfolio 
and the ability to dispose of underperforming pubs and the 
realisations from such disposals. Property valuations also have 
an implication for the overall value of the Group and impact on 
financial covenants.

The Group ensures that every pub in its portfolio is valued 
annually at market value by qualified external and internal valuers 
in accordance with RICS Valuation Standards (8th Edition). 
These valuations comply with the requirements of International 
Financial Reporting Standards. The valuation this year has led 
to a marginal uplift in the book values of the pubs recorded in 
property, plant and equipment.

While the valuers have noted a degree of abnormal uncertainty 
in the property market following the vote to exit the EU, they 
have confirmed that there has been no material impact to-date 
and the market has remained strong post the vote.

Our segmentation tool now guides our investment decisions, 
allowing us to direct investment to the best returns. 

We invested £74 million on developing and improving our pubs 
during the year.

Capital structure

Liquidity risk
The Board believes through the proactive management  
of refinancing events that this risk has reduced relative  
to last year.

The Group has a flexible financing structure comprising bonds 
issued from the Unique securitisation (securitised bonds), 
corporate bonds issued by the Company and bank borrowings. 

The Group makes quarterly payments of interest on the Unique 
bonds, and amounts of principal on the two amortising bonds. 
The corporate bonds are non-amortising, and the next scheduled 
maturity at 30 September 2016 was £350.5 million of bonds due 
in 2018.

The bank borrowing facility of £138 million at the balance sheet 
date was £55 million drawn.

The primary liquidity risks are the requirement to meet all 
on-going finance costs, repay the principal amounts of the 
securitised borrowings as they amortise and the corporate 
bonds as they fall due, ensuring there are sufficient funding 
facilities in place to enable the business to meet all cash 
flow requirements as they fall due and meeting the financial 
covenants associated with the financing structure.

The Board regularly reviews detailed financial forecasts 
to ensure there is sufficient cash available to meet the 
requirements of the Group. These reviews include the ability to 
meet restricted payment conditions in the securitised bonds in 
order that cash can be released by the payment of dividends 
through the securitisation structure to the Company.

There are a number of options available to the Group to manage 
its financing commitments, including the disposal of pubs, 
reducing capital expenditure on the estate as well as raising new 
capital through a bank facility or issuing new corporate bonds. 

Throughout the year the Group tests all of the financial 
covenants and forecasts which are prepared during the 
budgeting process. The Board regularly reviews detailed financial 
forecasts of the Group to ensure there is sufficient headroom on 
all covenants. 

Subsequent to the year end, on 24 October 2016 the Group 
concluded the arrangement of a new bank facility of £120 million 
which extends to 2020, to replace its existing facility. In addition, 
on 4 November 2016 it completed a refinancing of £250 million 
of the outstanding £350.5 million corporate bonds due in 2018. 
The new £250 million bonds are non-amortising, and are due in 
2022.
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Risks and 
uncertainties

Viability statement
In accordance with the revised UK Corporate Governance 
Code, the directors have assessed the prospects of the 
Group over a period significantly longer than 12 months 
from the approval of the financial statements. 

The Board has concluded that the most relevant time 
period for this review should be the three year period of 
the normal business forecasting cycle; however, given that 
in the prior year the Group announced its strategic plan 
that will evolve over a five year period and the occurrence 
of specific financing events over that same period, the 
assessment has been carried out over the remaining four 
year period to 30 September 2020.

The Board has continued to review its progress against its 
strategic plans during the year, and evolved these plans 
where opportunities and the market have suggested it 
is necessary. In addition, as in prior years, the Group has 
continued to assess the principal risks and mitigating 
factors that could impact the Group. The current and future 
risks, controls and assurances available have been fully 
analysed and documented, resulting in a clear picture of 
the risk profile across the whole of the business. This has 
been reviewed and the principal risks, which are detailed 
on pages 34 to 38, agreed by the Board. 

Those risks that could affect the future viability of the 
Group over the next four years were identified and the 
resilience of the Group to the occurrence of these risks in 
severe yet plausible scenarios has been evaluated.

The directors have specifically considered the current debt 
facilities maturing within the period and have concluded 
that they have a reasonable expectation that these will 
be adequately refinanced prior to being repayable such 
that the Group will be able to continue in operation and 
meet its liabilities as they fall due over the four year period 
assessed.

Going concern
The directors have considered the Group’s financial 
resources including a review of the medium-term financial 
plan, which includes a review of the Group’s cash flow 
forecasts for the period of at least 12 months from the 
date of approval of these financial statements along with 
the principal risks and uncertainties.

Based on the outcome of the above considerations the 
directors have a reasonable expectation that the Group has 
adequate resources to continue in operational existence 
for the foreseeable future. For this reason the directors 
continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in 
preparing the financial statements.

Description and potential impact Mitigation processes

Information technology

Systems failure The Board believes there is no change to this risk.

The Group’s daily operations are reliant on its information 
technology systems for accounting, reporting and 
communication. There is a risk of serious disruption if these 
systems fail for an extended period of time.

A thorough business continuity plan is in place to ensure the 
business could continue to function in the event of a major 
systems failure. This plan is tested in full at least annually. This 
plan and testing has been extended in order to incorporate the 
managed house businesses.

There are comprehensive controls in place to protect information 
technology systems, including anti-viral software and the back 
up and off-site storage of data.

Cyber risk The Board believes there is no change to this risk.

Increasing levels of cyber-crime represent a threat to every 
business with the potential to cause a loss of system availability, 
which could have a consequential financial loss.

The threats facing IT are regularly monitored as part of the 
on-going review by the IT Steering Committee, which regularly 
reports to the Executive Management Group.

IT disaster recovery and business continuity plans exist and 
are tested regularly to ensure the business could continue to 
function in the event of a major incident.
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STRATEGIC REPORT APPROVAL
The Strategic Report, on pages 1 to 39, incorporates the Chairman’s statement, at a glance, our market, our business 
model, our strategy, the Chief Executive’s review, KPIs, the financial review, the corporate social responsibility report, 
the risks and uncertainties and the viability and going concern statements.

By order of the Board

L Togher 
Company Secretary 
14 November 2016
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Directors’ 
report

The directors submit the statutory financial statements for 
the Group for the year ended 30 September 2016.

The Governance report on pages 46 to 50 and the 
corporate social responsibility report (with regard to 
information about the employment of disabled persons, 
employee involvement, share schemes and greenhouse 
gas emissions) are also incorporated into this report by 
reference.

The Company has chosen, in accordance with section 414 
C(11) of the Companies Act 2006 to include the disclosure 
of likely future developments in the strategic report (see 
pages 1 to 39).

Results and dividends
The Group’s profit for the year, after taxation, amounted to 
£71 million (2015: loss of £65 million). 

The directors are not recommending the payment of 
any dividend on its ordinary shares for the year ended 
30 September 2016 (2015: nil) but will consider future 
dividend policy in the light of results from the business 
going forward.

Share capital
As at 30 September 2016, the Company’s issued share 
capital was 544,932,627 ordinary shares of 2.5 pence each 
as set out in note 29 to the accounts on page 120.

Authority of the directors to allot shares
The Company was authorised by shareholders at the 
Annual General Meeting (AGM) held on 11 February 2016 
to allot shares and to grant rights to subscribe for, or 
convert securities into, shares up to a maximum nominal 
amount of £8,432,957.24. 

This authority will expire at the 2017 AGM and the 
directors will be seeking a new authority for the directors 
to allot shares, and to grant subscription and conversion 
rights, to ensure that the directors continue to have the 
flexibility to act in the best interests of shareholders, when 
opportunities arise, by issuing new shares or granting such 
rights. There are no current plans to issue new shares 
except in connection with employee share schemes and 
on conversion of the convertible bonds.

Purchase of own shares by the 
Company
The Company was authorised by shareholders at the AGM 
held on 11 February 2016 to purchase up to a maximum 
of 14.99% of issued share capital (excluding treasury 
shares) as at 7 December 2015 in the market. The price 
per ordinary share that the Company may pay is set at 
a minimum amount (excluding expenses) of 2.5 pence 
per ordinary share and a maximum amount (excluding 
expenses) of the higher of: (i) 5% over the average of the 
previous five business days’ middle market prices; and (ii) 
the higher of the price of the last independent trade and 
the highest current independent bid on the trading venue 
where the purchase is carried out. Under the ongoing 
share buyback programme, 11,044,808 shares with a 
nominal value of 2.5 pence were purchased and cancelled 
under this authority during the period under review for  
£10 million, representing 2.2% of issued share capital. This 
authority will expire at the 2017 AGM and the directors will 
be seeking a new authority for the Company to purchase 
its ordinary shares, which will only be exercised if market 
and financial conditions make it advantageous to do so. 
Further details are set out in the explanatory notes to the 
Notice convening the AGM on pages 143 and 144.

Treasury shares and the Employee 
Benefit Trust
As at 30 September 2016, the Company held 50,000,000 
shares in Treasury as set out in note 29 to the accounts 
on page 120. There has been no change to the number of 
shares held in Treasury during the period under review.

In addition, 6,851,312 shares are held by the Company’s 
Employee Benefit Trust and movements during the year 
are set out in note 29 to the accounts on page 120. These 
shares are held to satisfy awards made under the various 
incentive and employee share schemes, details of which 
are set out in note 30 to the accounts on pages 120  
to 123.

Issue of shares
Subject to the provisions of the Companies Act 2006 
relating to authority to allot shares and pre-emption 
rights, and any resolution of the Company in a general 
meeting, all unissued shares of the Company shall be at 
the disposal of the directors and they may allot (with or 
without conferring a right of renunciation), grant options 
over or otherwise dispose of them to such persons, at 
such times and on such terms as they think proper.
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Material shareholdings
As at 30 September 2016, the Company was aware of the following interests of 3% or more in the Company’s ordinary 
share capital:

Company

Number of 
ordinary 

shares

Percentage of 
voting rights 
of the issued 
share capital

Standard Life Investments Ltd 73,092,085 14.77

Prudential Group (M&G) 67,904,490 13.72

Glenview Capital Management LLC 62,207,216 12.57

BlackRock Inc 35,639,347 7.20

Dimensional Fund Advisors 23,480,162 4.74

Subsequent to the year end and up to the date of this report, there have been no significant changes.

Directors
Biographical details of the directors currently serving on 
the Board are given on pages 44 and 45. The interests of 
the directors in the Company’s shares, along with details 
of directors’ share options are contained in the directors’ 
remuneration report on pages 58 to 72. There have been 
no changes in the interests of the directors between 
the balance sheet date and the date of approval of the 
accounts. 

Audit information
The directors confirm that, so far as they are aware, there 
is no relevant audit information (as defined in section 418 
of the Companies Act 2006) of which the Group’s auditor 
is unaware and that all directors have taken all the steps 
they ought to have taken as a director to make themselves 
aware of any relevant audit information and to establish 
that the Group’s auditor is aware of that information. 
This confirmation is given and should be interpreted in 
accordance with the provisions of section 418 of the 
Companies Act 2006.

Political donations
During the year the Group has not made any political 
donations and intends to continue its policy of not doing 
so for the foreseeable future.

Going concern
The directors have adopted the going concern basis of 
accounting in preparing the financial statements, and 
their going concern considerations are included within the 
strategic report on page 38. 

Post balance sheet events
Subsequent to the year end the Company has purchased 
additional shares as part of its ongoing share buyback 
programme, replaced its revolving credit facility and 
partially refinanced its 2018 corporate bonds. Additional 
detail can be found in note 34 to the accounts.

Financial instruments and treasury
The financial position of the Group, its cash flows, debt 
and borrowing facilities are set out in the strategic report 
on pages 1 to 39 and in the financial statements and notes 
to the accounts on pages 74 to 128. In addition, details of 
the factors likely to affect the Group’s future development 
and performance are set out in the risks and uncertainties 
section on pages 34 to 38. Further details of our policy on 
financial instruments and capital risks and management 
are set out in notes 23 and 24 to the accounts on pages 
107 to 115.

Annual General Meeting
The AGM will be held on 9 February 2017 at 11.00 a.m. 
at the registered office of the Company at 3 Monkspath 
Hall Road, Solihull, West Midlands B90 4SJ. The Notice 
convening the AGM, and an explanation of the resolutions 
to be put to the meeting, are set out on pages 138 to 
142. A copy is also available on the website. The directors 
consider that all of the proposed resolutions are in the best 
interests of the Company and its shareholders as a whole. 
It is the directors’ recommendation that you support the 
proposed resolutions and vote in favour of them, as each 
of the directors intend to do.

Additional information
Set out below is a summary of certain provisions of the 
Company’s current Articles of Association (the Articles) 
and applicable provisions of the Companies Act 2006 (the 
Companies Act). More detailed information can be found 
in the Articles and the Companies Act.

Articles of Association
The Articles (adopted in substitution for and to the 
exclusion of all existing articles by a special resolution 
passed on 20 January 2011) may only be amended 
by special resolution at a general meeting of the 
shareholders. A copy of the Articles is available on our 
website. 
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Change of control
In respect of directors’ remuneration, in the event of 
a change of control of the Company or other relevant 
corporate event, unvested share awards will usually vest. 
In the case of any LTIP award for which the performance 
period has not ended, the number of shares in respect of 
which the award vests shall be determined by applying 
the performance conditions and, unless the Remuneration 
Committee determines otherwise, time prorating by 
reference to the period from grant to early vesting as a 
proportion of 36 months. Any LTIP award for which the 
performance period has ended will vest in respect of 
all the shares subject to it, subject to satisfaction of the 
performance conditions. Deferred Share Awards shall vest 
in respect of all the shares subject to them.

Awards under the Company’s all-employee share plans 
will vest early in the event of a change of control of the 
Company in accordance with the rules of those plans.

If a demerger, delisting, special dividend or other event 
is proposed which, in the opinion of the Committee 
would affect the price of shares in the Company, the 
Remuneration Committee may permit awards under the 
LTIP and Deferred Share Awards to vest early in whole or 
in part.

In relation to significant agreements, all agreements 
in relation to bank borrowings, convertible bonds and 
corporate bonds, to which the Company is party, contain 
provisions that allow the counterparties to terminate 
funding to the Company in certain circumstances where 
there has been a change of control of the Company. These 
are detailed within the financial instruments note to the 
accounts on page 114.

Rights and obligations attaching to 
shares
The rights and obligations attaching to the ordinary shares 
are set out in the Articles.

Voting rights attaching to shares
On a show of hands, every member who is present in 
person or by proxy shall have one vote. On a poll, every 
member who is present in person or by proxy shall have 
one vote for every share of which they are the holder.

Where shares are held by the Trustee of the Employee 
Benefit Trust and the voting rights attached to such shares 
are not directly exercisable by the employees, it is the 
Company’s practice that such rights are not exercised by 
the Trustee. Shares purchased by employees, along with 
matching shares, held in a SIP Trust are capable of being 
voted through a direction to the Trustee by the relevant 
employee.

Under the Companies Act, members are entitled to 
appoint a proxy, who need not be a member of the 
Company, to exercise all or any of their rights to attend 
and to speak and vote at a general meeting. A member 
may appoint more than one proxy in relation to a general 
meeting provided that each proxy is appointed to exercise 
the rights attached to a different share or shares held by 
that member. A member that is a corporation may appoint 
one or more individuals to act on its behalf at a general 
meeting as a corporate representative.

Restrictions on voting rights attaching 
to shares
No member shall, unless the directors otherwise 
determine, exercise any voting rights either personally or by 
proxy at a general meeting if any call or other sum presently 
payable by him/her to the Company in respect of any share 
or shares remains unpaid or in respect of shares where a 
person has been served with a disclosure notice and has 
failed to provide the Company with information concerning 
interests in those shares. The Company is not aware of any 
arrangements between shareholders that may result in a 
restriction on voting rights attaching to shares.

Deadlines for exercising voting rights 
attaching to shares
Votes are exercisable at a general meeting of the 
Company in respect of which the business being voted 
upon is being heard. Votes may be exercised in person, 
by proxy, or by corporate representatives (in relation to 
corporate members). The Articles provide a deadline for 
the submission of proxy forms (electronically or by paper) 
of not less than 48 hours before the time appointed for the 
holding of the meeting or the adjourned meeting.

Shares in uncertificated form
Directors may determine that shares may be held in 
uncertificated form and title to such shares may be 
transferred by means of a relevant system or that shares 
should cease to be so held and transferred. 

Variation of rights attaching to shares
The Articles provide that rights attached to any class of 
shares may be varied with the written consent of the 
holders of not less than three-quarters in nominal value of 
the issued shares, or with the sanction of an extraordinary 
resolution passed at a separate general meeting of the 
holders of those shares. At every such separate general 
meeting, the quorum shall be two persons holding or 
representing by proxy at least one-third in nominal value 
of the issued shares (calculated excluding any shares held 
in treasury). The rights conferred upon the holders of any 
shares shall not, unless otherwise expressly provided in 
the rights attaching to those shares, be deemed to be 
varied by the creation or issue of further shares ranking 
pari passu with them.
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Transfer of shares
There are no restrictions on the transfer of ordinary shares 
in the Company other than:

• restrictions which may from time to time be imposed 
by laws and regulations (for example, insider trading 
laws);

• restrictions pursuant to the Company’s share dealing 
code whereby the directors and certain employees 
require approval of the Company to deal in the 
Company’s shares; and

• where a person with an interest of at least 0.25% in the 
Company’s certificated shares has been served with a 
disclosure notice and has failed to provide the Company 
with information concerning interests in those shares.

The Company is not aware of any arrangements between 
shareholders that may result in a restriction on the transfer 
of ordinary shares.

Dividends and distributions
Subject to the provisions of the Companies Act, the 
Company may by ordinary resolution from time to time 
declare dividends not exceeding an amount recommended 
by the directors. The directors may pay interim dividends 
whenever the financial position of the Company, in the 
opinion of the Board, justifies such payment. The Board 
may withhold payment of all or any part of any dividend or 
other monies payable in respect of the Company’s shares 
from a person with an interest of at least 0.25% if such a 
person has been served with a disclosure notice and has 
failed to provide the Company with information concerning 
interests in those shares required to be provided by the 
Companies Act.

Appointment and replacement of 
directors
Unless determined by ordinary resolution of the Company, 
the number of directors shall not be less than two but 
is not subject to a maximum number. While a director is 
not required to hold any shares in the Company by way 
of qualification, the Company has adopted shareholding 
guidelines for executive directors which require them to 
build up and retain a holding of shares. Executive directors 
are expected to build up the required shareholding by the 
fifth anniversary of them joining the Board. Further details 
on directors’ shareholdings are contained in the directors’ 
remuneration report on page 69.

The Board may appoint any person to be a director and 
such director shall hold office only until the next AGM, 
when he or she shall then be eligible for reappointment 
by the shareholders. The Articles provide that, at each 
AGM, all those directors who have been in office for three 
years or more since their election or last re-election shall 
retire from office. However, in accordance with the UK 

Corporate Governance Code, all directors of the Company 
are subject to annual re-election.

Further details of the directors’ service contracts can be 
found in the directors’ remuneration report on page 71.

Powers of directors
Subject to the Articles, the Companies Act and any 
directions given by special resolution, the business of the 
Company is managed by the Board who may exercise all 
of the powers of the Company to, for example: borrow 
money; mortgage or charge any of its undertakings, 
property and uncalled capital; and issue debentures and 
other securities, whether outright or as collateral security 
for any debt, liability or obligation of the Company.

The Company was authorised by shareholders at the 
AGM held on 11 February 2016 to allot, issue and make 
market purchases of the Company’s ordinary shares. This 
authority will expire at the 2017 AGM and the directors will 
be seeking a new authority for the Company to allot, issue 
and make market purchases of the Company’s ordinary 
shares. Further details are set out in the explanatory notes 
to the Notice convening the AGM on pages 143 and 144.

Directors’ indemnities
The Articles permit the Board to grant the directors 
indemnities in relation to their duties as directors, including 
third party indemnity provisions (within the meaning of 
the Companies Act) in respect of any liabilities incurred by 
them in connection with any negligence, default, breach of 
duty or breach of trust in relation to the Company. No such 
indemnities have been granted.

Compensation for loss of office
There are no agreements between the Company and 
its directors or employees providing for compensation 
for loss of office or employment that occurs as a result 
of a takeover bid. Details regarding change of control 
provisions in respect of share plan awards and other 
related agreements are included within the directors’ 
remuneration report. Further details of the directors’ 
service contracts can be found in the directors’ 
remuneration report on page 71.

By order of the Board

L Togher 
Company Secretary
14 November 2016

Registered Company name: Enterprise Inns plc 
Registered Company number: 2562808
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Board of  
directors

Simon Townsend 
Chief Executive Officer
Appointed to the Board on 1 October 2000 and to  
CEO on 6 February 2014.

Simon, 54, joined the Company in February 1999, was appointed to the Board in October 
2000 and appointed as Chief Executive Officer on 6 February 2014. He has worked in the 
pub and leisure industry for over 30 years in various sales, marketing, commercial and 
operational roles, previously with Whitbread PLC, Allied Domecq PLC, The Rank Group 
Plc and Marston, Thompson & Evershed PLC. He is currently Vice Chairman of the BBPA.

Robert Walker 
Chairman of the Board and Chairman of the  
Nomination Committee
Appointed to the Board on 9 February 2012.

Robert, 71, spent over 30 years with Procter & Gamble, McKinsey and, finally, PepsiCo, 
where he was responsible for the company’s beverage operations in Europe, the Middle 
East, Africa and Asia. He is currently Chairman of Travis Perkins plc and Eagle TopCo 
Limited. He was previously Chairman of WH Smith PLC, Williams Lea Group Limited, BCA 
Europe Limited and Americana International Holdings Limited. He was also Group Chief 
Executive of Severn Trent Plc and has held a number of FTSE 100/250 Board appointments 
with Tate & Lyle, BAA, Severn Trent, Signet Group, Thomson Travel and Wolseley.

Neil Smith 
Chief Financial Officer
Appointed to the Board on 20 January 2011.

Neil, 51, a chartered accountant, joined the Company in January 2011. He was previously 
Finance Director of Compass Group UK & Ireland and Chief Financial Officer of Telewest 
Global Inc. He has held senior finance positions with Virgin Media and Somerfield plc.
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Peter Baguley 
Independent Non-Executive Director 
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
Appointed to the Board on 31 January 2013.

Peter, 63, is an independent consultant providing strategic property advice to retailers 
and private equity companies. He has held a number of senior management positions 
in the UK retail sector with a strong focus upon property. He was the leader of the 
group property functions at both J Sainsbury plc and Boots plc, was Director of Investor 
Relations at Boots plc and a non-executive director at Atrium European Real Estate, a 
company listed in Amsterdam.

David Maloney 
Senior Independent Director 
Chairman of the Audit Committee
Appointed to the Board on 10 July 2008.

David, 61, is currently Chairman of Brandon Hire Ltd and Stock Spirits Group PLC. He 
previously held non-executive directorships at Cineworld plc, Carillion plc, Micro Focus 
International plc and Virgin Mobile plc and was Chairman of Reed & Mackay Travel Ltd 
and Hoseasons Holidays Ltd. His executive roles have included those as Chief Financial 
Officer of Le Meridien Hotels and Resorts, Thomson Travel Group and Preussag Airlines 
and Group Finance Director of Avis Europe plc. He is also a fellow of the Chartered 
Institute of Management Accountants.

Adam Fowle 
Independent Non-Executive Director
Appointed to the Board on 6 February 2014.

Adam, 57, has over 20 years’ licensed retail experience. He is currently occupying the 
role of Chief Executive at Tesco Hospitality. He was previously Chairman of Bramwell Pub 
Company and prior to that Chief Executive Officer of Mitchells & Butlers plc and retail 
director at Sainsbury’s Supermarkets Limited. Adam has also held senior positions at 
Bass Leisure.

Marisa Cassoni 
Independent Non-Executive Director
Appointed to the Board on 1 April 2015.

Marisa, 64, is a chartered accountant and finance professional with 40 years of 
experience. She was previously Finance Director of the UK Division of Prudential Group, 
the Post Office (subsequently Royal Mail), and the John Lewis Partnership. Marisa is 
currently a non-executive director of AO World plc, Skipton Group Holdings Limited and 
The People’s Operator plc, where she chairs the Audit Committees; she also sat on the 
Economics Affairs Committee of the CBI and the Accounting Standards Board and is 
currently a panel member of the Competition and Markets Authority.
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Governance 
report

Letter from the Chairman of the  
Board of Directors
Dear Shareholders,
On behalf of the Board, I am pleased to present the 
governance report for the year ended 30 September 2016. 
Our approach to corporate governance is set out in this 
report which also provides the information required by the 
UK Corporate Governance Code.

As I confirmed last year, following the appointment 
of Marisa Cassoni, we consider the Board has the 
appropriate skills and experience to challenge and support 
the execution of the Company’s five year strategy which 
was presented in May 2015.

In 2016 we conducted an internal Board evaluation, which 
concluded that the Board is operating at a high level. The 
size, composition and mix of skills is appropriate, key 
issues are confronted quickly, processes are efficient 
and appropriate, and the openness, transparency and 
leadership of the executive management was particularly 
noted. 

During the year, we continued our initiative of partnering 
individual non-executive directors (including myself) with 
the key businesses and executives below Board level. This 
mentoring process ensures that non-executive directors 
stay close to the businesses as the strategy evolves. 
We also continued with our programme of holding Board 
meetings on the road which has become an integral part of 
the cycle of Board meetings and provides the opportunity 
to meet with key suppliers and advisers, in the operating 
regions and in new business areas.

So, we are 20 months into our ambitious five year strategy 
to change the profile of the estate and the Board continues 
to monitor, challenge, and encourage the successful 
execution of the five year plan. Each member of the senior 
executive team attended Board meetings to update on the 
delivery of key parts of the strategic plan. Going forward, 
the Board will continue to closely monitor the execution of 
the strategy. 

Robert Walker 
Chairman

Compliance with the UK  
Corporate Governance Code 2014
The UK Corporate Governance Code 2014 (Code) sets 
out guidance in the form of main principles and specific 
provisions on how companies should be directed and 
controlled to follow good governance practice. The rules 
of the Financial Conduct Authority (FCA) require listed 
companies incorporated in the UK to disclose, in relation 
to the Code, how they have applied those principles 
and whether they have complied with the provisions 
throughout the financial year.

The Company reviews its compliance with the Code 
regularly and considers that it has fully complied with 
the provisions of the Code that are applicable to it for the 
whole of the year ended 30 September 2016.

The Audit Committee report on pages 51 to 56, the 
Nomination Committee report on page 57 and the 
directors’ remuneration report on pages 58 to 72 are also 
incorporated into this report by reference. For further 
details on the Company’s compliance with the Code and 
the terms of reference for each of its Committees, see the 
Company’s website (www.enterpriseinnsplc.com).

Leadership
Role of the Board
The Board has a collective responsibility for the overall 
control and effective oversight of the Group and its 
business and to promote the long-term success of the 
Company for its shareholders. Its role includes reviewing 
and approving key policies and decisions of the Company, 
particularly in relation to Group strategy and operating 
plans, governance and compliance with laws and 
regulations, business development, major investments and 
disposals and, through its Committees, financial reporting 
and risk management.

The Board has established a schedule of matters reserved 
for Board decision. This schedule details key aspects of the 
affairs of the Company which the Board does not delegate, 
including key strategic, operational and financial issues. 
This schedule is reviewed annually and can be found on 
the Company’s website.

www.enterpriseinnsplc.com
Stock code: ETI
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The Board delegates to management the day-to-day 
operation of the business, subject to appropriate risk 
parameters. Board meetings are scheduled to coincide 
with key events in the Company’s financial calendar, 
including interim and final results and the AGM. Other 
meetings during the year will review the Company’s 
strategy and budgets for the next financial year and the 
Company’s key risks as well as reviewing each of the 
main operating functions including: financial, commercial, 
operational, managed houses and commercial property.

Board Committees
Subject to those matters reserved for its decision, 
the Board has delegated to its Audit, Nomination and 
Remuneration Committees certain authorities. The 
terms of reference for each of the Audit, Nomination and 
Remuneration Committees are reviewed regularly and 
published on the Company’s website. Separate reports 
for each of these Committees are included in this Annual 
Report and Accounts from page 51.

Role of the Chairman
Robert Walker is the Chairman and is responsible for the 
leadership and effectiveness of the Board, taking into 
account the interests of stakeholders and promoting 
the highest standards of governance. A summary of the 
Chairman’s responsibilities has been agreed by the Board, is 
set out in writing and is available on the Company’s website. 
In accordance with the Code, the Chairman met with the 
non-executive directors six times during the year, without 
the executive directors being present, to discuss in detail 
matters which they believed to be relevant for the purposes 
of the strategic business review, including key operational 
and financial issues, and the performance of the CEO. In 
2016 the Chairman conducted the internal Board evaluation 
and delivered feedback arising from the evaluation process.

Role of the Senior Independent Director 
(SID)
David Maloney is the SID. He is available to shareholders, 
provides a sounding board to the Chairman and 
serves as an intermediary for the other directors if 
necessary. The SID’s role includes responsibility for the 
Chairman’s appraisal and succession. A summary of the 
responsibilities of the SID has been agreed by the Board, 
is set out in writing and is available on the Company’s 
website. In compliance with the Code, the SID met with 
the other non-executive directors during the year in a 
forum that did not include the Chairman or the executive 
directors. 

Role of the Chief Executive Officer (CEO)
Simon Townsend is the CEO. The CEO is responsible 
for the preparation, evaluation and implementation of 
the Company’s strategic goals and in leading the senior 
management team. The role is distinct and separate to that 
of the Chairman and clear divisions of accountability and 
responsibility have been agreed by the Board, are set out 
in writing and are available on the Company’s website.

Role of the Company Secretary
Loretta Togher is the Company Secretary. The role of the 
Company Secretary is to develop, implement and sustain 
good governance practices. This includes supporting 
the Chairman and non-executive directors as necessary, 
managing Board and Committee meetings, facilitating the 
induction of new directors, ensuring appropriate directors’ 
and officers’ insurance is in place and that the Group 
is compliant with statutory and regulatory governance 
requirements. The written responsibilities of the Company 
Secretary have been agreed by the Board, are set out in 
writing and are available on the Company’s website.

Independence of directors
The Board has a strong independent element and at the 
date of this report currently comprises, in addition to the 
Chairman, two executive directors and four non-executive 
directors. The Chairman and all of the non-executive 
directors throughout the year are considered to be 
independent in character and judgement; they satisfied 
the criteria in the Code on appointment and continue to 
satisfy the criteria. The non-executives have a wide range 
of skills and experience; they constructively challenge 
management; help develop the Company’s strategy and 
have satisfied themselves as to the integrity of the Group’s 
financial information, controls and risk management 
strategy. Further information about how they have 
achieved this can be found in the Audit Committee report 
on pages 51 to 56 and the directors’ remuneration 
report on pages 58 to 72.

All directors may take independent professional advice 
at the Company’s expense. There is a formal written 
procedure, available on the Company’s website, 
concerning independent professional advice and setting 
out clear guidelines which have been agreed by the Board.

At the date of this report David Maloney has been on 
the Board for over eight years and his reappointment is 
subject to a rigorous review. Peter Baguley, Adam Fowle 
and Marisa Cassoni have been on the board for four, three 
and two years respectively and their reappointment is also 
subject to rigorous review. The Board believes that David 
Maloney, Peter Baguley, Adam Fowle and Marisa Cassoni 
continue to display all of the qualities of independence as 
set out in the Code.
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Attendance at scheduled Board and 
Committee meetings during the 
year ended 30 September 2016

Board  
meetings

Audit  
Committee

(ii)

Nomination 
Committee 

(i), (iv)

Remuneration 
Committee 

(i), (iii)

Number of scheduled meetings held 6 3 3 3

Robert Walker 6 3 3 3

Simon Townsend 6 3 3 3

Neil Smith 6 3 2 2

David Maloney 6 3 3 3

Peter Baguley 5 2 3 2

Adam Fowle 6 3 3 3

Marisa Cassoni 6 3 3 3

(i) Additional meetings of the Nomination and Remuneration Committees were held outside those scheduled meetings referred to above to deal with 
matters arising as required, and were attended by all members of the Committees.

(ii) Robert Walker, Simon Townsend and Neil Smith attended meetings of the Audit Committee by invitation.

(iii) Simon Townsend and Neil Smith attended meetings of the Remuneration Committee, or part thereof, by invitation as requested.

(iv) The executive directors have attended meetings of the Nomination Committee by invitation.

We recognised that, subject to re-election at the AGM in 
February 2017, David Maloney will have served nine years 
on the Board in July 2017. After careful consideration, 
and mindful of the balance between executive and non-
executive members, David’s knowledge and experience, 
the wider board composition and the pathway to delivery 
of our 2020 strategy it is not the Board’s intention to invite 
him to step down as a non-executive director at the point 
he will have served nine years. It is David’s intention in 
July 2017 to stand down as the SID and Chairman of the 
Audit Committee but to remain a non-executive director, 
and subject to annual re-election. Part of our long-term 
succession planning was the appointment of Marisa 
Cassoni, who has the requisite skills to chair the Audit 
Committee and has had the opportunity of being an active 
Board member and member of the Audit Committee 
before she takes up the additional role and responsibility 
of chairing the Audit Committee in July 2017. At that time 
we also envisage Adam Fowle, who does not chair a 
committee, to be nominated as the SID.

Effectiveness
Meetings and attendance
The Board held six scheduled meetings in the year under 
review. In addition, a strategic business review was held 
‘off site’ at which high level strategic issues, including 
future business direction and its financial and operational 
implications, were reviewed and debated. The Board 
has an agreed approach for dealing with conflicts of 
interest in relation to matters which are scheduled for 
Board consideration, although no such conflicts arose 
during the year under review. If directors are unable to 
attend meetings in person then they are consulted prior 
to the meeting and their views made known to the other 
directors and/or they may attend the meeting or part 
thereof by telephone or other conference facility.

A monthly ‘board pack’ is prepared at the end of each 
financial period which includes an update on key 
performance targets, trading performance against budget 
and includes detailed financial data and analysis including a 
review of applicable financial covenants. Board papers are 
generally circulated seven days prior to meetings to ensure 
directors have sufficient time to review papers ahead of 
the meeting. Attendance at scheduled meetings is set out 
below:
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Training and development
The Company’s directors have a wide range of expertise 
as well as significant experience in strategic, financial and 
operational matters. New directors receive a personalised 
induction programme designed to develop their 
knowledge and understanding of the Group, its culture and 
operations.

All directors have access to management and to the 
advice of the Company Secretary, who regularly updates 
the Board on material governance and compliance issues.

The training and development needs of directors are 
reviewed and assessed by the Chairman as part of the 
annual Board performance evaluation process.

Business mentoring by non-executives
The Board continues with the allocation of operating 
sectors and central functions to non-executive directors, 
including the Chairman. This practice is now firmly 
embedded in the Board culture so that each year non-
executive directors are allocated an operating sector and/
or central functions such as property, commercial and 
new business. The non-executive director then organises 
regular contact, meetings and visits throughout the year 
with his/her respective assignment. Assignments are 
regularly rotated so that the benefit of the mentoring 
programme continues to be relevant.

This initiative continues to be highly successful; in effect 
integrating the Board more closely with the business, its 
field operations, new business and commercial activities 
across all geographic regions of the estate.

Board evaluation
As referred to above, during the year the Board conducted 
an internal evaluation of its effectiveness. This evaluation 
took the form of written questionnaires followed up by 
individual discussion between the Chairman and the Board 
members. The summary of the outcome was presented 
to the Board for discussion. Whilst satisfied the Board is 
effective, it was recommended and agreed that during 
the period of intense activity and change in the business, 
as it works to deliver the strategic plan by 2020, that 
the executive management group members’ regular 
attendance at the Board meetings would be expanded 
to make more detailed and more frequent presentations 
on their areas of responsibility and execution against the 
strategic plan.

The CEO is responsible for regularly reviewing other 
executive directors’ performance against objectives and 
the CEO’s performance is assessed by the Chairman in 
consultation with the non-executive directors. In addition, 
the Remuneration Committee regularly reviews executive 
director performance in connection with their personal 
performance objectives. The Chairman’s performance 
is appraised by the SID in consultation with the non-

executive directors, taking into account the views of the 
executive directors, and the non-executive directors’ 
performance is reviewed by the Chairman. As a result 
of these individual reviews, it is considered that the 
performance of each director continues to be effective and 
that each director demonstrates sufficient commitment to 
their role. Consequently, the Chairman can confirm that 
each director is suitable for re-election at the forthcoming 
AGM.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for proactively 
reviewing and refreshing the Board’s composition and 
further information about the roles and responsibilities of 
this Committee can be found on page 57. 

Election of directors
The directors comply with the requirements of the Code 
and submit themselves for re-election every year, if 
they wish to continue serving and are considered by the 
Board to be eligible. Accordingly, the whole Board will be 
proposed for re-election at this year’s AGM.

Service agreements
The service agreements of the executive directors and 
copies of the letters of appointment of the non-executive 
directors are available for inspection during business 
hours on any weekday (excluding public holidays) at the 
registered office of the Company and will be available for 
inspection for 15 minutes prior to, and during, the AGM.

External appointments
The executive directors may accept outside appointments 
provided that such appointments do not in any way 
prejudice their ability to perform their duties as executive 
directors of the Company. None of the executive directors 
currently hold any such outside appointments where fees 
are payable, but are encouraged to do so in the event that 
it would bring them further experience and benefit the 
Board.

The role of non-executive director requires a time 
commitment in the order of 15 days per annum plus 
additional time as necessary to properly discharge their 
duties. There is no restriction on outside appointments 
provided that they do not prevent the director from 
discharging their responsibilities effectively.

Enterprise Inns - AR2016 - Gov and Financials.indd   49 07/12/2016   14:21:06



24766.04    7 December 2016 1:54 PM    Proof 6

50 www.enterpriseinnsplc.com
Stock code: ETI

Governance 
report

Accountability
The Board should present a fair, balanced and 
understandable assessment of the Company’s position 
and prospects, maintain sound risk management and 
internal control systems and manage an appropriate 
relationship with the Company’s auditor.

Further information about how these principles have been 
applied is detailed in the Audit Committee report on pages 
51 to 56.

Remuneration
Levels of remuneration should be sufficient to attract, 
retain and motivate directors of the quality required to run 
the Company successfully, whilst avoiding paying more 
than is necessary for this purpose, and there should be a 
formal and transparent procedure for developing policy on 
executive remuneration.

Further information about how these principles have been 
applied is detailed in the directors’ remuneration report on 
pages 58 to 72.

Relations with shareholders
We are committed to, and place a great deal of importance 
on, having an active dialogue with our investor base. The 
Company maintains constructive engagement with its 
key stakeholders, including institutional shareholders. 
During the year, our CEO and Chief Financial Officer 
(CFO) met with a number of our leading shareholders to 
discuss issues relating to the performance of the Group, 
strategy and new developments. In addition, the Chairman 
engaged with the majority of our top ten shareholders on 
a range of governance matters. The SID and the other non-
executive directors are available to shareholders to discuss 
any matter they wish to raise.

As regards governance issues, the Chairman aims to 
meet with most of our major shareholders shortly after 
each AGM. These meetings with shareholders are timed 
early in the process so that the Board has enough time to 
consider, and respond to, any shareholder concerns well 
in advance of the next year’s Annual Report. The Chairman 
normally contacts as many major shareholders as possible, 
and not simply the very largest, to ensure the widest 
consultation possible and also to ensure that the views of 
any shareholder who has substantially increased its stake 
during the year, have been fully taken into account.

Following the announcement of results, an investor 
relations report is produced for the Board which 
summarises feedback from shareholders and ensures the 
Board has a balanced view from our major investors.

The Company ensures that any price-sensitive information 
is released to all shareholders at the same time in 
accordance with regulatory requirements. All major 
presentations are available to shareholders through the 
Company’s website.

Shareholders may choose to receive the Annual Report 
either in paper form or electronically. This Report, along 
with a wide range of shareholder information including 
the Interim Report, is also available on the Company’s 
website. Additional information for shareholders can be 
found on the inside back cover.

AGM
Shareholders receive at least 20 working days’ notice 
of the AGM. The AGM offers the opportunity for the 
Board, including the Chairmen of the Audit, Nomination 
and Remuneration Committees, to communicate the 
Company’s progress directly to shareholders. The Board 
aims to ensure that all members of the Board, including 
in particular the Chairmen of the Board Committees, are 
available to answer questions at the AGM. To encourage 
shareholders to participate in the AGM process, the 
Company offers electronic proxy voting through the CREST 
service and all resolutions are proposed and voted on at 
the meeting on an individual basis by shareholders or their 
proxies. Voting results are announced on the same day 
as the meeting through RNS and made available on the 
Company’s website.

Details of the resolutions to be proposed at the AGM to 
be held on 9 February 2017 can be found in the Notice 
convening the AGM on pages 138 to 140.

By order of the Board

R M Walker 
Chairman
14 November 2016
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Dear Shareholders,
I am pleased to introduce the Audit Committee report for 
the year ended 30 September 2016, which outlines the 
activities of the Committee during the year. It was a year 
in which the Committee continued to devote particular 
attention to such matters as reviewing the financial 
reporting controls and risk management processes across 
the Group, ensuring the effectiveness of the internal 
control framework, overseeing the internal and external 
audit processes and also reviewing the significant issues 
relating to the financial statements for the year ended  
30 September 2016.

As part of these activities, and in conjunction with the Risk 
Committee, we have reviewed those areas of risk and 
controls that need to be considered on an ongoing basis 
across the business; those principal risks and uncertainties 
that are of sufficient significance to be disclosed in the 
Annual Report; and also those material residual risks, that 
could still pose a significant threat to the viability of the 
business as a whole, so need to be fully considered as 
part of the viability statement process. 

In line with prior years, the members of the Committee 
have spent time with the operations and property teams 
in the field and have also participated in key discussions 
on areas of financial judgement, such as the valuation 
meetings between the external auditor and professional 
valuers, so that we can better understand the risks and 
challenges facing the business.

As a result of all of the above activity, we are satisfied that 
the business has maintained robust risk management and 
internal controls and that the internal audit programme is 
appropriately formulated to confirm that those controls are 
effective. The Company’s principal risks and uncertainties 
are set out on pages 34 to 38 and have been reviewed in 
detail by the Committee to ensure that we are comfortable 
that the business has addressed them appropriately within 
its ongoing operating model and priorities.

The Committee can also confirm, on behalf of the Board, 
that the Annual Report, taken as a whole, is fair, balanced 
and understandable.

Finally, after nine years on the Committee, I will be 
stepping down from my role as Chairman in July 2017 and 
my colleague, Marisa Cassoni, will take over as Chairman 
of the Committee at that time.

David Maloney 
Chairman, Audit Committee

Composition
The Committee is formed of the non-executive directors, 
being Peter Baguley, Adam Fowle, Marisa Cassoni and 
David Maloney, as Chairman, so that the Board can be 
confident that the entire Committee is independent. David 
Maloney has been the Chairman of the Committee since 
2009, as the Board considers that, by virtue of his former 
executive and current non-executive director positions (full 
details of which are set out on page 45), he has current 
and relevant financial experience. 

Roles and responsibilities
While the Board has ultimate responsibility for maintaining 
a robust framework of internal controls and risk 
management; for overseeing, reviewing and ensuring 
the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and 
internal control systems; and for ensuring that the Annual 
Report and Accounts, when taken as a whole, are fair, 
balanced and understandable and provides the information 
necessary for shareholders to assess the Group’s 
position, performance, business model and strategy, it has 
delegated the detailed assessment of these areas to the 
Committee.

The Committee is therefore responsible for advising the 
Board in respect of each of these areas. 

Accordingly, the Committee met three times during the 
year to consider all relevant information to enable it to 
assess and confirm that:

• the interests of shareholders are protected in relation to 
financial reporting and internal control by monitoring the 
integrity of the annual and interim financial statements, 
monitoring any formal announcements relating to the 
Company’s financial performance, and reviewing and 
challenging as necessary the judgements and actions of 
management in relation to the financial statements;

• the interim and year end results, preliminary 
announcement and the Annual Report and Accounts 
are fair, balanced and understandable to the Board. 
This involves reviewing the documents to ensure that 
the description of the business agrees with our own 
understanding, the risks reflect the issues that concern 
us, appropriate weight has been given to the ‘good 
and bad’ news, the discussion of performance properly 
reflects the ‘story’ of the relevant period and that there 
is a clear and well-articulated link between all areas of 
disclosure;

Audit 
Committee 
report
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• the internal audit programme is sufficiently robust to 
confirm the effectiveness of the Group’s controls. This is 
achieved by reviewing and monitoring the effectiveness 
of the Group’s internal control and risk management 
systems, including the internal audit function, reviewing 
the Group’s systems and controls for preventing and 
detecting fraud and bribery and reviewing the adequacy 
and effectiveness of the Group’s arrangements for 
its employees to raise concerns about possible 
wrongdoing in financial reporting or other matters;

• there is a sufficiently robust and effective external 
audit. Specifically, the Committee considers the 
independence of the external auditor, the appointment 
and reappointment of the external auditor and all 
reports from the external auditor in respect of the 
auditor’s review of the interim results, the audit plan 
for the year and the results of the annual audit. These 
reports included the scope of the interim review 
and annual audit, the approach to be adopted by 
the external auditor to address and conclude upon 
key estimates and other key audit areas, the basis 
on which the external auditor assesses materiality, 
the terms of engagement for the external auditor 
and an ongoing assessment of the impact of future 
accounting developments on the Group. To monitor its 
independence, the Committee annually reviews the 
remuneration, terms of engagement and objectivity of 
the external auditor, including its appropriateness to 
undertake non-audit work;

• the principal risks and uncertainties have been 
appropriately identified and assessed, including 
reviewing internal processes used to identify and 
monitor all key risks and associated controls. The 
Committee reviewed those key risks and the quality 
of the assurance on the effectiveness of the controls 
that mitigate those risks, allowing it to conclude on the 
principal risks for disclosure and what, if any, material 
residual risks remain so that they could be factored 
into the assessment of going concern and the Group’s 
ongoing viability;

• the Group’s compliance related policies and procedures 
have been adequately established and implemented to 
ensure that regulatory areas, such as the statutory Pubs 
Code implemented during the year, are fully complied 
with as required;

• all key control policies and procedures in the business 
remain appropriate, including an annual review of the 
effectiveness of the Group’s whistleblowing policy; and

• the Committee continues to operate appropriately for 
the circumstances of our business. As part of this, we 
review our terms of reference, we ensure that there is 
sufficient expertise and resource in the Committee’s 
composition for us to fulfil our responsibilities 
effectively and we perform an annual review of the 
Committee’s performance.

The Committee reports to the Board on how we have 
discharged our responsibilities. The full terms of reference 
are available on the Company’s website, or on request 
from the Company Secretary.

Significant issues considered in 
relation to the financial statements
During the year the Committee, management and the 
external auditor considered and concluded on what 
the significant issues were in relation to the financial 
statements and how these would be addressed.

Valuation of the estate
The value of property, plant and equipment is the largest 
number on the balance sheet and therefore it is critical 
to ensure the assets are appropriately valued. The Group 
has a policy of accounting for its estate at fair value based 
on an annual revaluation exercise, so the Committee 
therefore focuses attention on understanding and 
challenging the valuation, and the appropriate accounting 
approach and disclosures, by reviewing the planned 
approach, the key assumptions, the valuation reports 
and other documentation analysing the outcome of the 
process.

The annual valuation of the estate is performed by two 
independent valuation firms, covering approximately 94% 
of the Group’s estate by value, with the remainder valued 
by an internal team of RICS qualified chartered surveyors 
on a basis consistent with the external valuation. 

Peter Baguley, Marisa Cassoni and David Maloney all 
attended the meeting held between the external auditor 
and each of the external independent professional valuers 
and the internal professional valuers. The purpose of the 
meeting is for the external auditor and the Committee to 
understand and challenge (if appropriate) any assumption 
or material changes in valuation. To assist the discussion, 
detailed analysis is prepared by both management and 
Ernst & Young (EY) which explores the underlying basis of, 
and conclusions reached in respect of, the annual valuation 
of the Group’s assets (further details of which are set 
out in note 17 to the accounts on pages 96 to 103). Any 
outliers in the valuation were also analysed in further detail 
by management and EY.

As a consequence of all of the above activity, the 
Committee was satisfied that a thorough and robust 
valuation exercise had been undertaken and appropriate 
values incorporated into the balance sheet at 30 
September 2016. 
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Going concern and viability review
The Group has to comply with a number of financial 
covenants that relate to the financing structure of the 
Group as set out in note 23 on pages 107 to 114 of the 
accounts. Reaching a conclusion on the reliability of the 
budgets prepared by management is considered important 
to the Committee to ensure that covenants will not be 
breached and the Group will remain a going concern.

The Committee therefore reviewed, challenged and 
concluded upon the Group’s going concern review 
including giving due consideration to the appropriateness 
of key judgements, assumptions and estimates underlying 
the budgets that underpin the review, and a review of 
compliance with key financial covenants. This also included 
a comprehensive review of the key risk factors impacting 
the Group and the assessment of the internal controls 
that mitigate this risk, together with reviewing how the 
risks have been considered in the assessment of going 
concern.

The Committee also reviews the refinancing and funding 
strategy and the proposed plans for implementing that 
strategy, such as the refinancing of £250 million of the 
remaining £350 million 2018 corporate bonds, completed 
in November 2016. 

This process enabled the Committee, on behalf of the 
Board, to assess whether any material residual risks 
remained that could pose a significant threat to the 
viability of the business as a whole. The Committee also 
assessed over what period such a viability review would 
be appropriate. The impact of those risks that could affect 
the future viability of the Group between now and 30 
September 2020 was then reviewed and the resilience of 
the Group to the occurrence of these risks, in severe yet 
plausible scenarios, evaluated. As a result of this analysis, 
the disclosures detailed in the viability statement, on page 
38, were recommended to, and approved by, the Board.

Goodwill impairment review
In conjunction with the assessment of going concern and 
the Group’s future viability, the Committee reviewed and 
approved the Group’s impairment review in respect of its 
property, plant and equipment and intangible fixed assets. 
The Group allocates its goodwill across different operating 
segments, requiring impairment to be tested by operating 
segment. Included in the key assumptions underlying the 
impairment review were the discount rate and growth 
rate applied to cash flows utilised in such calculations, 
considered by operating segment to allow for variations 
in the rate if it were applicable. The Committee reviewed 
the calculation of the rate used, compared to the prior year 
and to the rate used by other companies in comparable 
operating segments (see note 15 on pages 94 and 95 of 
the accounts) and concluded that the rate adopted was 
appropriate at the current time.

Deferred tax
The provisioning for deferred tax remains a complex 
technical area requiring the Group to reflect the interaction 
between multiple elements of tax legislation and the 
specific requirements of IFRS. The application of these 
requirements to an estate comprising approximately 
4,900 individual assets, introduces further risks which are 
addressed through the use of detailed tax models against 
information held on an asset by asset basis.

The Committee ensures that adequate resource is 
dedicated to the ongoing maintenance of these tax 
models, that the output of these models is subject to 
robust and rigorous internal review and that, where 
necessary, management have validated the manner in 
which tax legislation and/or IFRS should be applied with 
our external tax adviser and, where appropriate, the 
external auditor.

The Committee was satisfied that the deferred tax 
provisions were appropriate.

Approach to appointing the external 
auditor and how objectivity and 
independence are safeguarded 
relative to non-audit services
The Company’s policy on the independence of the external 
auditor is consistent with the ethical standards published 
by the Audit Practices Board. We also comply with the 
Competition and Markets Authority Order 2014 relating to 
audit tendering and the provision of non-audit services, as 
discussed further below.

Independence safeguards and the 
reappointment of the external auditor
The reappointment of EY as the Group’s external auditor 
was reviewed in the year and approved.

While EY has been the Group’s external auditor since the 
Company started trading in 1991, the audit was put out to 
a market tender during 2012, with EY chosen to continue 
with the audit services and KPMG appointed for taxation 
services. Therefore, the Group is planning to tender the 
audit again for the year ending 30 September 2021, in 
accordance with recent EU regulations, but will initiate 
the tender process ahead of time to allow for the audit 
to be moved to another firm of auditors for that financial 
year. These plans will be kept under annual review and if 
legislation changes, or there are any concerns as to EY’s 
independence, the quality of their audit or the service 
levels, then the audit tender might be undertaken sooner.
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In accordance with best practice and professional 
standards, after five years in the role, EY rotated their 
audit partner at the AGM on 11 February 2016 and the 
Committee is satisfied that the new engagement partner 
has the experience and industry knowledge to be the lead 
audit partner.

Independence and non-audit services
A key issue that could impair auditor independence, and 
the auditor’s objective opinion on the Group’s financial 
statements, is the engagement of the external auditor for 
the provision of non-audit services.

The Group’s policy on engaging the external auditor for 
non-audit services has always been designed to ensure 
that such engagements do not result in the creation of a 
mutuality of interest between the auditor and the Group, 
that a transparent process and reporting structure is 
established to enable the Committee to monitor policy 
compliance and that unnecessary restrictions on the 
engagement of the auditor for non-audit services are 
avoided where the provision of advice is commercially 
sensible and is more cost effective than other providers.

The existing policy applicable throughout the year to 
September 2016 specified:

• services that are specifically not permitted – this 
includes work relating to accounting records that 
will ultimately be subject to external audit, valuation 
services, remuneration advice for key management 
and the provision of strategic advisory or consultancy 
services;

• services that are permitted with prior approval of the 
CFO – this includes accounting advice and reviews of 
accounting standards and advice, due diligence matters 
as required by debt prospectuses, assurance work in 
respect of tax matters including tax compliance, routine 
tax planning and tax advisory services; and

• services that are permitted with prior approval of the 
Committee – this includes any new engagement for an 
individual service or specific project other than defined 
within the above two categories.

The CFO reports to the Committee annually outlining all 
proposals considered during the year and the decisions 
taken, any proposals which the Committee is or has been 
requested to approve and the current level of expenditure 
for non-audit fees.

The total fees paid to the external auditor during the year 
under review amounted to £469,000. Of this amount, 
£224,000 related to non-audit services, being work 
associated with our financing activities and the interim 
review. This is work that would normally only be performed 
by the external auditor as it requires confirmations to third 
parties, such as Trustees, as to the correct extraction of 
data from our accounting records. Full details are set out in 
note 7 to the accounts on page 89.

In addition, during the year, the Committee reviewed the 
existing policy for non-audit services in light of recent 
guidance from the Financial Reporting Council and revised 
the policy for the 2017 financial year, a year ahead of when 
the changes would be mandatory for the Group. The key 
impacts of the changes are:

• to be more prescriptive about the activities that the 
external auditor cannot undertake;

• to require approval in advance by the Committee for all 
work they do undertake; and

• to restrict the level of fees paid for non-audit services to 
70% of the audit fees over a rolling three year period, 
commencing 1 October 2016.

Independence and performance 
assessment by the Committee
The Committee has assessed the independence of the 
external auditor and is satisfied that their independence 
is not impaired due to the fact that the audit engagement 
partner rotation policy has been complied with; the level 
and nature of the fees paid for non-audit services was of 
a level that does not present any ongoing threat to their 
independence and a separate external firm is appointed for 
taxation compliance and advisory services.

The Committee has authority to take independent advice 
as it determines necessary in order to resolve issues on 
auditor independence. No such advice was required during 
the year and there are no contractual restrictions over 
choice of auditor.

The Committee also reviewed the external auditor’s 
performance, taking into account input from management, 
consideration of responses to questions from the 
Committee and the audit findings reported to the 
Committee. As part of the process, the Committee 
reviewed the external auditor’s performance against 
criteria consistent with that adopted in the prior year.
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In addition to the above, the Committee Chairman, on 
behalf of the Committee, met with the external auditor and 
with the Director of Internal Audit without the presence 
of management during the year and had regular contact 
with the audit engagement partner during the year. Robert 
Walker also had two private meetings with the audit 
engagement partner during the year.

Based on all of this information the Committee concluded 
that the external audit process was operating effectively, 
that EY remains sufficiently independent and that it 
continued to prove effective in its role as external auditor. 
The Committee has therefore recommended to the Board 
to propose to shareholders the reappointment of EY as 
auditor until the conclusion of the AGM in 2018. Full details 
are set out in the Notice convening the AGM on pages 138 
to 140.

Role of internal audit
Internal audit is independent of business operations, 
undertaking an ongoing programme to provide assurance 
on the adequacy of internal control and risk management 
processes across the Group’s operations. It is responsible 
for reviewing and reporting on the effectiveness of internal 
controls and risk management systems to the Committee 
and, ultimately, the Board. The Director of Internal Audit 
attends Committee meetings to present the findings of 
such reviews at regular intervals throughout the year 
and reports on internal audit’s performance against the 
agreed annual internal audit plan, such plan being agreed 
during the year by the Committee. The existing Director 
of Internal Audit resigned during the year to be replaced 
by someone with extensive internal audit experience who 
the Committee was satisfied would be able to continue to 
ensure a robust and independent internal control function. 
In addition, we are in the process of recruiting additional 
resource in internal audit to address the increased focus 
on compliance activity in the Group, in relation to the Pubs 
Code, and from additional operational risks arising from 
the managed house business. 

Effective risk management and internal 
control
The system of internal controls is designed to manage 
rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business 
objectives and can only provide reasonable and not 
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

Operating policies and controls are in place, and have been 
in place throughout the year under review, and cover a 
wide range of issues including financial reporting, capital 
expenditure, information technology, business continuity, 
cyber security and management of employees. Detailed 
policies ensure the accuracy and reliability of financial 
reporting and the preparation of financial statements 

including the consolidation process. The key elements 
of the Group’s ongoing processes for the provision of 
effective internal control and risk management systems 
which have been in place throughout the year include:

• established organisational structure with clearly defined 
lines of responsibility and levels of authority;

• documented operational and control policies and 
procedures;

• regular Board meetings to consider matters reserved 
for directors’ consideration;

• an annual Board corporate strategy review to assess 
the appropriateness of the current business strategy 
and any potential changes to the future Group strategy, 
including a formal review of material business risks 
and uncertainties facing the business facilitated by 
third party risk consultants to ensure that the Board 
can consider the latest best practice risk management 
advice and approaches;

• regular review by the Board of financial budgets, 
forecasts and covenants with performance reported to 
the Board monthly;

• regular management reporting, providing a balanced 
assessment of key risks and controls;

• an asset optimisation review process to consider 
all viable options for each asset, utilising both local 
operational knowledge and a custom built segmentation 
model to identify all the relevant trends in the locality of 
the asset;

• a detailed investment process for major projects, 
including capital investment coupled with a post-
investment appraisal analysis;

• a formal management risk committee, which meets 
quarterly, responsible for the ongoing process of 
identifying, evaluating and managing the principal risks 
faced by the Company through maintenance of the 
risk register and evaluation of controls and assurances, 
reporting its findings back to the Committee;

• an internal audit function which implements the annual 
internal audit plan and provides independent assurance 
to executive management, the Committee and the 
Board on the effectiveness of internal controls and risk 
management. This includes evolving the internal audit 
plan to ensure that it focuses, where relevant, on the 
highest risk areas identified in the key risk register and 
assurance framework; 

• the continued development and expansion of the wider 
compliance related teams, such as tie compliance, retail 
audit and the Pubs Code compliance teams, to ensure 
appropriate focus on the key areas of risk to the Group;
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• an anti-bribery and corruption code of conduct as the 
Group is committed to conducting its business with the 
highest degree of integrity, including a zero tolerance 
approach towards all forms of bribery, corruption, fraud 
and theft. Procedures within the Company have been 
designed to minimise these risks and comply with 
our published policy, which is available on the Group’s 
website; and

• a whistleblowing policy, which is reviewed annually, 
that encourages employees to report any malpractice 
or illegal acts or omissions or matters of similar concern 
(whether in the UK or elsewhere) by other employees 
or former employees, contractors, publicans, suppliers 
or advisers using internal mechanisms for reporting. 

In reviewing the effectiveness of the system of internal 
control, the Committee has:

• received six-monthly self-assurance statements 
completed by key senior managers confirming that 
controls and risk management processes in their 
business units have operated satisfactorily. These 
returns are reviewed in detail by the Director of 
Internal Audit and challenged where appropriate by the 
management risk committee, which updates the risk 
register;

• received and reviewed the risk register, including 
detailed analysis of the key financial and accounting 
controls that provide assurance to mitigate the key 
risks, and proposed principal risks and uncertainties 
disclosures, which were then approved for use in the 
Annual Report and Accounts; and

• met with the Director of Internal Audit without 
management being present to discuss their remit and 
any issues arising from internal audits carried out, 
reviewed all the internal audit reports and monitored 
management’s responsiveness to the findings and 
recommendations of those reports.

In respect of Group financial reporting, the finance 
department is responsible for preparing the Group financial 
statements using a well-established consolidation process 
and ensuring that accounting policies are in accordance 
with IFRS. All financial information published by the Group 
is subject to approval by the Committee. There have been 
no changes in the Company’s internal control over financial 
reporting during the year under review that has materially 
affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the 
Company’s control over financial reporting.

Following advice from the Committee, the Board has 
confirmed that it is satisfied that we have carried out a 
robust assessment of the principal risks facing the Group, 
including those that threaten its business model, future 
performance, solvency or liquidity. As a result it has 
concluded that an effective system of internal controls 
and risk management processes are in place which 
enable the Company to identify, evaluate and manage key 
risks and which accord with the FRC’s Guidance on Risk 
Management, Internal Control and Related Financial and 
Business Reporting 2014.

The Committee believes that the Group’s risk 
management process was sufficiently robust from the 
start of the financial year and up to the date of approval 
of the accounts. Further details of risk management 
frameworks and the principal risks and uncertainties facing 
the business can be found on pages 34 to 38.

There have been no material instances of whistleblowing 
or any recorded instances of bribery or corruption during 
the period under review.

Accountability
The Board is required to present a fair, balanced and 
understandable assessment of the Company’s financial 
position and prospects. The responsibilities of the directors 
and external auditor are set out on pages 73 and 136. As 
set out in the directors’ report, the directors consider the 
Company’s business is a going concern.

D O Maloney 
Chairman, Audit Committee
14 November 2016
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Dear Shareholders,
The Nomination Committee is responsible for monitoring 
the performance, appropriateness and future succession 
of the Company’s executive Board talent. 

As mentioned last year, we are now in the position of 
having both the stability and the right mix of skills at 
executive and Board level. The Committee’s main focus 
in 2016 was therefore, to review the recruitment and 
performance of executive talent across the business. 
Ensuring the Company has the right talent in place to 
execute our five year strategy will remain a priority for the 
Committee in the coming year.

Finally, David Maloney will complete his nine year 
membership of the Board in July 2017. In reviewing David’s 
performance and the need for continuity at this stage 
of the Company’s evolution, we are recommending that 
David extends his tenure by one year, until July 2018. 
Since he will no longer be considered independent, his 
position as Senior Independent Director will be taken by 
Adam Fowle and Marisa Cassoni will take over as Chair 
of the Audit Committee. Both handovers will take place 
in July 2017, when the Board will commence a search for 
David’s replacement.

Robert Walker 
Chairman, Nomination Committee 

Composition
In compliance with the UK Corporate Governance Code, 
the Committee was composed of all of the non-executive 
directors, being Robert Walker, David Maloney, Peter 
Baguley, Adam Fowle and Marisa Cassoni. The executive 
directors attended meetings of the Committee when 
requested.

Roles and responsibilities
The key roles and responsibilities of the Committee are:

• identify and nominate for Board approval, candidates 
to fill Board vacancies having regard to, amongst other 
things, the benefits of diversity including gender, as and 
when they arise;

• act proactively, recognising it is important to plan Board 
succession well in advance and for all scenarios;

• ensure that the Company’s Board 
and executive leadership skills are fully 
aligned to the Company’s long-term strategy;

• succession planning for directors and other senior 
executives taking into account the challenges and 
opportunities facing the Company; and

• ensure any appointees have sufficient time to  
undertake their role.

In planning any appointments, the Committee prepares a 
full description of the role, skills and capabilities required; 
appoints external search firms, each time reviewing 
available options, and ensuring that the firm selected has 
signed up to the relevant industry codes (for example, on 
diversity) and has no connection with the Company; and 
finally, engages from time-to-time with the Group’s major 
shareholders on future skills requirements and ideas for 
potential candidates.

What the Committee did in 2016
The main focus of the Committee’s work in 2016 included:

• completing a review of the roles of the non-executive 
Board members for change in 2017, as outlined above;

• reviewing the senior management structure and talent 
below Board level and senior appointments to the 
business; and

• reviewing the Committee’s terms of reference, and the 
annual review of the Committee’s performance.

Diversity
The Board and the Committee continue to be mindful 
of the issue of diversity, including gender diversity, 
throughout the business where 43% of the growing 
workforce are female including six of 17 of the most 
senior managers. While we are not committing to any 
specific targets for the number of women on the Board, 
we continue to consider and make appointments based on 
merit with the overriding objective of appointing the best 
candidate for the role. We use executive search firms who 
have signed up to the voluntary code of conduct setting 
out the seven key principles of best practice to abide by 
throughout the recruitment process and we continue to 
follow a policy of appointing talented people at every level 
to deliver high performance.

R M Walker 
Chairman, Nomination Committee
14 November 2016

Nomination 
Committee 
report
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Information not subject to audit:
ANNUAL STATEMENT
Dear Shareholders,
I am pleased to introduce our remuneration report for the 
2016 financial year which sets out amounts earned by the 
executive directors in respect of the financial year ended  
30 September 2016 under the remuneration policy that  
was agreed by shareholders at the 2016 AGM.

Business performance and  
incentive impact
In February 2016 shareholders approved the structure of 
new share plans relating to executive directors’ annual 
bonus and long-term incentive arrangements together 
with a new policy on directors’ remuneration as set out 
in last year’s directors’ remuneration report. The new 
arrangements and policy were designed to support 
our 2020 strategy and the new policy was approved by 
shareholders with a vote in favour of 92.81%. The Chief 
Executive Officer and his management team have worked 
closely with the Board to progress the execution of the 
strategy and to deliver a new business with significantly 
improved earnings potential and growth in shareholder 
value and for the benefit of all stakeholders. 

In March and May 2016 the Company updated the markets 
on the progress of the execution of its strategic plan, and 
the framework in place to allocate excess cash flow in the 
business, including the announcement of a share buyback 
programme of £25 million using excess cash flow. At the 
date of this report the Company has purchased 14 million 
shares at an average price of 91p.

We continue to unlock the embedded value in every asset 
within our property portfolio, moving assets between 
operating models to secure the optimum level of income 
and feeding the pipeline requirements of our new business 
units from our Publican Partnership estate. 

Introducing more flexibility into the Publican Partnership 
estate has attracted ambitious entrepreneurs to this low 
cost route of entry into the pub sector to run their own 
businesses. Improving publican profitability in this estate 
has helped further to reduce unplanned business failures, 
down 14% compared with the prior year. This re-invigorated 
leased and tenanted business saw like-for-like net income 
up 2.1% (2015: 0.8% growth) and it was particularly 
pleasing to see growth achieved across all geographic 
regions of our estate. 

The pubs operating under the Bermondsey banner 
increased to 28 in the year under review as we focused on 
securing high quality sites or sites capable of growing our 
income through our asset optimisation process. Our Craft 
Union business has accelerated rapidly and at the end of the 
financial year had 71 pubs, and both managed businesses 
have a strong pipeline in place to deliver the immediate and 
longer-term growth plans to 2020. During the year, adding 
to the first partnership with Rupert Clevely, the business 
entered into a further four strategic partnerships with 

expert managed house operators and opened eight pubs 
within our managed investment business during the year. 
In addition, we continue to grow the commercial property 
portfolio, where we incur minimal overheads and require 
lower capital expenditure, and at the end of the year under 
review had 273 high quality properties in that portfolio with 
average rents in the commercial property portfolio growing 
by 3.8% during the year. 

Overall performance has generated annual bonus pay-
outs for the executive directors in respect of the 2016 
financial year in the range of 70% to 71% of the maximum 
opportunity of 150% of salary, compared with between 
61% to 63% of the maximum opportunity of 100% of salary 
in the prior year. Further details are provided on pages 63 
to 65 on how performance under the annual bonus targets 
translated into bonus payments. The LTIP awards granted in 
respect of plan year 2012, which was based solely on TSR 
performance in the three year period prior to December 
2015, did not meet the challenging minimum vesting target 
and lapsed in full.

Executive remuneration for 2017
We remain firmly committed to a responsible approach 
in respect of executive pay and that our remuneration 
structure should reward sustainable business performance 
and therefore deliver long-term value to shareholders. 
Salary reviews for the executive directors have not yet 
been conducted for the financial year ending 30 September 
2017. Any reviews will be effective on 1 January 2017 and 
I anticipate increases, if any, would be modest, as they 
were last year, and will be based on merit and in line with 
the Group’s average pay increase and prevailing market 
conditions. Other benefits, including pension provision, will 
be maintained at existing levels or by reference to existing 
percentages of base salary as applicable. The structure 
and quantum of the bonus and LTIP arrangements will be 
unchanged from the arrangements introduced in 2016.

The Committee recognises the expectations of our 
shareholders on executive pay and we were pleased that 
the 2015 annual report on remuneration received a 99.93% 
vote in favour at the last AGM and the new policy a 92.81% 
vote in favour, along with strong support for the amendment 
to the 2015 LTIP. The 2016 annual report on remuneration 
will be subject to an advisory vote at the AGM to be held 
on 9 February 2017 and we will continue to actively engage 
with shareholders to maintain our high levels of support.

Peter Baguley 
Chairman, Remuneration Committee
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Role of the Committee
The Committee is responsible for considering and making 
recommendations to the Board on the:

• general policy on executive and senior management 
remuneration;

• overall remuneration packages for executive 
directors including base salary, pensions, benefits 
and performance-related short-term and long-term 
incentives;

• Chairman’s remuneration; and

• design and operation of the Company’s share incentive 
plans.

The Committee reports to the Board on how it has 
discharged its responsibilities and operates within agreed 
terms of reference, a copy of which is available on the 
Company’s website or on request from the Company 
Secretary. Details of the members of the Committee 
and of the advisers to the Committee are provided in the 
annual report on remuneration on page 61.

Policy on executive director 
remuneration
The Committee regularly reviews the executive directors’ 
remuneration packages to ensure that they take account 
of the Company’s specific circumstances and are aligned 
to the Company’s key strategic objectives as set out in 
the strategic report on pages 1 to 39. In formulating the 
remuneration policy, the Committee:

• considers market practice (both in terms of the size and 
structure of executive remuneration);

• takes into consideration pay practices elsewhere within 
the Group;

• encourages open dialogue and consults with major 
shareholders when looking to make material changes to 
the remuneration policy;

• ensures that incentive structures for executive directors 
do not raise any environmental, social or governance 
risks by inadvertently motivating irresponsible 
behaviour; and

• ensures with regard to the overall remuneration 
structure, there is no restriction on the Committee 
which prevents it from taking into account 
environmental, social or governance matters or indeed 
any other operational/financial risks that relate to the 
Company’s business.

The Committee continues to believe that the policy and 
approach (described more fully in the policy table in the 
2015 Annual Report) allows the Company to operate the 
remuneration arrangements in a way which promotes 
the long-term success of the Company and remains both 
relevant and appropriate in terms of the balance between:

• fixed and variable pay, ensuring a significant proportion 
of the overall remuneration package is performance-
related; 

• short-term and long-term incentive pay; and

• cash-based and share-based remuneration.

The Committee also believes that the performance-
related elements provide rewards which reflect an 
appropriate balance between the performance of the 
Group and individual performance, and aligns the rewards 
of executive directors with the long-term interests of the 
shareholders and the Company’s strategic goals.

Directors’ remuneration policy
The remuneration policy published in last year’s Annual 
Report and approved by shareholders at the 2016 AGM 
on 11 February 2016 will continue to apply. Accordingly, 
we have not included the directors’ remuneration policy 
in this report, however, a copy is available in the directors’ 
remuneration report of our Annual Report 2015 at 
www.enterpriseinnsplc.com. 

ANNUAL REPORT ON REMUNERATION
This annual report on remuneration sets out how the 
Company’s remuneration policy for directors was 
implemented during the year under review. This report 
has been prepared in accordance with the provisions of 
the Companies Act 2006 and Schedule 8 of the Large 
and Medium-sized Companies and Groups (Accounts and 
Reports) Regulations 2008 (as amended) and 9.8.8R of 
the Listing Rules. An advisory resolution to approve this 
report will be put to shareholders at the forthcoming AGM. 
The information on pages 62 to 69 as indicated has been 
audited. 
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Remuneration policy at a glance
The charts below illustrate the remuneration of the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) and Chief Financial Officer (CFO). 
They show that the performance–related elements of the package comprise a very significant portion of the executive 
directors’ total remuneration.
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Reward scenarios

Minimum 
performance

Performance in line 
with expectations

Maximum 
performance

Fixed pay Salary + benefits + 25% of salary pension contribution (and any SIP participation)

Annual bonus (including amount 
deferred into shares)

No bonus pay-out 75% of salary awarded (50%  
of the maximum opportunity)

150% of salary awarded (100% 
of the maximum opportunity)

LTIP No LTIP vesting Award over 35% of salary 
vesting (20% of the maximum 
opportunity of shares awarded 

under the 2016 LTIP)

Award over 175% of salary 
vesting (100% of the maximum 
opportunity of shares awarded 

under the 2016 LTIP)

The charts illustrate the potential rewards available under the remuneration policy for the 2016 financial year as 
summarised in the table above and the actual amounts earned by each executive director. 

The values assume a constant share price and do not take into account share price fluctuation or dividends/dividend 
equivalents that could be received on the share awards. Therefore, the amounts that ultimately vest to directors under 
the deferred shares and LTIP arrangement could be higher or lower than set out above. The potential monetary rewards 
available for performance in line with expectations under the annual bonus and LTIP are provided for illustration only and 
do not reflect formal policy decisions that these amounts are received. 

Salary levels (on which other elements of the package are calculated) are based on the weighted average salary for the 
2016 financial year (£472,000 for Simon Townsend and £385,000 for Neil Smith). The value of taxable benefits is based 
on the cost of supplying those benefits (as disclosed in the table on page 62) for the year ended 30 September 2016 
and includes Simon Townsend’s participation in the SIP (the executive directors can participate in this all-employee share 
scheme on the same basis as other employees).

The actual remuneration received represents the remuneration paid to the executive directors as set out in the single 
figure for remuneration table on page 62.
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Composition of the Committee
The Committee has been constituted and operated throughout the year in accordance with the provisions of the UK 
Corporate Governance Code. The Committee comprised the following non-executive directors: 

• Peter Baguley, Chairman

• David Maloney

• Adam Fowle 

• Robert Walker

• Marisa Cassoni

No member of the Committee has any personal financial interest in the matters being decided. The Company’s CEO 
attends meetings by invitation of the Committee except where his own remuneration is being discussed. The Committee 
receives assistance from the Company Secretary as appropriate and the Company Secretary acts as secretary to the 
Committee. 

Advisers
During the year under review, the Committee received external advice on directors’ remuneration matters from Deloitte 
LLP, appointed by the Committee in 2014, as its independent adviser. Deloitte also provided services in relation to estate 
segmentation modelling and advice on internal audit and risk management matters.

Deloitte is a founder member of the Remuneration Consultants Group and as such voluntarily operates under its code of 
conduct in relation to executive remuneration in the UK. During the year, the Chairman of the Committee reviewed the 
performance of Deloitte, in terms of the quality and independence of advice, the potential for conflicts of interest (which 
are actively managed within Deloitte) and its knowledge and understanding of market practice. Having reviewed these 
factors, the Committee is satisfied that Deloitte are objective and independent and chose to continue to retain them as 
its adviser in 2016. The Committee recognises that it needs to exercise independent judgement and is not over reliant on 
its remuneration consultants.

The total fees paid to Deloitte were £39,050. The fees charged for major projects are normally negotiated in advance of 
the work being undertaken. However, an element of the fees relates to sundry ongoing advice, in line with Deloitte’s 
role to provide ongoing support to the Committee over the entire remuneration year and are predominantly charged on a 
‘time spent’ basis. 

Fees for the Chairman and non-executive directors
The fee policy for the Chairman and non-executive directors for the year under review from 1 January 2016 was as 
follows:

• Chairman – £208,000

• Base Board fee – £57,742

• Additional fees for chairing the Audit or Remuneration Committee – £6,242

• Additional fees for the Senior Independent Directorship – £2,080
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The following information has been subject to audit:
Remuneration outcomes during 2016 
The table below sets out the remuneration received/receivable in relation to the year ended 30 September 2016. 

Name
£000

Base salary/
fees

Taxable 
benefits (i) Pension (ii)

Annual  
bonus (iii) LTIP (iv)

SIP matching 
shares (v) Total

2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015

Executive directors

Simon Townsend 472 463 28 28 118 116 498 282 – 737 2 2 1,118 1,628

Neil Smith 385 378 28 28 96 94 410 238 – 672 – – 919 1,410

Total 857 841 56 56 214 210 908 520 – 1,409 2 2 2,037 3,038

Chairman and non-executive directors

Robert Walker 207 203 – – – – – – – – – – 207 203

David Maloney 66 64 – – – – – – – – – – 66 64

Peter Baguley 64 62 – – – – – – – – – – 64 62

Adam Fowle 57 56 – – – – – – – – – – 57 56

Marisa Cassoni (vi) 57 28 – – – – – – – – – – 57 28

Total 451 413 – – – – – – – – – – 451 413

(i) Taxable benefits include car allowances or use of a motor car, fuel, private medical, travel, accident and legal expenses insurances.

(ii) This comprises either direct contributions to personal pension arrangements or cash in lieu of directors’ pension contributions (these sums are not 
included in any bonus or share incentive award calculations). Of the amounts shown, the element for 2016 relating to salary supplements in lieu of 
contributions are £118,000 (2015: £116,000) for Simon Townsend and £96,000 (2015: £94,000) for Neil Smith. The pension contributions for Simon 
Townsend have been restated for the prior year and increased by £1,000.

(iii) The 2016 bonuses were payable based on EPS performance, individual personal and strategic targets and delivery of progress of the strategic plan. 
Bonus pay-outs ranged from 105.5% to 106.5% of salary (2015: 61% to 63%). At least half of any award over target performance is deferred into 
shares. Simon Townsend deferred a greater sum equivalent to 19% of his bonus (20% of salary) into deferred shares (2015: 9% of bonus) and Neil 
Smith also deferred a greater sum equivalent to 19% of his bonus (20% of salary) into deferred shares (2015: 10% of bonus). Deferred shares ordinarily 
vest after 3 years and are not subject to any further performance conditions. Details of the bonuses earned are set out on page 65. 

(iv) No amounts vested in respect of a performance period ending during the financial year. The performance period for the 2011 performance and matching 
awards ended on 3 January 2015. The award was subject to a TSR performance condition and the Company’s TSR performance was in the upper 
quintile of the comparator group of the FTSE 250 at the date of the grant. The awards were achieved in full, and vest in 3 equal tranches in 2015, 
2016 and 2017. Simon Townsend and Neil Smith have both exercised the first and second tranches and the third tranche is not subject to any further 
performance conditions. Accordingly, in the LTIP figure in the above table for 2015, the value of the full award has been included, calculated using the 
share price on the date of vesting of 110.2 pence.

(v) The SIP is an all-employee share plan under which in December 2015 the Company matched on a 1:1 basis shares purchased up to a value of £1,800. 
The 1:1 basis used values the matching shares at the date of grant at £1,800. Continued employment and a three year holding period apply to the 
matching element. In accordance with HMRC requirements no performance conditions are set. 

(vi) Marisa Cassoni was appointed to the Board on 1 April 2015.

Annual bonus 2016
Awards under the plan are subject to demanding performance targets. For the year under review, the bonus was 
structured as follows:

• 80% of salary subject to a sliding scale of challenging adjusted basic EPS targets; 

• 20% of salary subject to challenging individual personal and strategic targets; and

• 50% of salary was based on and linked to key milestones in the delivery of the 2020 strategy.

Any bonus earned in respect of the latter two elements can only be paid if a threshold level of adjusted EPS 
performance is delivered. 

Executive directors are required to defer 50% of any bonus earned over target into shares with the remainder paid in 
cash (executive directors can choose voluntarily to defer more of the award into shares if they so wish and have both 
done so). 
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EPS targets
The adjusted EPS targets for the bonus plan were set at the beginning of the year and reflected the outlook at that time 
taking into account the Company’s plans to generate cash and pay down debt. 

The targets for the proportion of the bonus based on EPS are set out in the table below. For performance between the 
EPS targets specified, a straight line sliding scale applies. 

Award level
(% weighted 

annual salary) EPS

Below threshold 0% Less than 19.2p

Target 40% 19.5p

Maximum 80% 19.7p

Actual performance 60% 19.6p

Personal and strategic targets
Each executive director was given a number of different personal and strategic objectives individually tailored to their role 
and the needs of the business in the year now under review. Different weightings were applied to each objective. The 
achievements against objectives were considered carefully by the Committee and weightings given to each individual 
component. The precise objectives are considered by the Company to be commercially sensitive and, accordingly, are 
not disclosed. The Committee agreed that on a combined assessment of performance the executive directors had 
achieved well above target. Target would deliver 50% of the maximum (10% of salary) and the final agreed bonus for this 
element for each director is set out below.

Simon Townsend

Performance metric Actual performance delivered
 Performance 

assessment

Bonus 
earned  

(% of salary)

Personal and 
strategic 
measures  
(up to 20%  
of salary)*

Improve business 
performance across 
key areas to support 
strategic intent

Further improvement in business performance, 
including full year like-for-like growth in net income 
across the leased and tenanted business, reduction in 
costs associated with business failures, increased the 
proportion of capital investment directed at growth-
orientated projects

Above target

}18%

Progress towards 
strategic development 
of people, structure 
and engagement

Continued implementation of organisational redesign 
to allow for the Group’s strategic plans, including 
redeployment of staff to deliver business efficiencies 
and further improvement in staff engagement

Above target

Delivery of improved 
stakeholder 
engagement as part 
of the execution of 
the strategy 

Significant progress in internal and external 
communications, including effective engagement with 
regulators during the introduction of new legislation 
and extensive communication to capital markets. 
The evolution of the Group’s strategy has seen the 
relaunch of the leased and tenanted business offer, 
demonstrating improved customer satisfaction levels 
amongst existing lessees and tenants

Above target

Improved corporate 
stewardship and 
building of legacy 
culture

Effective execution and evolution of strategic 
transformation and change programme whilst 
maintaining underlying business performance

Above target

* Bonuses earned by reference to the personal and strategic measures are based on a qualitative assessment by the Committee of performance against 
the relevant measures. No bonus is earned unless a threshold level of adjusted EPS performance is delivered (above 19.2p for the year ended 
30 September 2016). 
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Neil Smith

Performance metric Actual performance delivered
 Performance 

assessment

Bonus 
earned 

(% of salary)

Personal and 
strategic 
measures  
(up to 20%  
of salary)*

Improve business 
performance across 
key areas to support 
strategic intent

Specific business improvement areas exceeded 
budget expectations in each of operating efficiencies, 
cash management, debt management and return on 
capital employed (ROCE)

Above target

}19%

Effective transitional 
management 
during strategic 
implementation 

Maintained day-to-day business momentum during 
strategic development including management of 
capital strategy

Above target

Improved 
engagement and 
performance across 
people and customer 

Significant progress towards building and developing 
integrated scaleable back office facility to service all 
operating models across the business cost effectively.
Progressed IT development to improve efficiencies of 
all field based staff

Above target

Delivery of optimal 
capital structure

Developed and delivered a capital structure which 
supports the evolving shape of the business

Above target

* Bonuses earned by reference to the personal and strategic measures are based on a qualitative assessment by the Committee of performance against 
the relevant measures. No bonus is earned unless a threshold level of adjusted EPS performance is delivered (above 19.2p for the year ended 
30 September 2016). 

Delivery of the 2020 strategy
The additional element of the annual bonus, with an opportunity of up to 50% of salary for both executive directors, was 
based on strategic milestones aligned to the delivery of the 2020 strategy and the growth and quality in the numbers of 
sites in the categories below. The Committee considered the delivery by the executive directors across all elements of 
the strategic milestones in assessing the overall level of performance and the bonus attributable. The Committee agreed 
that on a combined assessment of performance the executive directors had achieved just above target, which delivers 
50% of the maximum (25% of salary), and the final agreed bonus for this element was set at 27.5% for both executive 
directors.

Percentage 
of salary that 
can be earned Strategic milestone

Actual 
performance 

delivered 
 Performance 

assessment

Bonus 
earned 

(% of salary)}

50%

Year-end commercial properties and average rental 
growth

311* and 3.8% Above vesting 
threshold

}27.5%

Year-end Craft Union Pub Company 71 Above target

Year-end Bermondsey Pub Company 28 On target

Year-end managed investment partnerships 5 Above target

Year-end managed expert sites 8 Above vesting 
threshold

*  Adjusted for commercial properties sold in the year or held for sale at the year end. 

Detailed disclosure of the threshold and maximum levels for the strategic milestones has not been provided due to 
commercial sensitivity arising from its link to our 2020 strategy but this will be disclosed once this information is no 
longer considered sensitive which we anticipate will be within two years from the date the bonus is paid. 

Enterprise Inns - AR2016 - Gov and Financials.indd   64 07/12/2016   14:21:11



24766.04    7 December 2016 1:54 PM    Proof 6

65Enterprise Inns plc Annual Report and Accounts 
for the year ended 30 September 2016

G
o

ve
rn

a
n

c
e

Overall bonuses earned
The total bonuses earned as a percentage of salary for the year (out of a maximum bonus potential of 150% of average 
weighted salary) were as follows:

EPS
Personal and 

strategic
2020 strategic 

milestones

Bonus 
earned in 

2016
% of salary 

Total % 
of 2016 

opportunity

Bonus 
earned in 

2015
% of salary

Simon Townsend 60% 18% 27.5% 105.5% 70% 61%

Neil Smith 60% 19% 27.5% 106.5% 71% 63%

Half of any bonus earned above 75% of salary (the bonus earned for target performance) is deferred into shares. Simon 
Townsend has deferred a greater amount, equivalent to 20% in total of his salary and Neil Smith has also deferred a 
greater amount, equivalent to 20% in total of his salary. 

Deferred Share Awards
Details of the shares awarded under the bonus plan to executive directors in respect of the year under review and 
previous years are set out in the table below. 

Name/
Plan year 

Date of 
grant 

At 1 Oct 
2015 Granted Exercised

At 30 Sept 
2016

Face value 
at grant 

£000 (i)   

Exercisable/holding period

From To
Simon Townsend

2012 12/12/2012 243,585 – (243,585) – – 12/12/2015 12/06/2016

2013 13/12/2013 75,182 – – 75,182 111 13/12/2016 13/06/2017

2014 12/12/2014 114,028 – – 114,028 123 12/12/2017 12/06/2018

2015 (ii) 14/12/2015 24,608 – – 24,608 25 14/12/2018 13/06/2019

2016 (iii) 14/11/2016 – 101,430 – 101,430 94 14/11/2019 13/05/2020

Total 457,403 101,430 (243,585) 315,248 353

Neil Smith

2012 12/12/2012 97,981 – (97,981) – – 12/12/2015 12/06/2016

2013 13/12/2013 29,719 – – 29,719 44 13/12/2016 13/06/2017

2014 12/12/2014 99,487 – – 99,487 107 12/12/2017 12/06/2018

2015 (ii) 14/12/2015 23,709 – – 23,709 25 14/12/2018 13/06/2019

2016 (iii) 14/11/2016 – 82,782 – 82,782 77 14/11/2019 13/05/2020

Total 250,896 82,782 (97,981) 235,697 253

(i) Face value is calculated as the value of the shares on the respective date of grant of each award, except as noted in (iii) below. 

(ii) This reflects the actual number of shares granted on 14 December 2015. As explained in the 2015 directors’ remuneration report, this figure was 
previously based on an estimated market value of shares. 

(iii) The share price at which the number of deferred shares granted under the bonus plan is calculated will not be confirmed until after the date of approval 
of the accounts. The number of deferred shares awarded for the 2016 financial year is therefore estimated by using the closing mid-market price of the 
shares on 30 September 2016, being 93.0 pence. The number of shares granted along with the actual grant and exercise dates will therefore be revised 
to reflect the result on the actual date of grant, when an announcement will be made to shareholders. 

Deferred shares ordinarily vest after three years and are not subject to any further performance conditions but are 
subject to future service conditions which are set out in the policy table of the directors’ remuneration report included in 
our Annual Report 2015.

£1 in aggregate is payable on the exercise of each year’s award under the bonus plan.
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Long-Term Incentive Plan (LTIP)
The LTIP has been operated from 2005 to 2014 under the 2005 LTIP and since 2015 under the 2015 LTIP. Under the 2005 
LTIP two types of award could be made: 

• an award of ‘performance shares’, worth up to 150% of salary each year; and

• an award of ‘matching shares’ linked to the co-investment of up to 25% of salary in ‘investment shares’, which were 
then matched on a 2:1 basis.

Shares that counted as ‘investment shares’ were: 

• shares subject to a Deferred Share Award under the bonus plan; and 

• shares acquired by participants using their cash bonus or other funds, up to a maximum of 25% of salary. 

Under the 2015 LTIP there is no matching share element.

In the table below we have shown the vesting schedule for the awards granted in respect of 2016.

Vesting as  
% of salary

Threshold Stretch Additional stretch

Target Pay-out Target Pay-out Target Pay-out

Performance 
measures

TSR (i) Median 17.5% Upper quartile 62.5% Upper quintile 87.5%

ROCE (ii),(iii) Budget + 
0.25%

8.75% Budget + 
1.0%

31.25% n/a 31.25%

FCF (iv) £330m 8.75% £345m 31.25% £360m 56.25%

Total 35.0% 125.0% 175%

(i) The Comparator Group is Enterprise and the companies within the FTSE 250 (excluding Investment Trusts) at the start of the performance period on 
1 October 2015.

(ii) Average ROCE is the average of the Company’s ROCE (EBITDA, before exceptional items) divided by Adjusted Capital Employed for each of the three 
financial years in the performance period being year ends September 2016, 2017 and 2018.

(iii) The Committee considers that disclosing the forward looking three year ROCE budget is commercially sensitive and has therefore chosen not to 
disclose it in advance but will provide full details if the award vests.

(iv) Cumulative Free Cash Flow (FCF) is total cash flow from operations less interest and taxes but before capital expenditure and disposals for the three 
financial years in the performance period.

(v) Irrespective of performance against TSR, ROCE and FCF, the award will only vest to the extent that the Remuneration Committee is satisfied that the 
Company’s underlying financial performance over the performance period supports the vesting.

There will be straight line vesting between the points and no reward below threshold performance. 

Performance is measured over three years; however, awards vest after three, four and five years in equal tranches. 
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Details of conditional awards of shares made under the LTIP during the year under review and prior years are set out in 
the table below. 

Name/
Plan year 

Date of 
grant 

At 1 Oct 
2015

Awarded 
performance 

shares Exercised Lapsed (vii)
At 30 Sept 

2016

Face value 
at grant 

£000 

Exercisable

From To
Simon Townsend

2011 (i), (iv) 03/01/2012 445,993 – (222,996) – 222,997 576 03/01/2015 03/01/2018

2012 (ii), (iv) 12/12/2012 754,914 – – (754,914) – – – –

2013 (ii), (iv) 13/12/2013 438,636 – – – 438,636 650 13/12/2016 13/12/2019

2014 (ii), (v) 09/02/2015 536,201 – – – 536,201 579 09/02/2018 09/02/2021

2015 (iii), (vi) 12/02/2016 – 829,285 – – 829,285 825 12/02/2019 12/02/2022

Total 2,175,744 829,285 (222,996) (754,914) 2,027,119 2,630

Neil Smith

2011 (i), (iv) 03/01/2012 406,504 – (203,252) – 203,252 525 03/01/2015 03/01/2018

2012 (ii), (iv) 12/12/2012 661,230 – – (661,230) – – – –

2013 (ii), (iv) 13/12/2013 307,838 – – – 307,838 456 13/12/2016 13/12/2019

2014 (ii), (v) 09/02/2015 437,121 – – – 437,121 472 09/02/2018 09/02/2021

2015 (iii), (vi) 12/02/2016 – 676,822 – – 676,822 674 12/02/2019 12/02/2022

Total 1,812,693 676,822 (203,252) (661,230) 1,625,033 2,127

(i) Plan Year 2011 LTIP awards (granted in respect of the financial year ended 30 September 2012) vested in full in January 2015. One-third of the award 
became exercisable in January 2015, one-third became exercisable in January 2016 and the final one-third will become exercisable in January 2017, 
subject to continued employment. The 2011 LTIP award is based on a notional share price of 86.1 pence.

(ii) Plan Years 2012, 2013 and 2014 LTIP awards (granted in respect of the years ended 30 September 2013, 2014 and 2015 respectively) are based on a 
policy of using a five day average share price (following the date of the announcement of the results for that year) to determine the number of shares 
comprising the LTIP award. This was 76.30 pence for those granted in December 2012, 148.12 pence for those granted in December 2013 and 108.04 
pence for those granted in February 2015. 

(iii) Plan Year 2015 LTIP award (granted in respect of the year ended 30 September 2016) is based on a policy of using a three month average share price 
leading up to the date of grant, which was 99.53 pence. This number of shares is fixed for grants that may be made in respect of the next two financial 
years.

(iv) Plan Years 2011, 2012 and 2013, the performance conditions applying to these awards are solely based on relative TSR performance, which compares 
the Company’s TSR performance over the three year performance period with the TSR of the FTSE 250 as follows:

Company’s TSR ranking v the FTSE 250  
over the three year performance period 

Percentage of performance 
share award that vests

Level of matching share award (matching award 
shares: investment shares)

Below median 0% 0:1

Median 0% 0:1

Upper quintile 100% 2:1

(v) Plan Year 2014 – The performance conditions applying to these awards are based on relative TSR (as regards 70% of the award) and ROCE performance 
(as regards 30% of the award). Straight line vesting will occur if the Company’s TSR ranking is between the median and upper quintile/quartile (as 
appropriate) and for ROCE performance between threshold and maximum. As with previous LTIP awards, vesting occurs in three equal tranches on 
the third, fourth and fifth anniversaries of the grant. In addition, irrespective of the Company’s TSR or ROCE performance, awards will only vest if the 
Committee is satisfied that the TSR or ROCE result is reflective of the Company’s underlying financial performance over the relevant period.

(vi) Plan Year 2015 – The performance conditions are set out on page 66.

(vii) LTIP award granted on 12 December 2012 was based solely on TSR performance in the three year period prior to December 2015, it did not meet the 
challenging minimum vesting target and lapsed in full.

£1 in aggregate is payable on the exercise of each year’s LTIP award.
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Directors’ share options 
No executive share options have been granted to any of the executive directors in the current or prior year. Options 
granted under the Company’s Save As You Earn (SAYE) scheme are shown in the table below. There are no performance 
conditions restricting the exercise of options held under this scheme (reflecting the relevant legislation). 

Name
Exercise 

price 
At 1 Oct 

2015 Exercised Lapsed Granted 
At 30 Sept 

2016

Simon Townsend 24.2p  61,983  –  –  – 61,983 (i)

86.88p 17,437  –  –  – 17,437 (ii)

Neil Smith 24.2p  61,983  –  –  – 61,983 (i)

(i) Exercise period from 1 February 2017 to 1 August 2017

(ii) Exercise period from 1 February 2020 to 1 August 2020

The highest and lowest closing mid-market prices of the Company’s shares during the year under review were 111.80 
pence and 72.75 pence respectively. The closing mid-market price of the Company’s shares at 30 September 2016 was 
93.0 pence. 

Share Incentive Plan (SIP)
During the year under review, Simon Townsend purchased 1,727 shares under the SIP at 104.2 pence per share (2015: 
1,405 at a price of 106.8 pence per share). These shares were matched by the Company on a 1:1 basis (2015: 1:1) 
conditional upon continued employment. The face value of the shares awarded under the matching arrangement was 
£1,800 (2015: £1,500). Details of the total partnership and matching shares held under the SIP are included in the table 
of directors’ interests on page 69. 

Dilution limits
Whilst the Company has authority and retains discretion to issue new shares and/or treasury shares under its 
employees’ share plans, since 1 October 2004 the Company’s policy has been to satisfy all awards and options granted 
under the Company’s executive share schemes and all-employee share incentive plans using existing shares purchased 
in the market by the Trustees of the Company’s Employee Benefit Trust (the Trust). At 30 September 2016 no new shares 
or treasury shares have been issued to satisfy awards or options granted in the previous ten years under any of the 
Company’s employee share incentive plans and, as at 30 September 2016, the total number of shares held in the Trust 
was 6,851,312 equivalent to 1.4% of the issued ordinary share capital of the Company, excluding treasury shares.

Directors’ share interests 
Since 2011 share ownership guidelines have existed for the executive directors which require them to build up and 
retain a holding of shares equal in value to their base salaries. In 2016 the requirements were increased to two times’ 
salary for the CEO and one and a half times’ salary for the CFO. Executive directors are expected to build up the 
required shareholding by the later of: (i) the fifth anniversary of the introduction of the guidelines in 2011 (or, as regards 
the additional element following the revision of the guidelines in 2016, the fifth anniversary of that revision); and (ii) 
the fifth anniversary of them joining the Board; and they are required to retain 50% of the net of tax vested awards 
under the LTIP and/or Deferred Share Awards until the guidelines are met. The directors either already hold the required 
shareholdings under the original guidelines or are not yet at the anniversary dates for them to do so.
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The interests of the directors who held office during the period from 1 October 2015 to 30 September 2016 in the 
ordinary shares of the Company are as set out in the table below: 

As at 30 September 2016 As at 1 October 2015

Beneficial (i) Conditional Beneficial (i) Conditional

Director LTIP (ii)
Deferred 
shares (iii) LTIP (ii)

Deferred 
shares (iii)

Simon Townsend 1,143,248 2,027,119 315,248 979,305 2,175,744 457,403

Neil Smith 375,000 1,625,033 235,697 253,207 1,812,693 250,896

Robert Walker 502,000 – – 435,000 – –

David Maloney 75,000 – – 25,000 – –

Peter Baguley – – – – – –

Adam Fowle 60,000 – – – – –

Marisa Cassoni – – – – – –

(i) Beneficial share interests include partnership and matching shares held under the SIP of 42,080 shares for Simon Townsend at 30 September 2016 
(2015: 38,626 shares).

(ii) Full details of LTIP awards, including performance conditions and exercise periods, are set out in the table on page 67.

(iii) Full details of Deferred Share Awards, including exercise periods, are set out in the table on page 65. The calculation of the deferred shares awarded 
for 2016 is estimated by using the closing mid-market price of the shares on 30 September 2016, being 93.0 pence. The number of shares granted, 
along with the exercise dates will therefore be revisited to reflect the result on the actual date of grant, when an announcement will be made to 
shareholders. The 2015 disclosure above has been similarly adjusted.

In respect of directors serving at 30 September 2016, save for contributions to the SAYE scheme, there have been no 
other changes in share interests from 30 September 2016 to the date of this report.

The directors are not permitted to hold their shares in hedging arrangements or as collateral for loans without the 
express permission of the Board. None of the directors currently holds their shares in such an arrangement. 

The following information has not been subject to audit:
Percentage change in the remuneration of the Chief Executive Officer 

2016
£000

2015
£000 % change

Chief Executive Officer 

– salary 472 463 1.9

– benefits 28 28 –

– bonus 498 282 76.6

Average per employee 

– salary 38.1 38.6 (1.3)

– benefits 3.1 3.3 (6.1)

– bonus 4.9 6.3 (22. 2)

The table above shows the movement in the remuneration for the CEO between the current and previous financial 
year compared with movement of the average remuneration (per head) for all Group employees. The total number of 
employees has increased in the year as we have increased the number of employees within our expanding managed 
pubs businesses. This change in employee mix has led to the apparent reduction in reward for the average employee. 
The profile of the employee base is expected to continue to change in accordance with the 2020 strategy.
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Relative importance of the spend on pay
The table below shows the relative importance of the spend on pay (for all employees) compared with the returns 
distributed to shareholders:

2016
£m

2015
£m % change

Remuneration paid to or receivable by all employees 37 33 12

Distributions to shareholders by way of dividends and share buybacks 10 – –

Historical comparative TSR performance graph 
The graph below shows the TSR in terms of change in value (with dividends re-invested) of an initial investment of £100 
on 1 October 2008 in a holding of the Company’s shares against the corresponding TSR in a hypothetical holding of 
shares in the companies represented in the FTSE 250 index. The FTSE 250 index was selected as it represents a broad 
equity market index in which the Company has been a constituent member during the period. 

Total Shareholder Return (TSR)
Source: Thomson Reuters Datastream
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The graph shows the value at 30 September 2016 of £100 invested in the Company’s shares on 1 October 2008 
compared with the value of £100 notionally invested in the FTSE 250 index. The other points plotted are the values at 
intervening financial year ends.

Chief Executive Officer 
Remuneration

Year ended 30 September

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

Total remuneration 972 1,386 1,073 1,159 1,024 1,084 1,628 1,118

Annual bonus (%)* 18% 87% 38% 51% 30% 76% 61% 70%

LTIP vesting (%)* 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 100% 0%

*  Percentage of the maximum award (for LTIP, this includes matching shares).

The table above shows the total remuneration figure for the CEO during each of those financial years. The total 
remuneration figure includes the annual bonus, matching shares awarded in relation to the SIP and LTIP awards 
(performance and matching) which vested based on performance in those years. The figures are calculated on the basis 
of the salary, benefits, pension, bonus and SIP of the former CEO for the period he was CEO until 6 February 2014 and 
for Simon Townsend from 6 February 2014.

The total remuneration in 2015 includes the full value of the LTIP which vested in the year, although awards become 
exercisable in equal tranches over three years from the date of vesting, subject to continued employment.
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Service contracts
A summary of the service contracts and letters of appointments for the directors is set out below:

Executive director Date of agreement Effective date Notice period

Simon Townsend 31 October 2000 1 October 2000 12 months

Neil Smith 8 October 2010 1 January 2011 12 months

Non-executive director Date of appointment Expiry date

Robert Walker 9 February 2012 Terminable on 6 months’ notice

David Maloney 10 July 2008 Terminable on 6 months’ notice

Peter Baguley 31 January 2013 Terminable on 6 months’ notice

Adam Fowle 6 February 2014 Terminable on 6 months’ notice

Marisa Cassoni 1 April 2015 Terminable on 6 months’ notice

External appointments 
The executive directors may accept outside appointments provided that such appointments do not in any way prejudice 
their ability to perform their duties as executive directors of the Company. The extent to which any executive director is 
allowed to retain any fees payable in respect of such outside appointments, or whether such fees are remitted to the 
Company, will be assessed on a case-by-case basis. Neither of the executive directors held any such appointments in 
the year under review (2015: none).

Shareholder vote 
The Committee encourages dialogue with the Company’s shareholders and will endeavour to consult with major 
shareholders ahead of any significant future changes to the remuneration policy. 

Details of the votes cast in relation to the directors’ remuneration report, remuneration policy and changes to the 2015 
LTIP at last year’s AGM are set out below:

Remuneration 
policy %

Remuneration 
report %

Changes to 
LTIP %

Votes cast in favour 280,915,725 92.81 302,463,825 99.93 280,491,921 92.66

Votes cast against 21,748,037 7.19 199,937 0.07 22,217,827 7.34

Total 302,663,762 302,663,762 302,709,748

Votes withheld 2,678,709 2,678,709 2,632,727

Application of the policy for 2017
Base salaries and fees
At the date of this report the Committee has not reviewed the salaries for the executive directors which take effect on 
1 January 2017. It is anticipated that any increase will be modest, would not exceed the increases awarded to the wider 
workforce and would be based on merit. 

Also at the date of this report the fees for the Chairman and non-executive directors effective from 1 January 2017 have 
not been reviewed. The fee policy is as set out in our remuneration policy. 

The two all-employee share plans, SAYE and SIP, will be considered on an annual basis and may be offered subject to the 
limits permitted under the relevant legislation.
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Directors’ 
remuneration report

Annual bonus 2017
The maximum bonus opportunity for the 2017 financial year will be 150% of salary for both executive directors: an award 
of up to 80% of salary may be earned subject to the achievement of a sliding scale of adjusted basic EPS targets; up 
to 20% of salary may be earned subject to personal and strategic targets; and up to a further 50% of salary may be 
earned subject to the achievement of specific strategic milestones connected to the delivery of the 2020 strategy. The 
Committee considers that the targets for the 2017 bonus, are commercially sensitive at this time and has therefore 
chosen not to disclose them in advance. Details of the targets will be set out retrospectively in next year’s annual report 
on remuneration in line with the disclosures provided this year for the 2016 bonus. The personal measures are focused 
on three to four lead indicators of performance and the strategic targets based on the 2020 strategy and will continue 
to include measurable targets based on: number of new experts under our managed model; number of managed sites; 
number of commercial properties; and average rents. All targets are considered to be demanding in the context of the 
Company’s circumstances. 

LTIP awards 2017
The structure of the award will be unchanged from the awards made in 2016 and will vest subject to the achievement of 
stretching performance targets based on relative TSR, ROCE and FCF as set out in the table below. The LTIP opportunity 
for 2017 will be over the same number of shares granted under the 2016 LTIP award, for Simon Townsend 829,285 
shares and for Neil Smith 676,822 shares. For clarity, the vesting schedule has therefore been shown as a proportion of 
the overall award rather than as a percentage of salary (which is how it has been disclosed for the 2016 award).

Vesting will be determined as a 
proportion of shares awarded

Threshold Stretch Additional stretch

Target Pay-out Target Pay-out Target Pay-out

Performance 
measures

TSR Median 10% Upper quartile 35% Upper quintile 50%

ROCE Budget +
0.25%

5% Budget + 1.0% 18% n/a 18%

FCF £335m 5% £350m 18% £365m 32%

Total 20% 71% 100%

Relative TSR, ROCE and FCF remain relevant performance metrics for the Company bringing a combined focus 
on internal and external performance which will be improved by the successful delivery of the 2020 strategy. The 
Committee considers that disclosing the forward looking three year ROCE budget is commercially sensitive and has 
therefore chosen not to disclose it in advance but will provide full details if the award vests.

There will be straight line vesting between the points, no reward below threshold performance and the Remuneration 
Committee will require that awards will only be earned if underlying financial performance supports it. 

Performance is measured over three years; however, awards vest after three, four and five years in equal tranches. 

Approval 
This directors’ remuneration report has been approved by the Board of Directors of the Company. 

On behalf of the Board 

P J Baguley 
Chairman, Remuneration Committee 
14 November 2016
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Statement of directors’ 
responsibilities
in relation to the Group and  
Company financial statements

The directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report, the directors’ remuneration report and the financial 
statements in accordance with applicable law and regulations. Company law requires the directors to prepare financial 
statements for each financial year. Under that law the directors have prepared the Group and Company financial 
statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the EU. Under 
company law the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and 
fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and the Company and of the profit or loss of the Group and Company for 
that period. In preparing these financial statements, the directors are required to:

• select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently; 

• make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent; 

• state whether applicable IFRSs as adopted by the EU have been followed, subject to any material departures 
disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and 

• prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the Company 
will continue in business. 

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the 
Company’s and the Group’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the 
Company and the Group and to enable them to ensure that the financial statements and the directors’ remuneration 
report comply with the Companies Act 2006 and, as regards the Group financial statements, Article 4 of the IAS 
Regulation. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and the Group and hence for taking 
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The directors are also responsible for preparing the directors’ report (including the corporate governance report), 
directors’ remuneration report in accordance with the Companies Act 2006 and applicable regulations, including the 
Listing Rules and the Disclosure Guidance and Transparency Rules.

The directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the Company’s website. Legislation in the UK 
governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

Each of the directors, whose names and functions are disclosed on pages 44 and 45, confirms that, to the best of their 
knowledge:

• the Group financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU, give a 
true and fair view of the assets, liabilities, financial position and result of the Group; and 

• the strategic report includes a fair review of the development and performance of the business and the position of the 
Group, together with a description of the principal risks and uncertainties that it faces. 

The directors are responsible for preparing the annual report in accordance with applicable law and regulations.  Having 
taken advice from the Audit Committee, the Board considers the report and accounts, taken as a whole, to be fair, 
balanced and understandable and that it provides the information necessary for shareholders to assess the Company’s 
performance, business model and strategy.

On behalf of the Board

W S Townsend
Chief Executive Officer
14 November 2016

N R Smith
Chief Financial Officer
14 November 2016
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Group income statement
for the year ended 30 September 2016

2016 2015

Notes

Pre-
exceptional 

items
£m

Exceptional 
items

£m
Total

£m

Pre-
exceptional 

items
£m

Exceptional 
items

£m
Total

£m

Revenue 5 632 – 632 625 – 625 

Operating costs before depreciation 
and amortisation 6 (340) (3) (343) (329) (1) (330)

EBITDA† 292 (3) 289 296 (1) 295 

Depreciation and amortisation (16) – (16) (16) – (16)

Operating profit/(loss) 6 276 (3) 273 280 (1) 279 

Profit on sale of property, plant and 
equipment – 5 5 – 5 5 

Goodwill allocated to disposals – (9) (9) – (8) (8)

Net loss on sale of property, plant and 
equipment 9 – (4) (4) – (3) (3)

Movements in valuation of the estate 
and related assets 10 – (33) (33) – (163) (163)

Finance costs 12 (154) (7) (161) (158) (26) (184)

Profit/(loss) before tax 122 (47) 75 122 (193) (71)

Taxation 13 (25) 21 (4) (25) 31 6 

Profit/(loss) after tax attributable to 
members of the Parent Company 97 (26) 71 97 (162) (65)

Earnings per share 14

Basic 14.2p (13.0)p

Basic diluted 13.7p (13.0)p

Adjusted* 19.6p 19.4p

Adjusted diluted* 18.5p 19.4p

† Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation.

* Excludes exceptional items.

Group statement of  
comprehensive income
for the year ended 30 September 2016

2016
£m

2015
£m

Profit/(loss) for the year 71 (65)

Items that will not be reclassified to the income statement:

Unrealised surplus on revaluation of the estate 21 19 

Movement in deferred tax liability related to revaluation of the estate – (7)

Revaluation of assets on transfer to non-current assets held for sale (1) (1)

Restatement of deferred tax liability related to movements in valuation of the estate and related 
assets for change in UK tax rate 24 –

Other comprehensive profit for the year net of tax 44 11 

Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year attributable to members of the Parent Company 115 (54)
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Balance sheets
at 30 September 2016

Group Company

Notes
2016

£m
2015

£m
2016

£m
2015

£m

Non-current assets

Goodwill 15 321 330 – –

Intangible assets: operating lease premiums 16 9 10 4 4 

Property, plant and equipment 17 3,630 3,663 1,891 1,898 

Investments 18 – – 1,790 1,835 

Financial assets 23 – – 2 215 

Trade receivables 20 3 3 1 1 

3,963 4,006 3,688 3,953 

Current assets

Inventories 19 1 – – –

Trade and other receivables 20 45 40 621 586 

Cash 145 127 18 24 

191 167 639 610 

Non-current assets held for sale 21 21 33 10 13 

Total assets 4,175 4,206 4,337 4,576 

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables 22 (183) (176) (224) (478)

Current tax payable (8) (3) (4) (4)

Financial liabilities 23 (82) (74) (5) –

Pension 28 (2) (2) (2) (2)

(275) (255) (235) (484)

Non-current liabilities

Financial liabilities 23 (2,261) (2,373) (1,258) (1,275)

Provisions 26 (4) (4) (4) (4)

Deferred tax 27 (185) (223) (84) (111)

Pension 28 (2) (5) (2) (5)

(2,452) (2,605) (1,348) (1,395)

Total liabilities (2,727) (2,860) (1,583) (1,879)

Net assets 1,448 1,346 2,754 2,697

Equity

Called up share capital 29 14 14 14 14 

Share premium account 31 486 486 486 486 

Revaluation reserve 31 748 730 446 417 

Capital redemption reserve 31 11 11 11 11 

Merger reserve 31 77 77 – –

Treasury share reserve 31 (227) (227) (227) (227)

Other reserve 31 10 9 339 383 

Profit and loss account 328 246 1,685 1,613 

Equity attributable to members of the Parent Company 1,447 1,346 2,754 2,697 

Non-controlling interests 1 – – –

Total equity 1,448 1,346 2,754 2,697 

Approved by the Board on 14 November 2016 and signed on its behalf:

W S Townsend 
N R Smith
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Statement of changes in equity
at 30 September 2016

Group

Share 
capital 

£m

Share 
premium 
account 

£m

Revaluation 
reserve 

£m

Capital 
redemption 

reserve 
£m

Merger 
reserve 

£m

Treasury 
share 

reserve 
£m

Other 
reserve 

£m

Profit 
and loss 
account 

£m

Equity 
attributable 
to members 

of the Parent 
Company

£m

Non-controlling 
interests

£m

Total 
equity

£m

At 1 October 2014 14 486 723 11 77 (227) 8 311 1,403 – 1,403

Loss for the year – – – – – – – (65) (65) – (65)

Other comprehensive income – – 11 – – – – – 11 – 11 

Total comprehensive income/(loss) – – 11 – – – – (65) (54) – (54)

Transfer of realised revaluation surplus – – (9) – – – – 9 – – –

Transfer of deferred tax on disposals – – 5 – – – – (5) – – –

Share-based expense recognised in operating profit – – – – – – – 2 2 – 2 

Share option entitlements exercised in the year – – – – – – 6 (6) – – –

Purchase of own shares into EBT – – – – – – (5) – (5) – (5)

At 30 September 2015 14 486 730 11 77 (227) 9 246 1,346 – 1,346 

Profit for the year – – – – – – – 71 71 – 71 

Other comprehensive income – – 44 – – – – – 44 – 44 

Total comprehensive income – – 44 – – – – 71 115 – 115 

Transfer of realised revaluation surplus – – (19) – – – – 19 – – –

Transfer of deferred tax on disposals – – 4 – – – – (4) – – –

Reclassification of deferred tax – – (11) – – – – 11 – – –

Share-based expense recognised in operating profit – – – – – – – 2 2 – 2 

Share option entitlements exercised in the year – – – – – – 2 (2) – – –

Purchase of own shares into EBT – – – – – – (1) – (1) – (1)

Issue of subsidiary share capital to non-controlling interests – – – – – – – – – 1 1 

Share buybacks – – – – – – – (10) (10) – (10)

Share buyback commitments – – – – – – – (5) (5) – (5)

At 30 September 2016 14 486 748 11 77 (227) 10 328 1,447 1 1,448 

Enterprise Inns - AR2016 - Gov and Financials.indd   76 07/12/2016   14:21:13



24766.04    7 December 2016 1:54 PM    Proof 6

77Enterprise Inns plc Annual Report and Accounts 
for the year ended 30 September 2016

A
c

c
o

u
n

ts

Group

Share 
capital 

£m

Share 
premium 
account 

£m

Revaluation 
reserve 

£m

Capital 
redemption 

reserve 
£m

Merger 
reserve 

£m

Treasury 
share 

reserve 
£m

Other 
reserve 

£m

Profit 
and loss 
account 

£m

Equity 
attributable 
to members 

of the Parent 
Company

£m

Non-controlling 
interests

£m

Total 
equity

£m

At 1 October 2014 14 486 723 11 77 (227) 8 311 1,403 – 1,403

Loss for the year – – – – – – – (65) (65) – (65)

Other comprehensive income – – 11 – – – – – 11 – 11 

Total comprehensive income/(loss) – – 11 – – – – (65) (54) – (54)

Transfer of realised revaluation surplus – – (9) – – – – 9 – – –

Transfer of deferred tax on disposals – – 5 – – – – (5) – – –

Share-based expense recognised in operating profit – – – – – – – 2 2 – 2 

Share option entitlements exercised in the year – – – – – – 6 (6) – – –

Purchase of own shares into EBT – – – – – – (5) – (5) – (5)

At 30 September 2015 14 486 730 11 77 (227) 9 246 1,346 – 1,346 

Profit for the year – – – – – – – 71 71 – 71 

Other comprehensive income – – 44 – – – – – 44 – 44 

Total comprehensive income – – 44 – – – – 71 115 – 115 

Transfer of realised revaluation surplus – – (19) – – – – 19 – – –

Transfer of deferred tax on disposals – – 4 – – – – (4) – – –

Reclassification of deferred tax – – (11) – – – – 11 – – –

Share-based expense recognised in operating profit – – – – – – – 2 2 – 2 

Share option entitlements exercised in the year – – – – – – 2 (2) – – –

Purchase of own shares into EBT – – – – – – (1) – (1) – (1)

Issue of subsidiary share capital to non-controlling interests – – – – – – – – – 1 1 

Share buybacks – – – – – – – (10) (10) – (10)

Share buyback commitments – – – – – – – (5) (5) – (5)

At 30 September 2016 14 486 748 11 77 (227) 10 328 1,447 1 1,448 
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Statement of changes in equity
at 30 September 2016

Company

Share 
capital 

£m

Share
premium 
account 

£m

Revaluation
reserve 

£m

Capital
redemption

reserve
£m

Merger 
reserve 

£m

Treasury 
share 

reserve 
£m

Other 
reserve 

£m

Profit 
and loss 
account 

£m

Total 
equity

£m

At 1 October 2014 14 486 433 11 – (227) 382 1,580 2,679 

Profit for the year – – – – – – – 37 37 

Other comprehensive loss – – (16) – – – – – (16)

Total comprehensive  
(loss)/income – – (16) – – – – 37 21 

Transfer of realised 
revaluation surplus – – (3) – – – – 3 –

Transfer of deferred tax on 
disposals – – 3 – – – – (3) –

Share-based expense 
recognised in operating 
profit – – – – – – – 2 2 

Share option entitlements 
exercised in the year – – – – – – 6 (6) –

Purchase of own shares 
into EBT – – – – – – (5) – (5)

At 30 September 2015 14 486 417 11 – (227) 383 1,613 2,697 

Profit for the year – – – – – – – 36 36 

Other comprehensive 
income – – 35 – – – – – 35 

Total comprehensive 
income – – 35 – – – – 36 71 

Transfer of realised 
revaluation surplus – – (11) – – – – 11 –

Transfer of deferred tax on 
disposals – – 1 – – – – (1) –

Reclassification of deferred 
tax – – 4 – – – – (4) –

Share-based expense 
recognised in operating 
profit – – – – – – – 2 2 

Share option entitlements 
exercised in the year – – – – – – 2 (2) –

Purchase of own shares 
into EBT – – – – – – (1) – (1)

Share buybacks – – – – – – – (10) (10)

Share buyback 
commitments – – – – – – – (5) (5)

Reclassification  
(see note 31) – – – – – – (45) 45 –

At 30 September 2016 14 486 446 11 – (227) 339 1,685 2,754 
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Cash flow statements
for the year ended 30 September 2016

Group Company
2016

£m
2015

£m
2016

£m
2015

£m

Cash flow from operating activities

Operating profit 273 279 144 151 

Depreciation and amortisation 16 16 11 10 

Share-based expense recognised in profit 2 2 2 2 

Increase in receivables (5) (4) (35) (17)

Increase/(decrease) in payables 1 (2) 9 (18)

Increase in inventories (1) – – –

286 291 131 128 

Expenditure associated with capital structure review (6) – (6) –

Tax paid (11) (26) (8) (26)

Net cash flows from operating activities 269 265 117 102 

Cash flows from investing activities

Payments to acquire public houses – – (30) –

Payments made on improvements to public houses (70) (66) (42) (37)

Payments to acquire other property, plant and equipment (4) (3) (4) (3)

Receipts from sale of property, plant and equipment 98 75 55 36 

New loans to subsidiary undertakings – – (2) –

Payments to subscribe for investments – – – (1)

Dividend from subsidiary undertaking – – 13 11 

Net cash flows from investing activities 24 6 (10) 6 

Cash flows from financing activities

Interest paid (155) (158) (82) (80)

Interest received 1 1 – –

Debt extinguishment costs – (26) – (26)

Debt restructuring costs (7) (2) – (2)

Payments to acquire own debt (10) – – –

Payments to acquire own shares (11) (5) (11) (5)

Proceeds from the issue of subsidiary share capital to non-controlling 
interests 1 – – –

New loans 75 397 75 397 

Repayment of loans (169) (474) (95) (403)

Net cash flows from financing activities (275) (267) (113) (119)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash 18 4 (6) (11)

Cash at start of year 127 123 24 35 

Cash at end of year 145 127 18 24 
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Notes to the accounts
at 30 September 2016

1.  General information
The consolidated financial statements of Enterprise Inns plc for the year ended 30 September 2016 were authorised 
for issue by the Board on 14 November 2016. Enterprise Inns plc is a public limited company incorporated and 
registered in England. The Company’s ordinary shares are traded on the London Stock Exchange.

2.  Presentation of financial statements
Statement of compliance
These financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis and in accordance with International Financial 
Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the European Union (EU).

Basis of preparation
The financial information for the year ending 30 September 2016 has been prepared in accordance with the 
accounting policies set out in note 3 and is presented in pounds sterling. Amounts are shown in millions, unless 
stated otherwise.

Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of Enterprise Inns plc and its 
subsidiaries. Consolidated financial statements are drawn up to 30 September each year and adjustments are made 
to the financial statements of the subsidiaries where necessary to bring the accounting policies used in line with 
those used by the Group.

Subsidiaries are those controlled by the Group. Control exists when the Group is exposed to, or has the rights to, 
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power 
over the entity taking into account any potential voting rights. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which 
control is transferred to the Group and cease to be consolidated from the date on which control is transferred out of 
the Group.

Non-controlling interests in the net assets of consolidated subsidiaries are identified separately from the Group’s 
equity in those subsidiaries. Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are attributed to the 
equity holders of the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling interests.

Result of the Parent Company
The directors have taken advantage of the exemption provided under section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 not to 
publish the Parent Company individual income statement, statement of comprehensive income and related notes.

Going concern 
The Group’s business activities, including a description of its financial position, cash flows, debt and borrowing 
facilities, are set out in the strategic report on pages 1 to 39, along with a summary of factors likely to affect the 
Group’s future development and performance.

Further details on the Group’s financial instruments and risks can be found in note 23 of the accounts on  
pages 107 to 114.

The directors have considered the Group’s financial resources including a review of the medium-term financial plan, 
which includes a review of the Group’s cash flow forecasts for the period of at least 12 months from the date of 
approval of these financial statements along with the principal risks and uncertainties as described on  
pages 34 to 38.

Based on the outcome of the above considerations the directors have a reasonable expectation that the Group has 
adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the period under review. For this reason the directors 
continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the financial statements.

Exceptional items
The Group has elected to classify certain items as exceptional and present them separately on the face of the 
income statement. Exceptional items are classified as those which are separately identified by virtue of their size or 
nature to allow a full understanding of the underlying performance of the Group.

Exceptional items are explained further in notes 8, 9, 10, 12 and 13.
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New standards and interpretations not yet adopted
As at 30 September 2016 there are a number of standards, amendments and interpretations in issue (some of 
which have not yet been adopted by the EU) with an effective date for financial years beginning on or after the 
dates disclosed below and which have not been early adopted by the Parent Company or Group. 

• IAS 1: Presentation of Financial Statements 1 January 2016
Disclosure initiative – amendments to IAS 1

• IAS 27: Separate Financial Statements 1 January 2016
Equity method in separate financial statements – amendments to IAS 27

• IAS 7: Statement of Cash Flows 1 January 2017
Disclosure initiative – amendments to IAS 7

• IAS 12: Income Taxes 1 January 2017
Recognition of deferred tax assets for unrealised losses – amendments to IAS 12

• IFRS 2: Share-based Payments 1 January 2018
Classification and measurement of share-based payment transactions – amendments to IFRS 2

• IFRS 9: Financial Instruments 1 January 2018

• IFRS 15: Revenue from Contracts with Customers 1 January 2018

• IFRS 16: Leases 1 January 2019

IFRS 15 should be applied for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018. The standard should be 
applied in full for the year of adoption, including retrospective application to all contracts that were not yet complete 
at the beginning of that period. IFRS 16 should be applied for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 
1 January 2019. It can be adopted earlier, as long as IFRS 15 has also been adopted. The standard can be applied 
with full retrospective effect or the cumulative impact of initially applying IFRS 16 can be adjusted into opening 
equity at the date of initial application. Implementation of both of these standards may have an impact on the 
financial statements of the Group and Parent Company and an assessment of the impact of them is being carried 
out. The Group and Parent Company are presently unable to quantify the potential impact until this assessment has 
been concluded.

The other new standards and amendments are not expected to have a material impact on the financial statements.

3. Accounting policies
Goodwill
Goodwill represents the excess of consideration over the fair value of identifiable assets and liabilities acquired in 
a business combination. Goodwill is not amortised but is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently where 
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. Goodwill is stated at cost less 
any impairment. On disposal of a property, an attributable amount of goodwill is included in the determination of 
profit or loss on sale. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to cash generating units that are 
consistent with the Group’s operating segments. As pubs move between segments the associated goodwill will 
also be transferred.

Goodwill arising on acquisitions prior to 1 October 1998 was written off against reserves and has not been 
subsequently reversed. Any such goodwill is not included in determining the profit or loss on disposal. 

Fixed asset investments
Fixed asset investments in the Parent Company balance sheet are initially recognised at fair value and then held at 
this value subject to an annual impairment test.
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Notes to the accounts
at 30 September 2016

3. Accounting policies (continued)
Property, plant and equipment
Licensed land and buildings, comprising of pub assets and non-pub assets, are held at their fair value, and landlord’s 
fixtures and fittings and other assets are held at cost. 

‘Pub’ refers to land and buildings held for operation as a licensed public house, excluding movable landlords’ fixtures 
and fittings. ‘Non-pub’ refers to land and buildings previously held as a pub but are now leased for another use e.g. 
as a convenience store.

The Group’s licensed land and buildings, except for those non-current assets held for sale, are revalued each year by 
external valuers or employees who are professionally qualified to carry out such valuations.

Surpluses arising from the revaluation exercise are taken through other comprehensive income to the revaluation 
reserve except where they reverse a revaluation decrease relating to the same asset previously recognised as 
an expense in the income statement. Any deficit arising from the revaluation exercise is taken through other 
comprehensive income to the revaluation reserve to the extent that there is a surplus in place relating to the same 
asset. Any further decrease in value is recognised in the income statement as an expense.

Freehold land is not depreciated. Freehold buildings are depreciated so as to write off the difference between their 
carrying value and residual value over their useful economic life of 50 years. Residual value is reviewed at least at 
each financial year end and there is no depreciable amount if residual value is the same as, or exceeds, book value.

Landlord’s fixtures and fittings are split into two categories; long-life landlord’s fixtures and fittings and short-life 
landlord’s fixtures and fittings. Both are held at cost less accumulated depreciation. The useful economic life of 
additions in the form of long-life landlord’s fixtures and fittings has been calculated at 30 years and additions to 
short-life landlord’s fixtures and fittings have been calculated at 5 years. Depreciation is charged on a straight line 
basis to write off the total cost less residual value over the useful economic life. 

Properties held under finance leases are depreciated on a straight line basis over the shorter of the remaining lease 
term and their useful economic life of 50 years. 

Depreciation is provided on other categories of property, plant and equipment over 3 to 50 years on a straight line 
basis to residual value.

Property, plant and equipment is reviewed annually for indicators of impairment. Where any indicators are identified, 
assets are assessed fully for impairment. Impairment occurs where the recoverable amount of the asset is less 
than its carrying amount. Recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to dispose and value 
in use. Any impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease to the extent that a surplus exists for the same 
asset, and thereafter as an expense in the income statement. 

Non-current assets held for sale
Properties identified for disposal which are classified in the balance sheet as non-current assets held for sale 
are held at the lower of carrying value on transfer to non-current assets held for sale, as assessed at the time of 
transfer, and fair value less costs to dispose. The fair value less costs to dispose is based on the net estimated 
realisable disposal proceeds which are provided by third party property agents who have been engaged to sell the 
properties. Licensed land and buildings and operating lease intangibles are classified as held for sale when they 
have been identified for disposal by the Group. They must be available for immediate sale in their present condition 
and the sale should be highly probable. These conditions are met when management are committed to the sale, the 
property or lease is actively marketed and the sale is expected to occur within one year. Licensed land and buildings 
held for sale are not depreciated and operating lease intangible assets held for sale are not amortised. 

Profits or losses on disposal of property, plant and equipment are calculated as the difference between the net 
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset within non-current assets held for sale at the date of disposal. 

Inventories
Inventories which comprise products held for resale in managed houses are stated at the lower of cost and net 
realisable value. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the 
estimated costs of completion and selling expenses.

Enterprise Inns - AR2016 - Gov and Financials.indd   82 07/12/2016   14:21:14



24766.04    7 December 2016 1:54 PM    Proof 6

83Enterprise Inns plc Annual Report and Accounts 
for the year ended 30 September 2016

A
c

c
o

u
n

ts

Leases
Leases where the Group assumes substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance 
leases. Properties acquired under finance leases are capitalised at the lower of their fair value and the present value 
of future minimum lease payments. The corresponding liability is included in the balance sheet as a finance lease 
payable. Properties held under finance leases are revalued along with the freehold estate on an annual basis. Lease 
payments are apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to obtain a constant 
rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are taken as an expense to the income 
statement. 

Leases where substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as 
operating leases. Rentals paid under operating leases are charged on a straight line basis to the income statement 
over the lease term. The fair value attributed to properties acquired as part of business combinations that are held 
as operating leases are classified in the balance sheet as intangible assets: operating lease premiums within non-
current assets and are amortised over the lease term. 

The Group has previously entered into sale and leaseback transactions where licensed land and buildings have been 
sold and the Group has immediately entered into a lease agreement with the acquiree. These land and buildings 
have been classified as operating leases. They are no longer included within property, plant and equipment and the 
rentals paid are charged on a straight line basis to the income statement over the lease term.

Repairs and maintenance
Repairs and maintenance expenditure is charged to the income statement as incurred. 

Assignment premiums
Where an amount is paid to a publican in order to take the assignment of a lease or to break a lease at any point 
other than at renewal, the payment made is expensed through administrative costs. During the period of our 
strategic change, this will be treated as exceptional.

Where an amount is paid to a publican in order to regain control of the property at the point of lease renewal in 
order that the Group can operate the site as a directly managed outlet, the amount is linked to a capital investment 
project in order to reposition the property for the managed offering, and the premium paid is capitalised and 
depreciated in line with the project spend.

Financial instruments
a) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash comprises cash at bank and in hand. Any short-term deposits with an original maturity date of three months 
or less are classified as cash equivalents. 

b) Borrowings
Borrowings which include bank borrowings, corporate bonds and securitised bonds are measured at amortised 
cost.  This method is used to ensure that the interest charge associated with the debt, combined with the 
amortisation of the issue costs, premiums and discounts, represents a constant percentage of the borrowings 
across the life of the instrument based on the estimated cash flows and the contractual terms of the agreement. 

When borrowings are refinanced the Group reviews whether the arrangement constitutes an extinguishment 
of the original financial liability and the recognition of a new financial liability or a modification of the terms of 
the existing financial liability. If the refinanced borrowings are accounted for as an extinguishment of the original 
financial liability, any costs or fees incurred are recognised as part of the gain or loss on the extinguishment and 
written off through exceptional finance costs. If the refinanced borrowings are accounted for as a modification, any 
costs or fees incurred adjust the carrying amount of the liability and are amortised over the remaining life of the 
modified loan.
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3. Accounting policies (continued)
c) Convertible financial instruments
The gross proceeds received from the issue of a convertible bond are split between a liability element and an equity 
component at the date of issue. The fair value of the liability component is estimated using the prevailing market 
interest rate for similar non-convertible debt. The difference between the proceeds of issue of the convertible bond 
and the fair value assigned to the liability component, representing any embedded option to convert the liability 
into equity of the Group, is included in equity and is not remeasured. The liability component is carried at amortised 
cost using the effective interest method until extinguished upon conversion or the instrument’s maturity date. Issue 
costs are apportioned between the liability and equity components of the convertible bond based on their relative 
carrying amounts at the date of issue. The portion relating to the equity component is charged directly against 
equity.

The difference between the interest expense calculated under the effective interest rate method and interest paid 
to bondholders is added to the carrying amount of the convertible bond.

d) Equity instruments
Equity instruments, being ordinary shares issued by the Parent Company, are recorded at the fair value of the 
proceeds received, net of any direct issue costs. The nominal value of shares issued is recorded in called up share 
capital and the balance of the net proceeds is recorded in share premium. 

The Group has returned surplus cash to shareholders through share buybacks. Consideration paid or payable for 
shares purchased for cancellation is deducted from equity. The Company uses contingent share purchase contracts 
and the obligation to purchase shares is recognised in full at the inception of the contract. Any subsequent 
reduction in the obligation caused by the expiry or termination of a contract is credited back to equity at that time.

e) Trade receivables and trade payables
Trade receivables and trade payables are held at amortised cost.

Fair value measurement
The Group measures licensed land and buildings, within property, plant and equipment and non-current assets held 
for sale, at fair value and provides disclosure information in respect of the financial assets and liabilities.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction 
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption 
that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either in the principal market for the asset 
or liability or in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. The 
principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.

The fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate 
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that 
would use the asset in its highest and best use provided that use was physically possible, legally permissible and 
financially feasible to access. The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and 
for which sufficient data is available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and 
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

IFRS 13 requires that all assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial 
statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that 
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

The classification uses the following three-level hierarchy:

Level 1 – Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 – Other techniques whereby the inputs are either directly or indirectly derived from market data.

Level 3 – Inputs used in the valuation are not based on observable market data.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines 
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the 
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.
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Net debt
Net debt is the total book value of all financial assets and liabilities (not including trade receivables, trade payables 
and the equity component of the convertible bond) less cash. Underlying net debt is the nominal value of all 
financial assets and liabilities (not including trade receivables, trade payables and the equity component of the 
convertible bond) less cash.

Taxation
The tax expense comprises both the tax payable based on taxable profits for the year and deferred tax. Deferred 
tax is provided using the balance sheet liability method in respect of temporary differences between the carrying 
value of assets and liabilities for accounting and tax purposes. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that 
it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the asset can be utilised. No deferred tax is 
recognised if the taxable temporary difference arises from goodwill or the initial recognition of an asset or liability in 
a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting 
profit nor taxable profit or loss.

Current tax assets and liabilities are offset where there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised 
amounts and the intention is to either settle on a net basis or realise the asset and liability simultaneously. Deferred 
tax assets and liabilities are offset where there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and 
liabilities and the assets and liabilities relate to taxes levied by the same tax authority which are intended to be 
settled net or simultaneously. 

Tax is charged or credited to other comprehensive income if it relates to items that are charged or credited to 
other comprehensive income. Similarly tax is charged or credited directly to equity if it relates to items charged 
or credited directly to equity. Otherwise tax is charged in the income statement. Tax is calculated using tax rates 
enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, 
it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and the amount can be reliably 
estimated. If the effect is material, the amount of the provision is discounted using a pre-tax rate that reflects 
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The amount of the 
provision would therefore represent the present value of the expenditure expected to be required to settle the 
obligation. 

Pension obligations
The Group has both defined contribution and defined benefit pension arrangements. 

The cost of defined contribution payments made to employees’ own pension plans is charged to the income 
statement as incurred. 

As described in note 28, the Group entered into a bulk annuity policy that is a qualifying insurance policy in respect 
of the defined benefit section of the pension scheme. 

Having entered into this policy, the scheme liabilities continue to be valued on the projected unit credit method 
and then the value of the annuity policy is stated as equal to the amount ascribed to the plan liabilities covered by 
the policy. Actuarial movements in the value of the scheme liabilities and the interest costs on scheme liabilities 
are matched by equivalent movements in the scheme asset. To the extent that the Group is committed to deferred 
premiums or future administration costs in respect of the annuity policy or the scheme these are recorded as an 
additional liability within the pension deficit at the net present value of future premiums. The interest paid on the bulk 
annuity policy is charged as a finance cost. The plan obligations will be derecognised on final settlement of the plan.

Treasury shares
The cost of own shares held in employee benefit trusts and in treasury is deducted from shareholders’ equity until 
the shares are cancelled, re-issued or disposed of. Any proceeds received are also taken to shareholders’ equity. No 
gain or loss is recognised in the income statement on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of own shares held. 
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3. Accounting policies (continued)
Revenue recognition
Revenue is the fair value of consideration received or receivable for goods and services provided in the normal 
course of business, net of discounts, volume rebates and VAT. Revenue from drink and food is recognised at the 
point at which the goods are provided. Property rental income is recognised on a straight line basis over the life of 
the lease. Amusement machine royalties are recognised in the accounting period to which the income relates. 

Share-based payments 
The Group operates a number of equity-settled share-based payment schemes for employees. Share-based 
payments are measured at fair value at the date of the award. This value is subsequently updated at each balance 
sheet date for management’s best estimate of the effect of non-market based vesting conditions on the number of 
equity instruments that will ultimately vest. In valuing equity-settled transactions, no account is taken of any service 
and performance (vesting conditions), other than performance conditions linked to the price of the shares of the 
Parent Company (market conditions). Any other conditions which are required to be met in order for an employee to 
become fully entitled to an award are considered to be non-vesting conditions. Like market performance conditions, 
non-vesting conditions are taken into account in determining the grant date fair value. The fair value is recognised 
as an expense over the vesting period by calculating the cumulative expense and recognising the movement in the 
cumulative expense in the income statement. A corresponding entry is made to equity.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest, except for awards where vesting is conditional 
upon a market or non-vesting condition, which are treated as vesting irrespective of whether or not the market or 
non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided that all other performance or service conditions are satisfied. 

Dividends
Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they have been approved by shareholders at the Annual General 
Meeting. Interim dividends are recognised when they are paid.

Operating profit
Operating profit as referred to in the income statement is defined as being profit generated from normal trading 
activities before net profit/(loss) on sale of property, plant and equipment, movements in valuation of the estate and 
related assets, finance costs and taxation.

Exceptional items
The Group has elected to classify certain items as exceptional and present them separately on the face of the 
income statement. Exceptional items are classified as those which are separately identified by virtue of their size or 
nature to allow a full understanding of the underlying performance of the Group and include the following:

a) Exceptional items recognised in operating profit
Exceptional costs relating to regulatory matters and reorganisational costs have been recognised in the 
administrative costs line.

In addition, during the period of our strategic change, assignment premiums where an amount is paid to a publican 
in order to take the assignment of a lease or to break a lease at any point other than at renewal would be treated as 
exceptional.

b) Net profit/(loss) on sale of property, plant and equipment
Net profit/(loss) arising from the sale of property, plant and equipment less goodwill allocated to disposals.

c) Movements in valuation of the estate and related assets
Any revaluation that causes the book value of a property to fall below historic cost will lead to a charge in the 
income statement. If that same property later recovers in value so that its book value exceeds historic cost, the 
increase in value is credited to the income statement to the extent that a debit was previously recognised. Where 
properties identified for disposal are revalued immediately prior to transfer to non-current assets held for sale, the 
revaluation movement is recognised on the same basis. The remaining impact of the annual revaluation exercise or 
the identification of properties for disposal is accounted for in other comprehensive income.
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d) Net finance costs
The gain or loss on purchase of own debt is calculated as the difference between the carrying value of the debt 
purchased less the aggregate of the consideration and related transaction costs paid. The Group has elected to take 
the gain or loss on the settlement date.

Exceptional finance costs are recognised in relation to fees written off following the commitment to extinguish or 
restructure borrowings or where incurred as part of debt restructuring projects.

e) Taxation
A deferred tax liability has been recognised on the balance sheet relating to the estate. On transition to IFRS, 
the Group elected to apply IFRS 3 retrospectively to acquisitions from 1 January 1999. This led to an increase in 
goodwill in respect of this deferred tax. As this pre-acquisition liability changes due to capital gains indexation relief 
and changes in the rate of UK tax, a debit or a credit is recognised in the income statement. This has been classified 
as an exceptional tax item due to its size and because it does not relate to any income or expense recognised in the 
income statement in the same period. All other movements in respect of this deferred tax liability are accounted for 
in the same performance statement as the gross item to which it relates.

The effect of changes in the substantively enacted rate of tax used to calculate deferred tax is reflected in other 
comprehensive income to the extent it relates to revaluation surpluses therein and in exceptional profit/loss for all 
other elements of deferred tax.

The tax effect of all other exceptional items is also included within the exceptional items column in the income 
statement. 

Use of accounting estimates and judgements
The Group makes estimates and assumptions during the preparation of the financial statements. Actual results may 
differ from these estimates under different assumptions and conditions. The estimates and assumptions that have 
the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements are discussed below:

a) Property, plant and equipment (PPE)
Licensed land and buildings are revalued annually to fair value in accordance with the Appraisal and Valuation 
Manual published by the Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors (RICS) and IFRS 13. The valuation is based on 
an assessment of the income generating potential of the properties, and applying an appropriate multiple. The 
highest and best use for the licensed land and buildings is assumed to be their current use by the Group, principally 
due to the legal restrictions imposed by the agreement with the publican, planning regulations and the financial 
implications of a change of use given those restrictions and the Group’s business model. However, consideration 
is given to an alternative highest and best use if there are factors that indicate that such an alternative use exists 
which is physically possible, legally permissible and financially feasible.

Further information about the valuation of the estate is provided in note 17 of these financial statements.

The Group estimates the useful economic life and residual value of PPE and these estimates influence the 
depreciation charged each year. For details of these estimates, see the detailed accounting policy for PPE. 

b) Testing goodwill for impairment
The Group annually tests whether goodwill has been impaired. Management makes judgements to allocate 
goodwill to individual operating segments and in calculating the recoverable amount. The recoverable amount of the 
operating segments that the goodwill has been allocated to is determined based on value in use calculations which 
require estimating future cash flows and applying a suitable discount rate. 

Details of the tests and carrying value of the asset are shown in note 15.
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3. Accounting policies (continued)
c) Taxation 
Judgement is required when determining the provision for taxes as the tax treatment of some transactions cannot 
be finally determined until a formal resolution has been reached with the tax authorities. Tax benefits are not 
recognised unless it is probable that the benefit will be obtained. Tax provisions are made if it is expected that a 
liability will arise. The Group reviews each significant tax liability or benefit to assess the appropriate accounting 
treatment.

d) Finance costs
When borrowings are refinanced with substantially the same lender, the Group uses judgement when reviewing 
whether the arrangement constitutes an extinguishment of the original financial liability and the recognition of a 
new financial liability or a modification of the terms of the existing financial liability. As described in note 12, the 
Group conducted a strategic review of its capital structure during the year to better enable its future direction. This 
culminated in a consent solicitation exercise for the Unique securitisation and modified a number of terms within 
the documentation. Of the total cost incurred, £7 million has been assessed as being the cost of the strategic 
review, and has been charged to exceptional finance costs, whilst the remaining £7 million is the cost of modifying 
the terms of the securitisation and has therefore been capitalised, and amortised over the remaining life of the 
bonds.

e) Materiality of operating segments
The Group uses judgement when concluding that the commercial property segment and managed segments are 
not material, either individually or in aggregate, to be required to be disclosed as an other operating segment.

f) Related party transactions
The Group uses judgement when concluding that transactions with related parties of minority interests are not 
material for disclosure.

4. Segmental analysis
Following the announcement of the outcome of the Group’s strategic review during the prior year the Group 
now has five (2015: five) distinguishable operating segments being leased and tenanted, commercial property, 
Bermondsey Pub Company, The Craft Union Pub Company and managed investments which reflect the different 
nature of income earned, types of property and profile of customers. The Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) 
is represented by the Board of Directors of the Parent Company and the five segments have been identified as the 
CODM regularly reviews discrete financial information relating to them with regard to gross margin. Group assets 
are not segmented.

Operating segments are aggregated when they have similar economic characteristics and therefore Bermondsey 
Pub Company, The Craft Union Pub Company and the managed investments have been combined as they represent 
income earned from the direct operation of pubs albeit through differing trading styles.

This results in three reportable segments being:

1) Leased and tenanted Rental income and revenue from drinks supplies and gaming machines

2) Commercial property Rental income

3) Managed Revenue from the sale of food, drink and accommodation and gaming machine income

The Group has concluded that its commercial property segment and managed segment do not meet, either 
individually or collectively, the quantitative thresholds to constitute reportable segments as defined by IFRS 8.  
Rather than being shown as ‘all other segments’ they have been combined within the leased and tenanted 
segment as the Group is currently in the early stages of estate segmentation and therefore the results are not 
currently material. The following notes 5 and 6 disclose this combined information down to operating profit which 
forms the basis of the information reviewed by the CODM.
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5. Revenue
2016

£m
2015

£m

Drink revenue 459 452

Rent revenue 159 161

Food revenue 3 1

Revenue from amusement and other machines 11 11

632 625

6. Operating profit
Operating profit is stated after charging:

2016
£m

2015
£m

Cost of drink and food sold 256 259

Managed house running costs 14 4

Operating lease rentals 23 22

Other property costs 7 7

Administrative charges 40 37

Exceptional administrative charges 3 1

343 330

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 16 16

359 346

7. Auditor’s remuneration
(This note is shown rounded to the nearest £000)

A description of the work of the Audit Committee is set out in the Audit Committee report on pages 51 to 56 and 
includes an explanation of how auditor objectivity and independence is safeguarded when non-audit services are 
provided by the auditor.

2016
£000

2015
£000

Group audit fees 173 162

Audit fees in respect of subsidiaries 72 51

Audit related assurance services 25 25

Other assurance services 173 –

Non-audit services 26 12

469 250

Of the non-audit assurance related fees and non-audit services above of £199,000 (2015: £12,000), £199,000  
(2015: £12,000) represents work required to be performed by the auditor under law, regulation or the terms of the 
Group’s financing arrangements. Excluding these amounts, the ratio of non-audit fees to audit fees was nil (2015: 
nil). Other assurance services above of £173,000 (2015: £nil) relates to assurance reporting as part of the consent 
solicitation.

Group audit fees include £152,000 (2015: £149,000) paid to the auditor for the audit of the Parent Company. Fees 
paid to the auditor in respect of non-audit services provided to the Parent Company are not required to be disclosed 
because the Group financial statements are only required to disclose such fees on a consolidated basis.
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8. Exceptional items
An exceptional charge of £3 million (2015: £1 million) has been recognised in the year relating to costs incurred in 
respect of assignment premiums paid. 

There is no tax charge or credit in relation to these costs in the current or prior year.

All other exceptional items are explained in notes 9, 10, 12 and 13.

9. Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment including goodwill allocation
2016

£m
2015

£m

Profits on sale of property, plant and equipment 10 8 

Losses on sale of property, plant and equipment (5) (3)

Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment 5 5 

Goodwill allocated to disposals (9) (8)

Net loss on sale of property, plant and equipment (4) (3)

The tax impact of the sale of property, plant and equipment is set out in note 13.

During the year 226 properties (2015: 260 properties) and various other plots of land with a book value of £91 
million (2015: £68 million) were disposed of generating gross proceeds of £104 million (2015: £82 million) which, 
after taking account of disposal costs resulted in an overall profit of £5 million (2015: £5 million).

Of the £10 million (2015: £8 million) of profits on sale of property, plant and equipment in the year, £7 million (2015: 
£2 million) related to 17 properties (2015: 11 properties) and various plots of land with a ‘special interest’ value to 
particular buyers and £3 million (2015: £4 million) arose on the remaining 107 properties (2015: 174 properties) sold 
at an average profit of £32,000 (2015: £23,000) per property. In the prior year a further £2 million of profit arose on 
the sale of 5 properties classified as operating leases.

The remaining 102 properties (2015: 70 properties) sold during the year made a loss.

In accordance with IAS 36 purchased goodwill is allocated to operations disposed of. Accordingly, goodwill of £9 
million (2015: £8 million) has been allocated to the 226 properties (2015: 260 properties) disposed of during the year.

10. Movements in valuation of the estate and related assets
2016

£m
2015

£m

Movements in property, plant and equipment from revaluation of the estate (see note 17) 18 120 

Revaluation of non-current assets held for sale (see note 17) 15 43 

33 163 

There is no current tax expense associated with these movements. A deferred tax credit of £7 million (2015: £32 
million) arises as a result of the revaluation and write down of these properties (see note 13).

Of the £15 million revaluation of non-current assets held for sale (2015: £43 million), £6 million (2015: £16 million) 
related to pubs held in non-current assets held for sale at the year end.
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11. Staff costs
2016

£m
2015

£m

Wages and salaries 35 31

Social security costs 4 4

Other pension costs 2 2

41 37

Included in wages and salaries is an expense relating to share-based payments of £2 million (2015: £2 million). All of 
this expense arises from transactions accounted for as equity-settled share-based payments (see note 30).

Other pension costs represents payments made into employees’ individual defined contribution plans. 

The average monthly number of employees comprised:

2016
No.

2015
No.

Operations staff 489 398

Administration staff 300 300

789 698

Directors’ remuneration is summarised below to the nearest £000 with full detail given in the directors’ 
remuneration report.

2016
£000

2015
£000

Directors’ remuneration* 2,272 1,830

Executive directors’ pensions^ 214 210

Share-based payments† 729 728

* Comprises fees, salary, benefits and performance-related bonus.
^ The executive directors’ pensions cost has been restated for the prior year by £1,000.
† Fair value of share-based payments charged to the income statement during the year.

In addition to the above, gains arising on LTIPs that have vested and been exercised in the year by executive 
directors amounted to £449,000 (2015: £456,000).

12. Net finance costs
2016

£m
2015

£m

Bank borrowings 4 5 

Corporate bonds/securitised bonds 149 152 

Other interest payable and finance costs 2 2 

Interest receivable (1) (1)

Total pre-exceptional finance costs 154 158 

Exceptional finance costs:

Other interest payable and finance costs 7 26 

Exceptional finance costs 7 26 

Total net finance costs 161 184

During the year the Group completed a full strategic and legal review of its capital structure to ensure that it did 
not constrain its ability to execute its operational strategy. A significant output of this review was the consent 
solicitation approved by the noteholders of the Unique securitisation voting in favour of proposals to amend certain 
aspects of the documentation to permit the increased operation of managed houses within the securitisation.

Of the total fees incurred in this strategic review, £7 million has been recognised as an exceptional item in the 
income statement and £7 million has been deferred over the remaining life of the Unique securitised bonds.
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12. Net finance costs (continued)
The exceptional finance cost of £26 million recognised in the prior year related to the partial refinancing of the 2018 
corporate bonds and the replacement of the bank facility. The total cash outflow arising from this refinancing was 
£28 million, being £22 million in respect of the repurchase premium on the extinguished bond, which was charged 
as an exceptional item, and total fees and disbursements of £6 million, of which £4 million was charged as an 
exceptional item and £2 million arising on the new bond was deferred over the life of the new debt instruments.

The total interest charge under the effective interest rate method (which excludes the exceptional finance costs 
relating to the bank and bond refinancing) is £154 million (2015: £158 million).

A tax credit of £1 million (2015: £5 million) has been recognised on the exceptional finance costs.

13. Taxation
a) Total tax expense recognised in the income statement

2016 2015

Current tax

Pre-
exceptional 

items
£m

Exceptional 
items

£m
Total

£m

Pre-
exceptional 

items
£m

Exceptional 
items

£m
Total

£m

UK corporation tax 21 (3) 18 22 (6) 16 

Adjustments in respect of prior years (2) – (2) (1) – (1)

Total current tax 19 (3) 16 21 (6) 15 

Deferred tax

Origination and reversal of temporary 
differences 5 (18) (13) 4 (25) (21)

Adjustments in respect of prior years 1 – 1 – – –

Total deferred tax 6 (18) (12) 4 (25) (21)

Taxation 25 (21) 4 25 (31) (6)

b) Tax charge reconciliation 
2016 2015

Pre-
exceptional 

items
£m

Exceptional 
items

£m
Total

£m

Pre-
exceptional 

items
£m

Exceptional 
items

£m
Total

£m

Profit/(loss) before tax 122 (47) 75 122 (193) (71)

Profit/(loss) on ordinary activities before 
tax at 20.0% (2015: 20.5%) 24 (9) 15 25 (40) (15)

Effects of:

Expenses not deductible for tax purposes/
(non taxable income) 2 (2) – 1 2 3 

Movement in the deferred tax liability for 
retained properties due to indexation* – (1) (1) – 7 7 

Adjustments in respect of prior years (1) – (1) (1) – (1)

Restatement of deferred tax liability for 
change in UK tax rate – (9) (9) – – –

Total tax charge/(credit) in the income 
statement 25 (21) 4 25 (31) (6)

*  On transition to IFRS under IAS 12, a deferred tax liability was recognised on the balance sheet relating to the revaluation of the estate and gains 
previously rolled over, or due to be rolled over into other assets. The deferred tax liability that would have been in place at the time of business 
combinations that have occurred since 1 January 1999 resulted in the recognition of additional goodwill of £330 million as the fair value of the net 
assets acquired had been reduced. As this pre-acquisition liability changes due to capital gains indexation relief and disposals, the movement has 
been recognised in the income statement. The exceptional indexation credit for the year ended 30 September 2016 is £1 million (2015: charge of 
£7 million). This has been classed as an exceptional tax item due to its size and because it does not relate to any income or expense recognised in 
the income statement in the same period. In addition there is a £9 million exceptional tax credit relating to the effect of changes in the UK tax rate 
from 20% to 17% which has been enacted during the year.
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c) Deferred tax recognised in the income statement
2016 2015

Pre-
exceptional 

items
£m

Exceptional 
items

£m
Total

£m

Pre-
exceptional 

items
£m

Exceptional 
items

£m
Total

£m

Temporary differences 2 – 2 2 – 2 

Accelerated capital allowances 3 (4) (1) 2 (4) (2)

Deferred tax on the movement in 
valuation of the estate* – (4) (4) – (28) (28)

Movement in the deferred tax liability for 
retained properties due to indexation – (1) (1) – 7 7 

Adjustments in respect of prior years 1 – 1 – – –

Restatement of deferred tax liability for 
change in UK tax rate – (9) (9) – – –

6 (18) (12) 4 (25) (21)

*  The £4 million deferred tax credit on the movement in valuation of the pub estate includes a credit of £7 million, being the tax effect of the 
£33 million exceptional movement in the valuation of the pub estate and related assets in the income statement (see note 10), a tax charge of 
£2 million in respect of properties disposed, and a net £1 million charge for other tax differences based on a tax rate of 20%. In 2015, the 
revaluation movement was £163 million, giving rise to a £32 million tax credit based on a tax rate of 20% and a tax charge of £3 million in respect 
of properties disposed of and a net £1 million charge for other tax differences based on a tax rate of 20%.

d) Tax recognised directly in other comprehensive income
2016

£m
2015

£m

Movement in deferred tax liability related to revaluation of the estate – (7)

Rate change adjustment 24 –

Tax credit/(debit) in other comprehensive income 24 (7)

The movement in the deferred tax liability relating to revaluation of property and rolled over gains is calculated as 
follows: 

2016
£m

2015
£m

Tax effect of revaluation of property and properties sold and awaiting sale (4) (4)

Movement in indexation during the year 4 (3)

Total movement as above – (7)

14. Earnings per share
The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the profit attributable to ordinary shareholders for the year 
divided by the weighted average number of equity shares in issue during the year after excluding shares held by 
trusts relating to employee share options and shares held in treasury.

Adjusted earnings per share, which the directors believe reflects the underlying performance of the Group, is based 
on earnings attributable to ordinary shareholders adjusted for the effects of exceptional items, net of tax divided by 
the weighted average number of equity shares in issue during the year after excluding shares held by trusts relating 
to employee share options and shares held in treasury.

The dilution adjustments for share options and the convertible bonds are reviewed independently and where they 
are dilutive to the calculation of basic diluted earnings per share they are included in the calculation of both basic 
diluted and adjusted diluted earnings per share. 
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14. Earnings per share (continued)
For the year ended 30 September 2016, the adjustment for share options is assessed as being dilutive (2015: anti-
dilutive) which has resulted in an adjustment to the weighted average number of equity shares in issue during the 
period of 7.3 million shares (2015: nil).

For the year ended 30 September 2016, the adjustment for the convertible bonds is assessed as being dilutive 
(2015: anti-dilutive) which has resulted in an adjustment to profit in the calculation of diluted earnings per share of 
£5.2 million (2015: £nil) for the post tax interest cost associated with the convertible bonds and an adjustment to 
the weighted average number of equity shares in issue during the period of 50.8 million shares (2015: nil).

2016 2015

Earnings
£m

Per share
amount

p
Earnings

£m

Per share
amount

p

Basic earnings/(loss) per share 70.7 14.2 (65.3) (13.0)

Diluted earnings/(loss) per share 75.9 13.7 (65.3) (13.0)

Adjusted earnings per share 97.4 19.6 97.4 19.4 

Adjusted diluted earnings per share 102.6 18.5 97.4 19.4 

2016
No.

2015
No.

Weighted average number of shares 496.8 501.0 

Dilutive share options 7.3 –

Dilutive convertible loan note shares 50.8 –

Diluted weighted average number of shares 554.9 501.0 

15. Goodwill
2016

£m
2015

£m

At 1 October 330 338 

Allocated to disposals (9) (8)

At 30 September 321 330 

Allocation to disposals
In accordance with IAS 36 goodwill is allocated to operations disposed of and accordingly, goodwill of £9 million 
(2015: £8 million) has been allocated to the 226 pubs (2015: 260 pubs) disposed of during the year.

Impairment testing
Goodwill acquired via business combinations is tested annually for impairment. At 30 September 2016 the goodwill 
has been allocated to the operating segments described in note 4. Within these segments the goodwill is tested 
for impairment by comparing the recoverable amount of each segment to the carrying amount. The recoverable 
amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use.

The carrying amount of goodwill allocated to the leased and tenanted operating segment was £296 million (2015: 
£315 million) with the balance allocated to the commercial property of £18 million (2015: £13 million) and managed 
segments of £7 million (2015: £2 million). The following disclosures have therefore been made in relation to the 
goodwill allocated to the leased and tenanted operating segment because the remaining balance is not material to 
the total value of goodwill.
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Value in use is calculated using budgeted EBITDA and forecasts of cash flows over a three year period, as prepared 
for the Board, adjusted to reflect the current segmentation of the estate. The three year cash flows continue 
to be risk adjusted to reflect a conservative outlook, adjusted to reflect the forecast level of disposals. The key 
assumptions in these estimates are trading margin, rent projections and levels of working capital required to 
support trading. Key assumptions have been assigned values by management using estimates based on past 
experience and expectations of future changes in the market. These assumptions have been reviewed by the Board 
and are believed to be reasonable. Cash flows beyond three years are extrapolated using a 2% growth rate in 
operating income (2015: 2%) which was selected as prudently below the Group’s estimate of the long-term average 
growth rate. The key driver to maintaining the growth rate is management’s focus on selecting and supporting the 
best publicans, whilst meeting the challenges of changing consumer demand. The forecast cash flows are then 
discounted to give a value in use.

The discount rate used is based on the Group weighted average cost of capital (WACC), which has been risk 
adjusted to reflect current market factors which have not already been captured within the cash flows. In making 
this adjustment to the Group WACC, management have risk adjusted the cost of debt and the cost of equity by 
using an average of the highest four market risk premiums and Company betas obtained from five advisers at 
the year end date. The cost of equity has been further inflated by using a theoretical share price derived from 
peer group data. The pre-tax risk adjusted discount rate used in the testing at 30 September 2016 was 8.0% 
(2015: 8.0%). 

As at 30 September 2016, the total headroom on the impairment test is £845 million (2015: £718 million), the 
pre-tax adjusted discount rate could increase to 9.3% (2015: 9.2%) before any impairment would be required. 
Management have considered the volatility in the current economic climate within the risk adjusted cash flows and 
the growth rate of any cash flows beyond the budget period would need to fall to 0.6% (2015: 0.5%) before any 
impairment would be required. There is no impairment to goodwill in the current or prior period.

16. Intangible assets: operating lease premiums
Group Company

2016
£m

2015
£m

2016
£m

2015
£m

Cost: 

At 1 October 15 16 7 7 

Disposals (1) (1) – –

At 30 September 14 15 7 7 

Amortisation:

At 1 October 5 6 3 3 

Disposals – (1) – –

At 30 September 5 5 3 3 

Net book value:

At 30 September 9 10 4 4 

At 1 October 10 10 4 4 

Lease premiums are amortised on a straight line basis over the remaining life of the lease. The remaining operating 
lease terms vary from 1 to 99 years.

There are 52 properties within the Group and 31 properties within the Parent Company attracting operating lease 
premiums in 2016 (2015: 54 properties in the Group and 33 properties in the Parent Company).
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17. Property, plant and equipment
Group

Licensed
land and
buildings

£m

Landlord’s
fixtures and

fittings
£m

Other
assets

£m
Total

£m

Cost or valuation

At 1 October 2014 3,613 259 37 3,909 

Additions 35 28 3 66 

Revaluation:

– Recognised in the statement of comprehensive income 19 – – 19 

– Recognised in the income statement (120) – – (120)

Revaluation of assets on transfer to non-current assets  
held for sale:

– Recognised in the statement of comprehensive income (1) – – (1)

– Recognised in the income statement (43) – – (43)

Net transfers to non-current assets held for sale (61) (14) – (75)

Disposals – (10) (1) (11)

At 1 October 2015 3,442 263 39 3,744 

Additions 39 37 5 81 

Revaluation:

– Recognised in the statement of comprehensive income 21 – – 21 

– Recognised in the income statement (18) – – (18)

Revaluation of assets on transfer to non-current assets  
held for sale:

– Recognised in the statement of comprehensive income (1) – – (1)

– Recognised in the income statement (15) – – (15)

Net transfers to non-current assets held for sale (72) (9) – (81)

Disposals – (9) (2) (11)

At 30 September 2016 3,396 282 42 3,720 

Depreciation

At 1 October 2014 17 46 12 75 

Charge for the year 2* 11 3 16 

Net transfers to non-current assets held for sale (1) (3) – (4)

Disposals – (5) (1) (6)

At 1 October 2015 18 49 14 81 

Charge for the year 1* 12 3 16 

Net transfers to non-current assets held for sale (1) (2) – (3)

Disposals – (4) – (4)

At 30 September 2016 18 55 17 90 

Net book value

At 30 September 2016 3,378 227 25 3,630 

At 30 September 2015 3,424 214 25 3,663 

* Relates to finance lease amortisation. 
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Company
Licensed
land and
buildings

£m

Landlord’s
fixtures and

fittings
£m

Other
assets

£m
Total

£m

Cost or valuation

At 1 October 2014 1,813 166 33 2,012 

Additions 20 15 3 38 

Revaluation:

– Recognised in the statement of comprehensive income (13) – – (13)

– Recognised in the income statement (18) – – (18)

Revaluation of assets on transfer to non-current assets  
held for sale:

– Recognised in the statement of comprehensive income (4) – – (4)

– Recognised in the income statement (24) – – (24)

Net transfers to non-current assets held for sale (26) (9) – (35)

Disposals – (6) (1) (7)

At 1 October 2015 1,748 166 35 1,949 

Additions 49 23 5 77 

Revaluation:

– Recognised in the statement of comprehensive income 2 – – 2 

– Recognised in the income statement (10) – – (10)

Revaluation of assets on transfer to non-current assets  
held for sale:

– Recognised in the statement of comprehensive income (2) – – (2)

– Recognised in the income statement (10) – – (10)

Net transfers to non-current assets held for sale (44) (6) – (50)

Disposals – (6) (1) (7)

At 30 September 2016 1,733 177 39 1,949 

Depreciation

At 1 October 2014 7 28 12 47 

Charge for the year 1* 6 3 10 

Net transfers to non-current assets held for sale (1) (1) – (2)

Disposals – (3) (1) (4)

At 1 October 2015 7 30 14 51 

Charge for the year 1* 6 4 11 

Net transfers to non-current assets held for sale (1) – – (1)

Disposals – (2) (1) (3)

At 30 September 2016 7 34 17 58 

Net book value

At 30 September 2016 1,726 143 22 1,891 

At 30 September 2015 1,741 136 21 1,898

* Relates to finance lease amortisation. 
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17. Property, plant and equipment (continued)
Fair value measurement of property, plant and equipment
In determining the appropriate classes of asset to present for fair value purposes, the Group has considered the 
nature, characteristics and risks of the assets. This has resulted in determining two separate classes of assets, 
‘pub’ and ‘non-pub’ as described in note 3.

Revaluation of property, plant and equipment 
Valuations are carried out on an annual basis at each year end date. With the exception of properties identified for 
disposal and transferred to non-current assets held for sale, the Group’s pub and non-pub assets were revalued 
as at 30 September 2016 by GVA Grimley Limited or Colliers International Property Advisers UK LLP, independent 
Chartered Surveyors, or by the internal Asset and Valuation Director, Simon Millar MRICS, Chartered Surveyor. For 
further analysis of the pubs valued by valuer see table on page 102.

All valuations of assets have been assessed as being level 3 valuations, as there are no directly comparable market 
observable inputs. 

Leased and tenanted pub assets were valued using fair maintainable trade income (FMT) capitalised at an 
appropriate rate of return (as defined within RICS Appraisal and Valuation Standards ‘Red Book’) or an equivalent 
multiple. This method of valuation involves making an assessment of the fair maintainable rent, wholesale and 
machine income that can be generated from the property assuming they are run by a reasonably efficient operator, 
taking into account future trading potential. This assessment of profit is then capitalised at an appropriate multiple 
to reflect the risks and rewards of the property. In determining the multiple to use, the valuers consider evidence of 
comparable market transactions. The resulting fair value of the pub represents the land and buildings and any fixed 
landlords fixtures and fittings. The valuation of the managed pub assets is prepared using a consistent approach that 
effectively capitalises the net income attributable to the Group from operating the pub, at an appropriate multiple. 

Commercial properties include free-of-tie pubs let to the operators at open market rents and non-pub assets, 
which are predominantly blue-chip let convenience stores. These assets have been valued adopting the investment 
method of valuation. By reference to the lease terms of each agreement and market conditions, an appropriate 
multiple based on comparable market transactions is applied, discounting future rental receipts back to present value.

All classes of asset are, under IFRS 13, required to be valued at highest and best use. IFRS 13 prescribes that the 
Group’s current use is presumed to be its highest and best value, unless market or other factors suggest that a 
different use by market participants would maximise the value of the asset. In doing their valuations, the valuers 
consider whether the asset may have a higher or better feasible use which would be reflected in the fair value 
where applicable. This is on an asset by asset basis if there are circumstances to indicate that there may be a 
higher and better use. In the current year the highest and best use of all the property assets in property, plant and 
equipment has been assessed as their existing use.

The impact of the Group revaluation is as follows:

2016
£m

2015
£m

Income statement

Revaluation loss charged as an impairment (55) (157)

Reversal of past impairments 37 37 

(18) (120)

Revaluation reserve

Unrealised surplus 82 176

Reversal of past revaluation surplus (61) (157)

21 19 

Enterprise Inns - AR2016 - Gov and Financials.indd   98 07/12/2016   14:21:16



24766.04    7 December 2016 1:54 PM    Proof 6

99Enterprise Inns plc Annual Report and Accounts 
for the year ended 30 September 2016

A
c

c
o

u
n

ts

The table below presents, by class of property, the income and multiple bandings within which the properties 
have been valued, and the number of properties that have been valued in each of the bandings. In determining 
the bandings to use, the Group has considered a variety of options including size and location of property, but 
has concluded that the value of the property is principally driven by FMT and multiple, so this forms the most 
appropriate disclosure.

Group

Number of pub assets – within 
property, plant and equipment

Multiple applied to FMT

Total 
number

over 12
times

10–12 
times

8–10
times

6–8
times

under 6
times

FM
T

 in
co

m
e 

b
an

d
in

g
s

At 30 September 2015 

more than £90,000 per annum 1,246 98 583 482 56 27

£60,000 to £90,000 per annum 1,969 116 775 840 201 37

less than £60,000 per annum 1,537 125 477 634 246 55

4,752 339 1,835 1,956 503 119

At 30 September 2016

more than £90,000 per annum 1,331 111 524 587 81 28

£60,000 to £90,000 per annum 1,900 111 680 870 199 40

less than £60,000 per annum 1,347 108 397 584 190 68

4,578 330 1,601 2,041 470 136

Number of pub assets – within 
non-current assets held for sale

FM
T

 in
co

m
e 

b
an

d
in

g
s

At 30 September 2015 

more than £90,000 per annum 1 – 1 – – –

£60,000 to £90,000 per annum 3 – – – – 3

less than £60,000 per annum 110 53 8 9 14 26

114 53 9 9 14 29

At 30 September 2016

more than £90,000 per annum 1 – 1 – – –

£60,000 to £90,000 per annum 1 – – 1 – –

less than £60,000 per annum 66 23 2 10 7 24

68 23 3 11 7 24

Multiple applied to income

Number of non-pub assets 
Total 

number
over 16 

times
14 – 16 

times
12 – 14 

times
under 12 

times

In
co

m
e 

b
an

d
in

g
s

At 30 September 2015

more than £90,000 per annum 1 – 1 – –

£60,000 to £90,000 per annum 12 7 4 – 1

less than £60,000 per annum 14 6 5 2 1

27 13 10 2 2

At 30 September 2016

more than £90,000 per annum 1 – 1 – –

£60,000 to £90,000 per annum 11 6 3 1 1

less than £60,000 per annum 13 3 5 3 2

25 9 9 4 3
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17. Property, plant and equipment (continued)
Company

Number of pub assets – within 
property, plant and equipment

Multiple applied to FMT

Total 
number

over 
12 times

10–12 
times

8–10 
times

6–8 
times

under 6 
times

FM
T

 in
co

m
e 

b
an

d
in

g
s

At 30 September 2015

more than £90,000 per annum 604 8 384 191 8 13

£60,000 to £90,000 per annum 1,035 43 581 355 41 15

less than £60,000 per annum 789 46 364 293 66 20

2,428 97 1,329 839 115 48

At 30 September 2016

more than £90,000 per annum 638 19 335 246 26 12

£60,000 to £90,000 per annum 1,022 31 523 398 56 14

less than £60,000 per annum 690 40 288 267 72 23

2,350 90 1,146 911 154 49

Number of pub assets – within 
non-current assets held for sale

FM
T

 in
co

m
e 

b
an

d
in

g
s

At 30 September 2015

more than £90,000 per annum 1 – 1 – – –

£60,000 to £90,000 per annum 1 – – – – 1

less than £60,000 per annum 47 25 5 3 3 11

49 25 6 3 3 12

At 30 September 2016

more than £90,000 per annum 1 – 1 – – –

£60,000 to £90,000 per annum – – – – – –

less than £60,000 per annum 28 11 2 6 3 6

29 11 3 6 3 6

Number of non-pub assets 

Multiple applied to income

Total 
number

over 
16 times

14 – 16 
times

12 – 14 
times

under 
12 times

In
co

m
e 

b
an

d
in

g
s

At 30 September 2015

more than £90,000 per annum 1 – 1 – –

£60,000 to £90,000 per annum 3 – 3 – –

less than £60,000 per annum 7 2 3 1 1

11 2 7 1 1

At 30 September 2016

more than £90,000 per annum 1 – 1 – –

£60,000 to £90,000 per annum 11 6 3 1 1

less than £60,000 per annum 13 3 5 3 2

25 9 9 4 3
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The following table sets out the reconciliation of the opening and closing balances for the level 3 fair value 
measurements as at 30 September 2016.

There have been no transfers out of the level 3 fair value measurement during the year.

Group
2016 2015

Pub
assets

£m

Non-pub
assets

£m
Total

£m

Pub
assets

£m

Non-pub
assets

£m
Total

£m

Opening balance 3,598 27 3,625 3,775 21 3,796
Transfers between classes (1) 1 – (2) 2 –
Additions 61 – 61 52 1 53
Transfers to non-current assets held for 
sale (73) (5) (78) (71) – (71)
Revaluation:
–  Recognised in the statement of 

comprehensive income 21 – 21 17 2 19
– Recognised in the income statement (18) – (18) (121) 1 (120)
Revaluation of assets on transfer to non-
current assets held for sale:
–  Recognised in the statement of 

comprehensive income (1) – (1) (1) – (1)
– Recognised in the income statement (15) – (15) (43) – (43)
Depreciation (8) – (8) (8) – (8)
Closing balance 3,564 23 3,587 3,598 27 3,625
Net book value of movable landlord’s 
fixtures and fittings 18 13
Net book value of other assets 25 25
Net book value of property, plant and 
equipment 3,630 3,663

Company

2016 2015
Pub

assets
£m

Non-pub
assets

£m
Total

£m

Pub
assets

£m

Non-pub
assets

£m
Total

£m

Opening balance 1,859 10 1,869 1,929 9 1,938
Transfers between classes (1) 1 – (1) 1 –
Additions 47 17 64 27 – 27
Transfers to non-current assets held for 
sale (44) (5) (49) (33) – (33)
Revaluation:
–  Recognised in the statement of 

comprehensive income 2 – 2 (13) – (13)
– Recognised in the income statement (10) – (10) (18) – (18)
Revaluation of assets on transfer to non-
current assets held for sale:
–  Recognised in the statement of 

comprehensive income (2) – (2) (4) – (4)
– Recognised in the income statement (10) – (10) (24) – (24)
Depreciation (4) – (4) (4) – (4)
Closing balance 1,837 23 1,860 1,859 10 1,869
Net book value of movable landlord’s 
fixtures and fittings 9 8
Net book value of other assets 22 21
Net book value of property, plant and 
equipment 1,891 1,898
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17. Property, plant and equipment (continued)
Sensitivity analysis table
The significant unobservable inputs used in the fair value measurement categorised within level 3 of the fair value 
hierarchy of the Group’s estate are FMT and a multiple. There is a limited amount of interrelation between the 
variation in these inputs.

A change in either of these assumptions could have a significant effect on the overall valuation of the estate. 
Sensitivities around these assumptions that are deemed to be reasonably likely based on the experience of the 
valuers are illustrated below:

Group

FMT Multiple

Sensitivity level
+ 2.5%

£m
- 2.5%

£m
+ 0.25

£m
- 0.25

£m

2016 Pub assets and non-pub assets 90 (90) 92 (92)

2015 Pub assets and non-pub assets 91 (91) 92 (92)

Company

FMT Multiple

Sensitivity level
+ 2.5%

£m
- 2.5%

£m
+ 0.25

£m
- 0.25

£m

2016 Pub assets and non-pub assets 47 (47) 47 (47)

2015 Pub assets and non-pub assets 47 (47) 46 (46)

The properties used as security for the corporate bonds in Enterprise Inns plc have been valued by GVA Grimley 
Limited (2,018 properties) and all properties held by Unique Pub Properties Limited (Unique) and classified 
as property, plant and equipment have been valued by Colliers International Property Advisers UK LLP (2,228 
properties). GVA Grimley valued one further property in Enterprise Inns plc. The balance of the estate held in 
Enterprise Inns plc and classified as property, plant and equipment (356 properties) has been valued by the internal 
Asset and Valuation Director using RICS valuation guidelines. The results of this internal valuation have been 
compared to that of the external valuers, to ensure that the results are consistent.

The following table provides a reconciliation of property numbers:

As at 30 September 2016

Property, 
plant and 

equipment

Non-current 
assets held 

for sale*

Add 
operating 

leases^
Total 

properties

Less 
non-viable 
and closed 
properties

Total 
trading 

properties

Properties valued by GVA 
Grimley Limited 2,019 – – 2,019 (9) 2,010

Properties valued internally 356 – – 356 (5) 351

Other – 29 221 250 (17) 233

Total Parent Company 2,375 29 221 2,625 (31) 2,594

Properties valued by Colliers 
International Property Advisers 
UK LLP 2,228 – – 2,228 (9) 2,219

Other – 39 28 67 (30) 37

Total Group 4,603 68 249 4,920 (70) 4,850
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As at 30 September 2015

Property, 
plant and 

equipment

Non-current 
assets held 

for sale*

Add 
operating 

leases^
Total 

properties

Less 
non-viable 
and closed 
properties

Total 
trading 

properties

Properties valued by GVA 
Grimley Limited 1,987 – – 1,987 (2) 1,985

Properties valued internally 452 – – 452 (2) 450

Other – 49 225 274 (28) 246

Total Parent Company 2,439 49 225 2,713 (32) 2,681

Properties valued by Colliers 
International Property Advisers 
UK LLP 2,340 – – 2,340 (3) 2,337

Other – 65 28 93 (42) 51

Total Group 4,779 114 253 5,146 (77) 5,069

* See note 21.
^ Not subject to valuation.

If licensed land and buildings had been measured using the cost model, the carrying amounts would be as follows:

Group Company
Licensed 

land 
and 

buildings 
£m

Licensed 
land 
and 

buildings 
£m

At 30 September 2016

Cost 2,885 1,383 

Accumulated depreciation (34) (22)

Net book value 2,851 1,361 

At 30 September 2015

Cost 2,989 1,398 

Accumulated depreciation (34) (23)

Net book value 2,955 1,375 

Within the Group the carrying value of property held under finance leases at 30 September 2016 was £118 million 
(2015: £119 million). Additions during the year include £3 million to property held under finance leases (2015: £3 
million). Within the Parent Company the carrying value of property held under finance leases at 30 September 
2016 was £46 million (2015: £46 million). Additions during the year include £1 million to property held under finance 
leases (2015: £1 million).

At 30 September 2016, the Group had entered into contractual commitments to purchase £5 million (2015: £5 
million) of property, plant and equipment. At 30 September 2016, the Parent Company had entered into contractual 
commitments to purchase £2 million (2015: £3 million) of property, plant and equipment. 
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18. Investments

Company
2016

£m
2015

£m

Cost or valuation
At 1 October 1,835 1,834 

Additions 250 1 

Impairment (295) –

At 30 September 1,790 1,835

During the year the Company carried out a reorganisation of intercompany balances which included the 
capitalisation of a balance of £250 million due from a subsidiary undertaking. Following the reorganisation, which 
included the receipt from this subsidiary of a £271 million dividend, this subsidiary had no assets and therefore the 
Company recognised an impairment of the same value. 

In addition, at the year end, the Company has carried out an impairment review of its investment in the Unique 
sub-group which involved calculating a value in use using forecast cash flows discounted at 8% based on the 
Group’s pre-tax risk adjusted WACC and a long-term growth rate appropriate to the Unique sub-group of 2.5%. The 
recoverable amount of the Unique sub-group has been assessed as £1,716 million, resulting in an impairment of 
£45 million, which has been recorded in the period. As an assessment of theoretical sensitivities to this impairment 
review calculation, an increase of 0.25% in the discount rate used would result in a further impairment of £121 
million or a decrease of 0.25% in the discount rate used would remove the impairment and result in £89 million of 
total headroom. Similarly an increase of 0.25% in the long-term growth rate used would remove the impairment 
and result in £104 million of total headroom or a decrease of 0.25% in the long-term growth rate used would result 
in a further impairment of £136 million.

During the prior year the Company subscribed at par for a further 1 million non-voting cell shares of £1 each in 
a Harlequin Insurance PCC Limited Cell, being a Guernsey based captive insurance cell created on behalf of the 
Company for the conduct of insurance or reinsurance business. 

The Parent Company’s subsidiaries are listed in note 33.

19. Inventories
Group Company

2016
£m

2015
£m

2016
£m

2015
£m

Goods for resale 1 – – –

20. Trade and other receivables
Trade receivables due in more than one year represents money owed by publicans for the sale of fixtures and 
fittings on deferred terms and part of the balance is due in more than one year.

Group Company
2016

£m
2015

£m
2016

£m
2015

£m

Trade receivables 3 3 1 1
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Trade and other receivables within current assets represents the following:

Group Company
2016

£m
2015

£m
2016

£m
2015

£m

Trade receivables 25 26 15 16

Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings – – 590 558

Prepayments and accrued income 16 11 13 10

Other receivables 4 3 3 2

45 40 621 586

The ageing of total trade receivables at 30 September was as follows:

Group Company
2016

£m
2015

£m
2016

£m
2015

£m

Not past due 27 28 16 17

Up to 30 days overdue 1 1 – –

28 29 16 17

Credit risk
There are no significant concentrations of credit risk within the Group. The Group is exposed to a small amount of 
credit risk that is primarily attributable to trade receivables and cash balances. The Group’s objective is to minimise 
this risk by carrying out credit checks where appropriate. The amount of trade and other receivables included in the 
balance sheet are net of a bad debt provision which has been determined by management following a review of 
individual receivable accounts and is based on prior experience and known factors at the balance sheet date after 
taking into account collateral held in the form of cash deposits. Receivables are written off against the bad debt 
provision when management considers that the debt is no longer recoverable.

At 30 September 2016 the value of deposits held by the Group is £33 million (2015: £32 million) and by the Parent 
Company is £21 million (2015: £21 million). This balance is held on the balance sheet in other payables.

An analysis of the provision held against trade receivables is set out below. This provision relates to trade 
receivables which are primarily owed by publicans.

Group Company
2016

£m
2015

£m
2016

£m
2015

£m

Provision as at 1 October 2 2 2 2 

Increase in provision during the year 1 2 1 1 

Provision utilised during the year – (1) – –

Provision released during the year (1) (1) (1) (1)

Provision as at 30 September 2 2 2 2 

There are no indications as at 30 September 2016 that debtors will not meet their payment obligations in respect 
of the amount of trade receivables recognised in the balance sheet that are neither past due nor impaired. The 
maximum amount of exposure to credit risk is the carrying value of trade receivables. The Group’s credit risk on 
liquid funds is limited because the Group only invests with banks and financial institutions with high credit ratings.
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21. Non-current assets held for sale
Group Company

2016
£m

2015
£m

2016
£m

2015
£m

At 1 October 33 30 13 13 

Net transfer from property, plant and equipment (note 17) 78 71 49 33 

Write down to fair value less costs to dispose (1) (1) – (1)

Disposals (89) (67) (52) (32)

At 30 September 21 33 10 13 

Representing:

Property, plant and equipment 21 33 10 13 

21 33 10 13 

Non-current assets held for sale comprises properties that have been identified by the Group for disposal as part of 
the continued disposal programme. The sale of all assets within this category is expected to be completed within 
one year of the balance sheet date. 

At the end of the year non-current assets held for sale in the Group includes 68 properties which are expected to be 
sold within the next year (2015: 114 properties). Within the Group a balance of £2 million (2015: £2 million) in relation 
to these properties is held within the revaluation reserve representing revaluation surpluses.

At the end of the year non-current assets held for sale in the Parent Company includes 29 properties which are 
expected to be sold within the next year (2015: 49 properties). Within the Parent Company a balance of £2 million 
(2015: £1 million) in relation to these properties is held within the revaluation reserve representing revaluation 
surpluses. 

22. Trade and other payables
Group Company

2016
£m

2015
£m

2016
£m

2015
£m

Trade payables 32 32 29 32

Amounts due to subsidiary undertakings – – 87 344

Accruals and deferred income 107 98 80 74

Other payables 44 46 28 28

183 176 224 478

At 30 September 2016 the value of deposits held by the Group in other payables is £33 million (2015: £32 million) 
and by the Parent Company is £21 million (2015: £21 million).
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23. Financial assets and liabilities
Group Company

Financial assets
2016

£m
2015

£m
2016

£m
2015

£m

Non-current

Loans due from subsidiary undertakings (see note 33) – – 2 215

Total financial assets – – 2 215

Group Company

Financial liabilities
2016

£m
2015

£m
2016

£m
2015

£m

Current

Securitised bonds 77 74 – –

Commitment for share buybacks 5 – 5 –

82 74 5 –

Non-current

Bank borrowings 55 75 55 75

Corporate bonds 1,202 1,199 1,120 1,120

Securitised bonds 1,001 1,096 – –

Finance lease payables 3 3 1 1

Loans due to subsidiary undertakings (see note 33) – – 82 79

2,261 2,373 1,258 1,275

Total financial liabilities 2,343 2,447 1,263 1,275

‘Bank borrowings’ refers to the revolving credit facility.

‘Corporate bonds’ refers to secured bonds and an unsecured convertible bond (see table on page 108).  

‘Securitised bonds’ refers to secured bonds (see table on page 108).  

Fair values  
The corporate bonds and securitised bonds were valued at fair value as at 30 September by J C Rathbone, 
independent valuers. The fair value of the corporate bonds and securitised bonds is measured at market price and 
are therefore evaluated to be level 1 in the fair value hierarchy described in note 3. 

Management assessed that cash and short-term deposits, trade receivables, trade payables, and other current 
liabilities approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments.

The fair value of unquoted instruments, loans from banks and other financial liabilities, obligations under finance 
leases, as well as other non-current financial liabilities is estimated by discounting future cash flows using rates 
currently available for debt on similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities.

The fair value of the Group’s bank borrowings, evaluated to be level 2 in the fair value hierarchy described in note 
3, is not deemed to be materially different to the nominal value if it had been determined by using the discounted 
cash flow method using a discount rate that reflects the issuer’s borrowing rate as at the end of the reporting 
period. The own non-performance risk as at 30 September 2016 was also assessed to be insignificant.
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23. Financial assets and liabilities (continued)
The nominal, book and fair values of financial assets and liabilities have been analysed into categories as below:

Group

Interest rate

2016
Nominal

value
£m

2016
Book
value

£m

2016
Fair

value
£m

2015
Nominal

value
£m

2015
Book
value

£m

2015
Fair

value
£m

Bank borrowings:

Revolving credit facility LIBOR + 3.0% 55 55 55 75 75 75 

55 55 55 75 75 75 

Corporate bonds:

Secured bond – issued 9 May 2000 6.875% 125 125 127 125 125 128 

Secured bond – issued 15 February 2001 6.875% 125 124 135 125 124 130 

Secured bond – issued 26 February 2002 6.375% 275 273 277 275 273 272 

Secured bond – issued 3 March 2003 6.5% 350 351 379 350 351 371 

Secured bond – issued 7 October 2014 6.0% 250 247 254 250 247 248 

Unsecured convertible bond – issued 10 
September 2013 3.5% 97 82 79 97 79 85 

1,222 1,202 1,251 1,222 1,199 1,234 

Securitised bonds:

A3 – issued 30 March 1999 6.542% 284 286 301 337 342 352 

A4 – issued 20 September 2002 5.659% 367 366 387 398 399 407 

M – issued 30 March 1999 7.395% 225 233 226 225 235 231 

N – issued 20 September 2002 6.464% 190 193 163 190 194 169 

1,066 1,078 1,077 1,150 1,170 1,159 

2,343 2,335 2,383 2,447 2,444 2,468 

Commitment for share buybacks – 5 5 – – –

Finance lease payables (note 25) – 3 3 – 3 3 

Total debt 2,343 2,343 2,391 2,447 2,447 2,471 

Cash* (145) (145) (127) (127)

Underlying net debt/net debt (note 32) 2,198 2,198 2,320 2,320 

*  Cash balances, in the current year and in the prior year, within the Group include £65 million held within a securitised reserve account. Withdrawals 
can only be made from this account with the consent of the securitised Trustee.

The nominal value of financial assets and liabilities is the principal amount.

The book value of financial assets and liabilities includes unamortised fees, fair value adjustments made on 
acquisition and excludes the value ascribed to the equity element of the convertible loan note.
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Company

Interest rate

2016
Nominal

value
£m

2016
Book
value

£m

2016
Fair

value
£m

2015
Nominal

value
£m

2015
Book
value

£m

2015
Fair

value
£m

Bank borrowings:

Revolving credit facility LIBOR + 3.0% 55 55 55 75 75 75 

55 55 55 75 75 75 

Corporate bonds:

Secured bond – issued 9 May 2000 6.875% 125 125 127 125 125 128 

Secured bond – issued 15 February 2001 6.875% 125 124 135 125 124 130 

Secured bond – issued 26 February 2002 6.375% 275 273 277 275 273 272 

Secured bond – issued 3 March 2003 6.5% 350 351 379 350 351 371 

Secured bond – issued 7 October 2014 6.0% 250 247 254 250 247 248 

1,125 1,120 1,172 1,125 1,120 1,149

1,180 1,175 1,227 1,200 1,195 1,224 

Commitment for share buybacks – 5 5 – – –

Finance lease payables (note 25) – 1 1 – 1 1 

Intercompany:

Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings (2) (2) (2) (215) (215) (215)

Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings 97 82 82 97 79 79 

Total debt 1,275 1,261 1,313 1,082 1,060 1,089 

Cash (18) (18) (24) (24)

Underlying net debt/net debt (note 32) 1,257 1,243 1,058 1,036 

The bank borrowings, corporate bonds and securitised bonds are held at amortised cost. Finance lease payables 
represent the present value of future minimum lease payments. Other categories of financial instruments include 
trade receivables and trade payables. However, there is no difference between the book value and fair value of 
these items.

Bank borrowings  
At the year end the Group had a £138 million non-amortising revolving credit facility (RCF) in place which was 
available through to September 2018 at an interest rate of 3% over LIBOR. 

On 24 October 2016 the Group replaced this existing £138 million RCF with a new £120 million RCF, which is non-
amortising, attracts interest at 3% and expires in August 2020. 

Corporate bonds  
On 10 September 2013 Enterprise Funding Limited (the Issuer) issued a £97 million 3.5% guaranteed convertible 
bond due 2020 (the bond) at par. The Parent Company has unconditionally and irrevocably guaranteed the due 
and punctual performance by the Issuer of all of its obligations (including payments) in respect of the bond. The 
obligations of the Parent Company, as guarantor, constitute direct, unsubordinated, unconditional and unsecured 
obligations of the Parent Company. 
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23. Financial assets and liabilities (continued)
Subject to the terms, the bond is convertible into preference shares of the Issuer which are automatically 
transferred to the Parent Company in exchange for ordinary shares in the Parent Company. The bond converts at 
a premium of 35% to the share price on 10 September 2013 of 141.5p, which means that the bond is convertible 
based on an exchange share price of 191.0p into 50.8 million ordinary shares. The exchange share price is adjusted 
on the happening of certain events, including the payment of a dividend. 

In accordance with the Group’s accounting policy for convertible financial instruments, the proceeds received from 
the convertible bond issue were split, with an initial £75 million recorded as a liability and £22 million recorded 
within equity, stated net of costs of £2 million and £1 million respectively. The difference between the effective 
interest charged and the actual interest paid is added to the liability element over the life of the convertible bonds.

In the prior year the Group completed a partial refinancing of the secured bond - issued 3 March 2003 due for 
repayment in 2018 (£600 million 2018 corporate bonds). The Group received and accepted tender instructions for 
£250 million of these bonds at a cash purchase price of 108.75% of their principal amount. In connection with this 
partial refinancing the Group issued new £250 million secured corporate bonds due in October 2023 at a coupon 
of 6.0%, resulting in a reduction of the corporate bonds due in 2018 to £350 million. The new issue benefits from a 
security package on substantially the same terms as the original £600 million 2018 bonds, but lower interest costs 
and extended debt maturity.

Subsequent to the year end, on 4 November 2016 the Group completed a further partial refinancing of the 2018 
corporate bond. The partial refinancing will result in a lower interest coupon and an extended debt maturity. Prior 
to the refinancing £350.5 million of 2018 secured corporate bonds were outstanding with a coupon of 6.5%. The 
Group received and accepted tender instructions for £250 million of these bonds at a cash purchase price of 111% 
of their principal amount resulting in a £28 million repurchase premium. In connection with this partial refinancing 
the Group issued new £250 million secured corporate bonds, due in February 2022, at a coupon of 6.375%, 
resulting in a reduction of the corporate bonds maturing in 2018 to £100.5 million. The new issue benefits from a 
security package on substantially the same terms as the 2018 bonds.

Securitised bonds
During the year the Group has made scheduled repayments on the Unique A3 and A4 securitised bonds, which 
together with £10 million of bonds purchased and cancelled, leaves £1,066 million outstanding at the year end. At 
30 September 2016 the Group was £80 million ahead of the amortisation schedule through early repayment and 
market purchases.

Commitment for share buybacks
The Group has entered into a contingent agreement with a third party which requires the Group to purchase shares. 
This has resulted in a financial liability of £5 million at 30 September 2016 (2015: £nil).

Intercompany
The amount owed to subsidiary undertakings relates to the issue of the convertible bonds in Enterprise Funding 
Limited. These proceeds have been on-loaned to Enterprise Inns plc on the same terms with an amount recorded in 
equity and an amount recorded as a liability.

Financial instruments and risk
The Group’s financial instruments comprise bank borrowings, corporate bonds, securitised bonds and cash. The 
main purpose of these financial instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s operations. 

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are interest rate risk and liquidity risk. There is no 
currency exposure as all transactions are in sterling. The Board reviews and agrees policies for managing each of 
these risks and they are summarised as follows:
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Liquidity risk
The Group has exposure to liquidity risk, being the risk that payments cannot be made when they fall due. The 
Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between the continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of bank 
borrowings, corporate bonds and securitised bonds.

This objective is achieved through the following processes:

• regular cash flow forecasting and reporting through the treasury function;

• regular review of the Group’s debt portfolio including maturities and repayment profile; and

• maintenance of undrawn bank facilities.

The proportion of nominal value of borrowings comprised:

Group Company

2016 2015 2016 2015

Bank borrowings 2% 3% 5% 6%

Corporate bonds 52% 50% 95% 94%

Securitised bonds 46% 47% – –

The maturity of the debt and interest payments is set out below:

Group

2016 2015
Debt

£m
Interest

£m
Total

£m
Debt

£m
Interest

£m
Total

£m

In more than five years 1,288 407 1,695 1,518 498 2,016 

In more than two years but not 
more than five years 842 308 1,150 778 360 1,138 

In more than one year but not 
more than two years 136 141 277 77 147 224 

In one year or less or on 
demand 77 146 223 74 152 226 

2,343 1,002 3,345 2,447 1,157 3,604 

Company

2016 2015
Debt

£m
Interest

£m
Total

£m
Debt

£m
Interest

£m
Total

£m

In more than five years 650 237 887 775 281 1,056 

In more than two years but not 
more than five years 572 156 728 522 190 712 

In more than one year but not 
more than two years 55 79 134 – 80 80 

In one year or less or on 
demand – 79 79 – 80 80 

1,277 551 1,828 1,297 631 1,928 

The table above shows the contractual, undiscounted cash flows due in future periods to settle the debt and 
interest payments. The total amount of debt payable shown above differs from the total book value of debt of 
£2,338 million (2015: £2,447 million) in the Group and £1,176 million (2015: £1,196 million) in the Parent Company 
as the book value of debt includes unamortised fees, fair value adjustments made on acquisition and excludes 
the value ascribed to the equity element of the convertible loan note. The contractual maturity of trade and other 
payables and the share buyback commitment is within one year. 

An analysis of minimum lease payments due under finance leases is set out in note 25.
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23. Financial assets and liabilities (continued)
The Group’s bank borrowings, corporate bonds and securitised bonds are repayable as follows:

Bank borrowings:

Revolving credit facility* 2018

Corporate bonds:

£125 million 6.875% bond 2025

£125 million 6.875% bond 2021

£275 million 6.375% bond 2031

£350.5 million 6.5% bond^ 2018

£249.5 million 6.0% bond 2023

£97 million 3.5% convertible bond 2020

Securitised bonds:

A3 2013–2021

A4 2013–2027

M 2021–2024

N 2027–2032

* Since the year end the revolving credit facility was replaced with a new £120 million revolving credit facility which expires in 2020.

^  Since the year end the £350.5 million 6.5% bond was partially refinanced resulting in a £100.5 million 6.5% bond due in 2018 and a £250 million 

6.375% bond due in 2022.

Details of undrawn borrowing facilities available at 30 September are as follows:

Group Company

Expiring:
2016

£m
2015

£m
2016

£m
2015

£m

In more than five years 190 190 – –

In more than two years but not more than five years – 63 – 63

In more than one year but not more than two years 83 – 83 –

In one year or less or on demand – – – –

273 253 83 63

Group Company

The undrawn facilities relate to:
2016

£m
2015

£m
2016

£m
2015

£m

Undrawn liquidity facility 190 190 – –

Undrawn element of committed bank facility 83 63 83 63

The liquidity facility is in respect of the Unique securitisation and is a renewable committed facility of £190 million 
for a term of 364 days. The liquidity facility is available to meet certain payment obligations falling due in the Unique 
securitisation to the extent that insufficient funds are received to meet such payments. The liquidity facility is 
due for renewal on 24 September 2017. The facility relates to the bonds that amortise over a period to 2032 and 
therefore the facility has been disclosed as expiring in more than five years.

Interest rate risk
The Group borrows its corporate bonds and securitised bonds at a fixed rate. Bank borrowings and cash balances 
attract interest at a floating rate. The Group’s objective is to manage exposure to changes in interest rates. This 
exposure is managed by borrowing at fixed rates on the majority of its debt. At 30 September 2016, the Group’s 
borrowings were 98% fixed with an average interest rate of 6.3% for 7 years (2015: 97% fixed at an average rate of 
6.3% for 8 years). The Parent Company’s borrowings were 95% fixed with an average interest rate of 6.4% for 
7 years (2015: 94% fixed at an average rate of 6.3% for 8 years).
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Interest rate sensitivity
In estimating the sensitivity of the financial instruments we have assumed a reasonable potential change in interest 
rates. The method used assumes that all other variables are held constant to determine the impact on profit before 
tax. The analysis is for illustrative purposes only, as in practice market rates rarely change in isolation.

Actual results in the future may differ materially from these estimates due to the movements in the underlying 
transactions, actions taken to mitigate any potential losses, the interaction of more than one sensitivity occurring, 
and further developments in global financial markets. As such the below should not be considered as a projection of 
likely future gains and losses in these financial instruments.

If interest rates were to increase by 50 basis points the interest receivable in the Group would increase by £1 
million (2015: £1 million) and the interest payable would increase by £1 million (2015: £1 million). If interest rates 
were to decrease by 50 basis points the interest receivable in the Group would decrease by £1 million (2015: £1 
million) and the interest payable would decrease by £1 million (2015: £1 million).

If interest rates were to increase by 50 basis points the interest payable in the Parent Company would increase by 
£1 million (2015: £1 million). If interest rates were to decrease by 50 basis points the interest payable in the Parent 
Company would decrease by £1 million (2015: £1 million). Following a group reorganisation during the year there 
are no floating rate receivables remaining in the Parent Company and therefore there is no exposure within interest 
receivable to movements in interest rates.

Security
The bank borrowings are secured by a security deed entered into by the companies which comprise the Group, 
excluding Enterprise Inns Holding Company Limited and its subsidiaries, Unique Pubs Limited and its subsidiaries 
and Enterprise Funding Limited. The lenders have a floating charge over all of the assets and undertakings of such 
Group companies. The floating charge ranks subsequent to the fixed charges created by the corporate bonds.

The total value of assets within the Group secured by way of a fixed or floating charge as at 30 September 2016 is 
property, plant and equipment £3,605 million (2015: £3,638 million), operating lease premiums £9 million (2015: £10 
million) and non-current assets held for sale £21 million (2015: £33 million). The value of assets within the Parent 
Company secured by way of a fixed or floating charge as at 30 September 2016 is property, plant and equipment 
£1,869 million (2015: £1,877 million), operating lease premiums £4 million (2015: £4 million) and non-current assets 
held for sale £10 million (2015: £13 million).

The security pledged for the Group’s debt is summarised below:

Debt instrument Security

Bank borrowings – 1st floating charge over the balance of properties in the Parent Company not already 
secured by a 1st fixed charge created by the corporate bonds.

– 2nd floating charge over the properties secured by a 1st fixed charge created by the 
corporate bonds.

– Share pledge over Unique Pubs Limited.

Corporate bonds (excluding the 
unsecured convertible bond)

– 1st fixed charge over the 2,018 properties in the Parent Company valued by GVA Grimley 
Limited (see note 17).

– 2nd floating charge over the balance of properties in the Parent Company.

Securitised bonds – Collectively over the whole securitisation the security incorporates a 1st fixed charge in 
favour of the Trustee over the Issuer’s right, title, interest and benefit, present and future to 
all properties, cash, eligible investments and income generated by Unique Pub Properties 
Limited.
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23. Financial assets and liabilities (continued)
Covenants
The Group is subject to a number of covenants in relation to its borrowing facilities. There are three covenants that 
relate to the bank borrowings, which are tested quarterly. There is one leverage covenant and two asset valuation 
covenants. There is sufficient headroom on all three of these covenants. The covenants are unchanged under the 
new revolving credit facility.

There are two covenants that relate to the corporate bonds (excluding the unsecured convertible bond); an asset 
value covenant and a net annual income covenant. At the year end there is an annual valuation of the estate and 
a review of the annual income for the properties secured under each of the corporate bonds. The valuation is 
undertaken by a firm of independent chartered surveyors. The directors certify the net annual income as part of an 
annual compliance exercise. In the event that property values or incomes have fallen, there may be a requirement 
to add more properties to the security of the corporate bonds and any addition of new properties must be 
completed within 90 days of the year end. There is sufficient headroom on both of these covenants. The covenants 
are unchanged in the new corporate bond.

There are two covenants that relate to the securitised bonds which are tested at each quarter end. These covenants 
are based solely on the assets held within the securitised bonds and comprise a net asset covenant and a debt 
service cover covenant. There is sufficient headroom in both of these covenants.

The Group tests all of the above covenants on a regular basis and forecasts are prepared during the budgeting 
process. These are reviewed at Board level.

Change of control
All of the agreements in relation to bank borrowings and corporate bonds to which the Group is party, contain 
provisions that allow the counterparties to terminate funding in certain circumstances where there has been a 
change of control of the Parent Company. These are detailed below:

Agreement Summary of change of control clause

Revolving credit facility agreement dated  
22 September 2014 (which commenced on  
7 October 2014)

If any person or group of persons acting in concert gains control of the 
Company then the Company shall promptly notify the agents and lenders. If 
any lender so requires, it may cancel its commitments to the Company and 
require the Company to repay all loans outstanding to it.

£125 million 6.875% secured bonds due 2025
£125 million 6.875% secured bonds due 2021
£275 million 6.375% secured bonds due 2031
£350.5 million 6.5% secured bonds due 2018
£249.5 million 6% secured bond due 2023

The terms and conditions of each of the secured bonds provide that 
following the occurrence of a restructuring event, which is defined in the 
terms and conditions to include:

(i)   any person or persons acting in concert becoming interested in more 
than 50% of the shares of the Company; or

(ii)   any person or group of connected persons acquiring control of the 
Company; or

(iii)   any person or persons acquiring the right to appoint more than 50% of 
the directors of the Company,

the secured bonds must:

(a)  if they are not rated, after a written resolution of the bondholders, either 
be redeemed by the Company or the Company must successfully seek 
an investment grade rating for the secured bonds; or

(b)  if they are rated and such rating is below investment grade or later falls 
below investment grade, be redeemed by the Company.

Unsecured convertible bond due 2020 If any person or persons, acting together, acquire(s) or becomes entitled to 
control more than 50% of the votes that may ordinarily be cast on a poll at 
a general meeting of the Parent Company, the holder of each bond will have 
the right to require the Issuer to redeem that bond on the change of control 
put date at its principal amount, together with accrued and unpaid interest 
up to (but excluding) such date.

The new revolving credit facility and new corporate bonds include change of control provisions consistent with the 
above.
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24. Capital disclosures and analysis of changes in net debt  
The capital structure is managed to support the Group’s objective of maximising long-term shareholder value 
through ready access to debt and capital markets, cost effective borrowing and flexibility to fund business and 
acquisition opportunities whilst maintaining appropriate leverage to optimise the cost of capital.

The capital structure of the Group is based upon management’s judgement of the appropriate balancing of all key 
elements of its financial strategy in order to meet the Group’s operational and strategic requirements. This includes 
a strategy on dividends, share buybacks and monitoring liquidity risk. The overall financing strategy of the Group is 
presented to the Board annually as part of the budgeting exercise.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of a net debt ratio, being net debt divided by net debt plus equity. Net debt 
is defined as the book value of the Group’s debt less cash. Equity is defined as total shareholders’ funds.

Group Company
2016

£m
2015

£m
2016

£m
2015

£m

Total debt 2,343 2,447 1,261 1,060 

Cash (145) (127) (18) (24)

Net debt 2,198 2,320 1,243 1,036 

Equity 1,448 1,346 2,754 2,697 

Net debt ratio 60% 63% 31% 28%

25. Leases
The Group and the Parent Company as lessee
The Group and the Parent Company lease a proportion of their licensed estate from landlords under finance leases 
and operating leases. These leases have varying terms, escalation clauses and renewal rights. 

Finance leases
Group Company

2016
£m

2015
£m

2016
£m

2015
£m

Future minimum lease payments due under finance leases:

In less than one year 1 1 – –

After one year but not more than five years 2 2 1 1 

In more than five years 22 24 10 10 

25 27 11 11 

Future finance lease interest (22) (24) (10) (10)

Present value of future minimum lease payments 3 3 1 1 

The present value of future minimum lease payments is due in more than five years (2015: more than five years). 

Properties that are leased from landlords under finance leases are let to tenants. Future minimum rentals receivable 
in the Group, from non-cancellable sub-leases on the above properties are £54 million (2015: £57 million). Future 
minimum rentals receivable in the Parent Company, from non-cancellable sub-leases on the above properties are 
£20 million (2015: £21 million).
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25. Leases (continued)
Group Company

2016
£m

2015
£m

2016
£m

2015
£m

Operating lease rentals recognised as an expense in the year 21 21 20 20

Group Company
2016

£m
2015

£m
2016

£m
2015

£m

Future minimum lease payments due under operating leases:

Within one year 20 20 18 19

After one year but not more than five years 77 76 74 72

In more than five years 280 296 261 276

377 392 353 367

Properties that are leased from landlords under operating leases are let to tenants. Future minimum rentals 
receivable in the Group, from non-cancellable sub-leases on the above properties are £123 million (2015: £133 
million). Future minimum rentals receivable in the Parent Company, from non-cancellable sub-leases on the above 
properties are £117 million (2015: £127 million).

The Group and Parent Company as lessor  
The Group and the Parent Company lease its properties to tenants. The majority of lease agreements have terms 
of between 1 and 30 years and all are classified for accounting purposes as operating leases. Most of the leases 
with terms of over 3 years include RPI based rent adjustments and provision for rent reviews on either a 3 or 5 year 
basis. 

The present value of future minimum lease rentals receivable under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

Group Company
2016

£m
2015

£m
2016

£m
2015

£m

Future minimum lease rentals receivable under operating 
leases:

Within one year 143 149 78 81

After one year but not more than five years 460 487 246 254

In more than five years 526 594 249 266

1,129 1,230 573 601

Leases with future minimum lease rentals receivable under operating leases in more than five years within the 
Group have an average term of 14 years (2015: 14 years) remaining on their agreements and within the Parent 
Company have an average term of 12 years (2015: 12 years) remaining on their agreements.
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26. Provisions
Group Company

2016
£m

2015
£m

2016
£m

2015
£m

At 1 October:

Current – – – –

Non-current 4 4 4 4

4 4 4 4

Movement during the year:

Increase in provision during the year 1 1 1 1

Release of provision during the year (1) (1) (1) (1)

– – – –

At 30 September:

Current – – – –

Non-current 4 4 4 4

4 4 4 4

The provision in both the Group and Parent Company relates to future commitments under onerous lease 
agreements. The provision is expected to be utilised over the life of leases involved or as the properties are 
disposed of. The remaining lease terms vary from 0 to 134 years.

27. Deferred tax
The deferred tax in the balance sheet relates to the following:

Group Company
2016

£m
2015

£m
2016

£m
2015

£m

Unrealised surplus on revaluation of fixed assets and rolled 
over gains 146 177 55 79 

Accelerated capital allowances 46 55 31 36 

Share-based payments (2) (2) (2) (2)

Temporary differences (5) (7) – (2)

185 223 84 111 

The UK Government reduced the rate of corporation tax from 20% to 17% effective by 1 April 2020. Deferred 
taxation has been calculated based on the current substantively enacted rate of 17%. No further changes in the UK 
tax rate are anticipated. 
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27. Deferred tax (continued)
The deferred tax provision for the unrealised surplus on the revaluation of fixed assets in the Group has moved 
during the year as follows:

£m

Opening provision at 1 October 2015 177 

Reduction in deferred tax liability due to indexation credited to the income statement (1)

Reduction in deferred tax liability due to movements from revaluation of the estate and disposals recognised in the 
income statement (4)

Increase in deferred tax liability recognised in other comprehensive income –

Adjustment for rate change (26)

Closing provision at 30 September 2016 146 

The Group has not provided deferred tax in relation to temporary differences associated with undistributed earnings 
of subsidiaries on the basis that under current enacted law, no tax is payable on dividends payable and receivable 
within the Group. 

The amount of deferred tax provided by the Parent Company at the year end has been reduced by £10 million as a 
result of a reassessment of how indexation relief and declines in carrying value are applied to assets impacted by 
initial recognition exemption rules. Of this adjustment, £21 million has been credited through other comprehensive 
income to the revaluation reserve and £11 million charged to the Parent Company income statement in arriving at 
the profit for the year.

28. Pension
The Group and the Parent Company make defined contribution payments to employees’ own pension plans and 
these payments are charged to the income statement as incurred.

RetailLink Management Limited (a subsidiary company that has now been liquidated as part of a Group 
reorganisation) established a pension plan for its employees in January 1999. The plan has a defined contribution 
and defined benefit scheme. The plan is now closed to new members and for the future accrual of benefits.

The plan is governed by the employment laws of the United Kingdom which require final salary payments to be 
adjusted for the consumer price index upon payment during retirement. The level of benefits provided depends on a 
member’s length of service and salary at retirement age. The fund has a legal form of foundation and is governed by 
the Board of Pension Trustees. The Board of Trustees is responsible for the administration of the plan assets and for 
the definition of the investment strategy.

In April 2014, the Trustees of the RetailLink Management Limited pension plan and the Company committed to a 
bulk annuity buyout of the defined benefit section of the plan, crystallising a liability of £10 million payable through 
a deferred payment schedule over a four year period. The initial stage of this process involved the Trustees using 
the plan’s defined benefit section assets to purchase a bulk annuity policy from Legal & General Assurance Society 
Limited (LGAS). The policies commenced with effect from 30 April 2014 and will be held for the time being as 
investments of the plan. Once the deferred premiums have been paid, the Trustees intend to ask LGAS to issue 
individual annuity policies to defined benefit section members and then wind-up the plan, after which the Company 
will no longer retain any responsibilities or obligations to the members of the plan. The deferred payment plan 
attracts interest at a rate of LIBOR plus 2.5%.

In view of the relative insignificance of the pension scheme, both on a gross and net basis, the Group has elected 
to only present summarised disclosures to one decimal place in respect of the scheme.
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Assets and liabilities of the plan
2016

£m
2015

£m

Fair value of plan assets:

Cash 0.1 0.1 

Assets held by insurance companies 36.4 27.0 

36.5 27.1 

Present value of plan liabilities (36.5) (27.1)

Provision for deferral premiums and future administrative costs (4.7) (7.0)

Net pension deficit (4.7) (7.0)

Recognised in the balance sheet as:
2016

£m
2015

£m

Current liabilities (2.4) (2.4)

Non-current liabilities (2.3) (4.6)

(4.7) (7.0)

Movement in deficit during the year
2016

£m
2015

£m

Net deficit at the start of the year (7.0) (10.0)

Deferred premium paid 2.3 2.3 

Fees paid – 0.7 

Net pension deficit at the end of the year (4.7) (7.0)

The principal assumptions made by the actuaries were: 2016 2015

Rate of increase in pension payments 3.55% 3.60%

Rate of increase of pensions in deferment 2.05% 2.10%

Discount rate 2.40% 3.85%

Inflation assumption 3.05% 3.10%

Longevity at age 65 for current pensioners

 Men 23 years 23 years

 Women 25 years 25 years

Longevity at age 65 for future pensioners

 Men 25 years 25 years

 Women 27 years 27 years

The mortality tables used to value the plan’s liabilities are S1NA light tables adjusted for CMI improvements subject 
to a minimum annual long-term improvement of 1.25% p.a. for current pensioners and for future retirees (with a -1 
year age adjustment for females). These tables give a life expectancy as set out above.

Due to the nature of the pension deficit being the deferred payment plan outstanding for the bulk annuity policy 
sensitivity analysis is not relevant and has therefore not been disclosed.

The Company will not be making any contributions to the defined benefit plan in future years following the bulk 
annuity buy out.
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29. Share capital 
2016 2015

Authorised: No. £m No. £m

Ordinary shares of 2.5p each 1,000,000,000 25 1,000,000,000 25

2016 2015
Allotted, called up and fully paid: No. £m No. £m

Ordinary shares of 2.5p each 544,932,627 14 555,977,435 14

Ordinary shares carry no right to fixed income. Holders of ordinary shares are entitled to vote at meetings.

At 30 September 2016, the Group owned 50 million (2015: 50 million) of its own shares as treasury shares with a 
nominal value of £1 million (2015: £1 million) and a market value of £47 million (2015: £54 million). In addition, at 
30 September 2016 the Group held 6,851,312 shares with a nominal value of £0.2 million and a market value of £6 
million (2015: 6,568,286 shares, nominal value £0.2 million, market value £7 million). These shares are held by the 
Employee Benefit Trust and are shares used to satisfy awards made under the Enterprise Inns incentive plans and 
other share option schemes (note 30).

During the year the Group made on market purchases in respect of 11 million (2015: nil) of its own ordinary shares 
for an aggregate consideration of £10 million (2015: nil) (excluding costs) as part of its share buyback programme. 
These shares were cancelled. Transaction costs of £0.1 million (2015: nil) have been accounted for directly in equity 
in the profit and loss reserve.

30. Share-based payments
The Group operates share-based payment schemes for both directors and other employees. Details of the Deferred 
Share Award and Long-Term Incentive Plan (LTIP) which form part of the remuneration of the executive directors are 
given in the directors’ remuneration report on pages 58 to 72. 

The Group also operates a Share Incentive Plan (SIP), an Employee Share Option Scheme (ESOS), and a Save As 
You Earn Scheme (SAYE).

A total expense of £2 million (2015: £2 million) has been incurred in the year in relation to share-based payments. 
This expense relates wholly to the equity-settled schemes described above.

Share Incentive Plan
The SIP is open to all employees. At times determined by the Parent Company, employees may allocate the lower 
of £1,800 or 10% of pre-tax salary to purchase shares out of their salary. The Board may also decide to award 
matching shares. The shares are held in trust on behalf of the employee. If shares are removed from trust within 
three years, any allocation of matching shares may be lost. Shares can be transferred tax-free to employees after a 
period of five years. Matching shares were awarded every year from 2005 to 2016.

The cost of the matching shares is being spread over the three year vesting period of the scheme. 

Details of the number of matching shares held in trust during the year are as follows:

2016
Number

of shares

2015 
Number

of shares

Outstanding at beginning of year 519,959 934,894 

Granted 159,455 157,041 

Vested (189,532) (552,458)

Forfeited (11,436) (19,518)

Outstanding at end of year 478,446 519,959 

Weighted average remaining contractual life 1.1 years 1.2 years
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Employee Share Option Scheme 
The ESOS is open to all employees. Share options are awarded to employees at the discretion of the Board. 
Options will normally vest after three years if an employee remains in service and if EPS targets are met. There 
were no options granted during the current or prior year. Options may normally only be exercised during the period 
of seven years commencing on the third anniversary of the date of grant of the option. Options will usually be 
settled using ordinary shares held by the Employee Benefit Trust. 

Details of the share options outstanding during the year are as follows:

2016 2015

Number 
of share 
options

Weighted 
average 
exercise 

price
£

Number 
of share 
options

Weighted 
average 
exercise 

price
£

Outstanding at beginning of year 6,835,458 1.29 11,768,641 1.00

Exercised (110,410) 0.42 (731,002) 0.37

Expired (6,412,551) 1.35 (4,202,181) 0.65

Outstanding at end of year 312,497 0.37 6,835,458 1.29

Weighted average remaining contractual life 5.2 years 6.4 years

Options outstanding at 30 September 2016 comprise the following:

Exercise date

Number 
of share 
options

Exercise 
price

£

12/12/14 –12/12/21 312,497 0.37

There were no options granted during the current or prior year under the ESOS.

SAYE scheme
The SAYE scheme is open to executive directors and employees at the discretion of the Board. Participants contract 
to save a fixed amount each month with a savings institution for a period of five years (previously a seven year 
scheme has also been offered). At the end of the savings term, participants are given the option to purchase shares 
at a price set before the savings began. The option price will be not less than 80% of the market value of a share on 
the date that participants are invited to take part in the scheme, or the nominal value of a share, if higher. Options 
will usually be settled using ordinary shares held by the Employee Benefit Trust and will usually be exercisable for 
six months after the fifth or seventh anniversary of the commencement of the savings contract. 

Details of the share options outstanding during the year are as follows:

2016 2015

Number 
of share 
options

Weighted 
average 
exercise 

price
£

Number 
of share 
options

Weighted 
average 
exercise 

price
£

Outstanding at beginning of year 5,549,799 0.46 4,983,847 0.36

Granted 920,626 0.86 1,255,035 0.87

Exercised (208,452) 0.45 (156,940) 0.40

Expired (6,070) 0.80 – –

Forfeited (347,409) 0.91 (532,143) 0.55

Outstanding at end of year 5,908,494 0.49 5,549,799 0.46

Weighted average remaining contractual life 2.1 years 2.7 years
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30. Share-based payments (continued)
Options outstanding at 30 September 2016 comprise the following:

Exercise date

Number 
of share 
options

Exercise 
price

£

01/02/17-31/07/17 6,572 1.00

01/02/16-31/07/18 1,575 0.80

01/02/17-31/07/19 3,406,863 0.24

01/02/18-31/07/18 414,113 0.54

01/02/19-31/07/19 178,420 1.21

01/02/20-31/07/20 1,078,073 0.87

01/02/21-31/07/21 822,878 0.86

5,908,494

The weighted average fair value of options granted during the year under the SAYE scheme was £0.38 (2015: 
£0.48).

Deferred Share Award and LTIP
Executive directors and other members of the senior management team are eligible to participate in a Deferred 
Share Award and an LTIP plan. A summary of the rules of these schemes along with details of shares that have 
been granted to the executive directors and are outstanding in relation to them is included in the directors’ 
remuneration report on pages 58 to 72. 

Shares awarded vest over between one and three years from fulfilment of performance targets.

Details of the total number of share options outstanding during the year are as follows:

2016 2015

LTIP
Number 
of share 
options

Deferred 
Share Award

Number 
of share 
options

LTIP
Number 
of share 
options

Deferred 
Share Award

Number 
of share 
options

Outstanding at beginning of year 5,890,548 3,136,071 4,902,716 3,856,662 

Granted 2,104,963 1,908,612 1,414,080 915,701 

Exercised (426,248) (392,622) (426,248) (1,636,292)

Lapsed (2,010,289) – – –

Forfeited – (189,741) – –

Outstanding at end of year 5,558,974 4,462,320 5,890,548 3,136,071 

Weighted average remaining contractual life 2.3 years 2.0 years 2.1 years 1.7 years

The share price at which the number of shares granted under the Deferred Share Award scheme is calculated, is 
not confirmed until after the date of the approval of the accounts. The maximum number of Deferred Share Award 
shares granted during the year is therefore estimated using the closing share price on 30 September 2016. The 
number of shares granted in 2015 has been amended to show the actual number granted in 2015.

Where the conditions are not met the shares are released in the forfeited line.

Directors and other members of the management team eligible to participate in the Deferred Share Award pay £1 
to exercise awards granted under the Deferred Share Award and the LTIP, this is a one-off charge. All of the shares 
outstanding at 30 September 2016 are not yet exercisable.
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The weighted average fair value of shares granted during the year under the Deferred Share Award was £0.94 
(2015: £1.04 restated for actual number of shares granted in 2015) and under the LTIP was £0.56 (2015: £0.47).

The weighted average share price on exercise of shares and share options under all schemes during the year was 
£1.02 (2015: £1.07).

Fair value of share schemes
The fair value of equity-settled share options and share awards granted is estimated at the date of grant using share 
option valuation models. The SAYE and Deferred Share Award schemes are valued using the Black-Scholes model. 
The element of the LTIP scheme that relates to non-market conditions is valued using the Black-Scholes model. The 
element of the LTIP that includes market conditions is valued using the Monte-Carlo Simulation Model. 

The following tables list the inputs to the models for options and shares granted during the year:

SAYE Deferred Share Award LTIP

Weighted average: 2016 2015 2016 2015† 2016 2015

Share price (£) 0.92 1.04 0.87 1.08 0.74 1.09

Exercise price (£) 0.86 0.87 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Dividend yield 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

Expected volatility 43% 46% 35–38% 34–46% 34–43% 37–46%

Risk-free interest rate 1.02% 0.95% 0.08–1.04% 0.54–0.96% 0.49–0.81% 0.76–1.13%

Expected life of option (years) 5 5 2–4‡ 2–4‡ 3–5* 3–5*

†  The share price at which the number of shares granted under the Deferred Share Award scheme is calculated is not confirmed until after the date 
of the approval of the accounts. The maximum number of Deferred Share Award shares granted during the year is therefore estimated using the 
closing share price on 30 September 2016. The 2015 weighted averages have been amended to reflect the actual number of shares granted in 2016.

‡  The Deferred Share Award for the executive directors vests in 4 years (2015: 4 years), the Deferred Share Award for the executive management 
vests in two equal tranches after 2 and 3 years (2015: 2 and 3 years) and the Deferred Share Award for the other members of the senior team vests 
after 4 years (2015: 3 years).

* The LTIP vests in three equal tranches after 3, 4 and 5 years.

Expected share-price volatility is based on historic volatility over the same period of time as the vesting period of 
the option. For the LTIP the expected life of an option is based on historical data.

The LTIP will only vest in full if a TSR target is met. This is a market condition and the TSR performance criteria 
has therefore been taken into account when calculating the fair value of the options granted under the LTIP. These 
conditions have been incorporated into the Monte-Carlo Simulation model which is used to fair value the TSR 
element of the scheme. 

31. Reserves
Share premium account
This reserve represents the amount of proceeds received for shares in excess of their nominal value of 2.5 pence 
per share.

Revaluation reserve
This reserve shows the surplus generated on revaluation of the estate. It represents the amount by which the fair 
value of the estate exceeds its historic cost net of related tax. During the year the Group has transferred a charge of 
£11 million of deferred tax from the profit and loss account reserve, the Parent Company has reanalysed a credit of 
£4 million.
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31. Reserves (continued)
Capital redemption reserve
This reserve arose on the repurchase and cancellation of own shares in 1995/96, 2005/06, 2006/07 and 2007/08.

Merger reserve
This reserve arose as a consequence of the acquisition of Century Inns plc in 1998/99.

Treasury share reserve
This reserve shows the cost of own shares purchased by the Parent Company and held as treasury shares. These 
shares can be cancelled or re-issued.

Other reserve
In the Group this comprises the cost of shares in the Parent Company that are held by the Employee Benefit Trust 
and the equity component of the convertible bond. The shares in the Employee Benefit Trust are used to satisfy 
awards made under share incentive plans (note 30).

In the Parent Company this comprises the cost of shares in the Company that are held by the Employee Benefit 
Trust and the equity component of the on-loan of the funds raised in Enterprise Funding Limited through the 
convertible bond. This reserve also includes the increase in fair value of subsidiaries recorded at fair value under 
IAS 27 and the dividends received from Enterprise Pubs Five Limited that cannot be distributed outside the Group.

In the year ended 30 September 2016, £45 million has been reclassified from other reserves to the profit and loss 
account in the Parent Company following an impairment to the carrying value of investments.

32. Additional cash flow information
a) Reconciliation of net cash flow to movement in net debt

2016
£m

2015
£m

Increase in cash in the year 18 4 

Cash outflow from change in debt 104 77 

Debt restructuring costs 7 2 

Change in net debt resulting from cash flows 129 83 

Amortisation of issue costs and discounts/premiums on long-term loans (3) (1)

Amortisation of the fair value adjustments of securitised bonds 4 5 

Convertible loan note effective interest (3) (3)

Movement in commitment for share buybacks (5) –

Movement in net debt in the year 122 84 

Net debt at start of year (2,320) (2,404)

Net debt at end of year (2,198) (2,320)

Enterprise Inns - AR2016 - Gov and Financials.indd   124 07/12/2016   14:21:20



24766.04    7 December 2016 1:54 PM    Proof 6

125Enterprise Inns plc Annual Report and Accounts 
for the year ended 30 September 2016

A
c

c
o

u
n

ts

b) Analysis of net debt
2016

£m
2015

£m

Bank borrowings (55) (75)

Corporate bonds (1,222) (1,222)

Securitised bonds (1,066) (1,150)

Gross debt (2,343) (2,447)

Cash 145 127 

Underlying net debt (note 23) (2,198) (2,320)

Capitalised debt issue costs 16 12 

Fair value adjustments on acquisition of bonds (21) (25)

Convertible loan note effective interest (8) (5)

Convertible bond reserve 21 21 

Finance lease payables (3) (3)

Commitment for share buybacks (5) –

Net debt (note 23) (2,198) (2,320)

Balance sheet:

Current financial liabilities (82) (74)

Non-current financial liabilities (2,261) (2,373)

Cash 145 127 

Net debt (2,198) (2,320)

33. Related party transactions
Compensation of key management personnel

2016
£000

2015
£000

Short-term employee benefits 2,272 1,830

Post-employment benefits* 214 210

Share-based payments 729 728

3,215 2,768

* The post-employment benefits cost has been restated for the prior year by £1,000.

Key management personnel comprises both executive and non-executive directors.

Short-term employee benefits comprise fees, salaries, benefits and performance related bonus as reported in the 
directors’ remuneration report. Post-employment benefits comprise payments made to the directors’ own personal 
pension by way of salary supplements in lieu of contributions. Share-based payments comprise the fair value of 
Deferred Share Award and LTIP share awards charged in the year. Further information about the remuneration of 
individual directors is available in the directors’ remuneration report on pages 58 to 72.
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33. Related party transactions (continued)
Subsidiaries  
The Parent Company’s subsidiaries are listed in the following table.

Country of 
incorporation Holding

Proportion 
of voting 

rights and 
shares 

held Nature of business

Directly held by Enterprise Inns plc:

Enterprise Funding Limited Jersey Ordinary shares 100% Financing company

Enterprise Managed Investments 
Limited (formerly Boldbreak Limited)

England Ordinary shares 100% Investment holding company

Enterprise Inns Holding Company 
Limited

England Ordinary shares 100% Investment holding company

Unique Pubs Limited England Ordinary shares 100% Investment holding company

Century Inns Limited England Ordinary shares 100% Dormant

Enterprise Commercial Property 
Services Limited

England Ordinary shares 100% Dormant

Gibbs Mew Limited England Ordinary shares 100% Dormant

Indirectly held by Enterprise Inns plc:

Unique Pub Properties Limited England Ordinary shares 100% Ownership of licensed 
properties

Bermondsey Pub Company Limited England Ordinary shares 100% Management of public houses

Frontier Pubs Limited England Ordinary shares 75% Management of public houses

Hippo Inns Limited England Ordinary shares 75% Management of public houses

Hunky Dory Pubs Limited England Ordinary shares 51% Management of public houses

Mash Inns Limited England Ordinary shares 51% Management of public houses

The Craft Union Pub Company Limited England Ordinary shares 100% Management of public houses

The Unique Pub Finance Company PLC England Ordinary shares 100% Financing company

Cumulative preference 
shares

100%

Unique Pub Investments Limited England Ordinary shares 100% Investment holding company

Voyager Pub Group Holdings Limited England Ordinary shares 100% Investment holding company

Voyager Pub Group Limited England Ordinary shares 100% Investment holding company

Dirty Liquor Limited England Ordinary shares 100% Non-trading

Marmalade Pubs Limited England Ordinary shares 75% Non-trading

Bede Holding Company Limited England Ordinary shares 100% Dormant

Imagegold Limited England Ordinary shares 100% Dormant

Unique Pub Properties Alpha Limited England Ordinary shares 100% Dormant

Unique Pub Properties Beta Limited England Ordinary shares 100% Dormant

Unique Pub Properties Gamma Limited England Ordinary shares 100% Dormant

Unique Pub Properties Theta Limited England Ordinary shares 100% Dormant

West Midlands Taverns Limited England Ordinary shares 100% Dormant

Non-controlling interests in the net assets of Hippo Inns Limited, Mash Inns Limited, Frontier Pubs Limited, Hunky 
Dory Pubs Limited and Marmalade Pubs Limited total £1 million at 30 September 2016 (2015: £nil).
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Parent Company transactions with subsidiary undertakings
The Parent Company enters into loans with its subsidiary undertakings which attract interest at varying levels. Net 
interest on these loans was £35 million (2015: £33 million).

During the year the Parent Company waived its right to receive a loan due from a subsidiary undertaking and 
capitalised the balance as disclosed in note 18.

The following loans were outstanding at the year end:

2016
£m

2015
£m

Loans due from subsidiary undertakings 2 215

Loans due to subsidiary undertakings (82) (79)

(80) 136

The Parent Company entered into other trading transactions with its subsidiary undertakings of £47 million (2015: 
£56 million) which includes an asset management fee, a procurement fee, drink revenue and rent revenue. During 
the year the Parent Company purchased property, plant and equipment at book value for consideration of £30 
million from a subsidiary, Unique Pub Properties Limited and sold property, plant and equipment at book value for 
consideration of £2 million to a subsidiary, Hippo Inns Limited. 

Dividends of £284 million (2015: £10 million) were received in the Parent Company from its subsidiary undertakings.

The following balances were outstanding at the year end:

2016
£m

2015
£m

Amounts due from subsidiary undertakings 590 558 

Amounts due to subsidiary undertakings (87) (344)

503 214 

34. Post balance sheet events
On 24 October 2016 the Group and Parent Company replaced its existing £138 million RCF that expired in 
September 2018 with a new £120 million RCF, which is non-amortising, attracts interest at 3% and expires in 
August 2020. 

On 4 November 2016 the Group and Parent Company completed a partial refinancing of the 2018 corporate bond. 
The partial refinancing will result in a lower interest coupon and an extended debt maturity. Prior to the refinancing 
£350.5 million of 2018 secured corporate bonds were outstanding with a coupon of 6.5%. The Group received and 
accepted tender instructions for £250 million of these bonds at a cash purchase price of 111% of their principal 
amount resulting in a £27.5 million repurchase premium which will be charged as an exceptional item in the year 
ending 30 September 2017. In connection with this partial refinancing the Group issued new £250 million secured 
corporate bonds, due in February 2022, at a coupon of 6.375%, resulting in a reduction of the corporate bonds 
maturing in 2018 to £100.5 million. The new issue benefits from a security package on substantially the same terms 
as the 2018 bonds.

Subsequent to the year end the Parent Company has purchased 3 million shares at an average price of 92p per 
share which, when combined with the 11 million shares purchased during the year to 30 September 2016, totals 14 
million shares purchased as part of its ongoing share buyback programme, at an average price of 91p per share.
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35. Alternative performance measures
Like-for-like leased and tenanted net income
Leased and tenanted like-for-like net income of £338 million (2015: £331 million) represents pre-exceptional EBITDA 
of £292 million (2015: £296 million), stated before property costs of £29 million (2015: £29 million), unallocated 
central costs of £44 million (2015: £41 million) and excluding £23 million (2015: £23 million) of net operating profit 
relating to commercial properties and managed houses and £4 million (2015: £12 million) of income in respect of 
disposals.

Like-for-like commercial properties net income
Commercial properties will increasingly become an important element of our business and we believe it is 
appropriate to assess the financial performance of these assets by measurement of their like-for-like net income. 
Commercial properties achieved like-for-like net income growth of 3.8% in the year to 30 September 2016 and 
relates to £7.1 million (2015: £6.8 million) of net income from the 138 commercial properties that traded as 
commercial properties throughout the financial years ended 30 September 2015 and 2016. 

Total commercial properties net income in the year to 30 September 2016 was £17 million (2015: £17 million) which 
includes income derived from properties that converted to commercial properties during the financial years ended 
30 September 2015 and 2016. The commercial properties net income in the year represents pre-exceptional EBITDA 
of £292 million (2015: £296 million), stated before property costs of £29 million (2015: £29 million), unallocated 
central costs of £44 million (2015: £41 million) and excluding £344 million (2015: £337 million) of net operating profit 
relating to leased and tenanted properties and managed houses and £4 million (2015: £12 million) of income in 
respect of disposals.

Excess cash flow
In the year we have introduced a capital allocation framework to help us optimise the use of excess cash flow. We 
therefore believe that the measurement of excess cash flow is an important new metric. Excess cash flow in the 
year was £48 million (2015: £15 million) and is derived from net cash flows from operating activities of £269 million 
(2015: £265 million) plus net cash flows from investing activities of £24 million (2015: £6 million) less net interest 
paid of £154 million (2015: £157 million) less debt restructuring and extinguishment costs of £7 million (2015: £28 
million) less payments to acquire own debt of £10 million (2015: nil) less scheduled debt amortisation of £74 million 
(2015: £71 million).

Enterprise Inns - AR2016 - Gov and Financials.indd   128 07/12/2016   14:21:20



24766.04    7 December 2016 1:54 PM    Proof 6

129Enterprise Inns plc Annual Report and Accounts 
for the year ended 30 September 2016

A
c

c
o

u
n

ts

Independent Auditor’s Report
to the members of Enterprise Inns plc

Our opinion on the financial statements 
In our opinion: 

• Enterprise Inns plc’s Group financial statements and Parent Company financial statements (the “financial 
statements”) give a true and fair view of the state of the Group’s and of the Parent Company’s affairs as at 30 
September 2016 and of the Group’s profit for the year then ended; 

• the Group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European 
Union;

• the Parent Company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the 
European Union as applied in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006; and

• the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and, as 
regards the Group financial statements, Article 4 of the IAS Regulation.

What we have audited
We have audited the financial statements of Enterprise Inns plc for the year ended 30 September 2016 which comprise:

Group Parent Company

Group balance sheet Company balance sheet 
Group income statement 
Group statement of comprehensive income 
Group statement of changes in equity Company statement of changes in equity 
Group cash flow statement Company cash flow statement 
Related notes 1 to 35 to the financial statements Related notes to the financial statements

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and International 
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union and, as regards the Parent Company financial 
statements, as applied in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006. 

Overview of our audit approach
Materiality • Overall Group materiality of £5.9m (2015: £6.0m) which represents 5% (2015: 5%) of pre-

exceptional profit before tax after including the net loss on sale of property, plant and 
equipment.

Audit scope • We performed an audit of the complete financial information of four (2015: four) full scope 
components, performed specific scope procedures in respect of seven components (2015: nil), 
and performed specified procedures in respect of eight components (2015: ten). 

• The components where we performed full scope audit procedures accounted for over 97% of 
pre-exceptional profit before tax (including loss on sale of property, plant and equipment), 96% 
of revenue and 99% of total assets. 

• The components subject to specific scope procedures or specified procedures covered the 
remainder of pre-exceptional profit before tax (including loss on sale of property, plant and 
equipment) (3%), revenue (4%) and total assets (1%).

Risks of material 
misstatement 

• Over valuation of the property estate (£3.6 billion (2015: £3.7 billion)); 

• Failure to impair goodwill when required; and

• Deferred tax on the revaluation of the estate.
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The scope of an audit of the financial statements 
An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to give 
reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud 
or error. This includes an assessment of: whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the Group’s and the 
Parent Company’s circumstances and have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed; the reasonableness 
of significant accounting estimates made by the directors; and the overall presentation of the financial statements. In 
addition, we read all the financial and non-financial information in the Annual Report and Accounts to identify material 
inconsistencies with the audited financial statements and to identify any information that is apparently materially 
incorrect based on, or materially inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by us in the course of performing the audit. 
If we become aware of any apparent material misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the implications for our 
report. 

Our application of materiality
We apply the concept of materiality both in planning and performing the audit, and in evaluating the effect of 
misstatements on the audit and in forming our audit opinion. 

Materiality
The magnitude of an omission or misstatement that, individually or in the aggregate, could reasonably be expected to 
influence the economic decisions of the users of the financial statements. Materiality provides a basis for determining 
the nature and extent of our audit procedures. (ISA 320)

 

 

 

 

Profit before tax – £75m

 

 

Starting 
basis

Adjustments

Materiality

Exceptional items – £43m (before tax, 
and excluding net loss on sale of
property, plant and equipment)

Pre-exceptional profit before tax (including
the net loss of sale of property, plant
and equipment – £118m
Materiality of £5.9m (5% of £118m)

We determined materiality for the Group to be £5.9m (2015: 
£6m), which is 5% (2015: 5%) of pre-exceptional profit before tax 
including the net loss on sale of property, plant and equipment. 
We use pre-exceptional profit before tax as reported by the Group 
to exclude the impact of exceptional items which do not reflect 
the underlying trading performance of the Group. For 2016, we 
included the impact of the net loss on sale of property, plant and 
equipment as we consider the ongoing disposal of property, plant 
and equipment to be recurring in nature and reflective of the 
ongoing asset optimisation strategy of the Group. This approach 
avoids inappropriate variations in our materiality as a result of 
non-recurring items and fluctuations in the carrying value of the 
estate which can be significant compared to underlying trading 
performance. 

Performance materiality
The application of materiality at the individual account or balance level. It is set at an amount to reduce to an 
appropriately low level the probability that the aggregate of uncorrected and undetected misstatements exceeds 
materiality. (ISA 320)

On the basis of our risk assessments, together with our assessment of the Group’s overall control environment, our 
judgement was that performance materiality should be set at 75% (2015: 75%) of materiality, namely £4.4m (2015: 
£4.5m). In the prior year, we reduced our testing threshold in areas of significant risk to reflect our assessment of risk 
of material misstatement and focus on the key judgements and estimates. In the current year, as a result of limited 
historical audit findings we have used a consistent testing threshold for each significant account balance. 
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Reporting threshold
An amount below which identified misstatements are considered as being clearly trivial. (ISA 450)

We agreed with the Audit Committee that we would report to them all uncorrected audit differences in excess of £0.3m 
(2015: £0.3m), which is set at 5% of materiality, as well as differences below that threshold that, in our view, warranted 
reporting on qualitative grounds. 

We evaluate any uncorrected misstatements against both the quantitative measures of materiality discussed above and 
in light of other relevant qualitative considerations in forming our opinion.

Scope of our audit for the year ended 30 September 2016
Our assessment of audit risk, our evaluation of materiality and our allocation of performance materiality determine the 
audit scope for each component within the Group. Taken together, this enables us to form an opinion on the financial 
statements. We take into account size, risk profile, the organisation of the Group and effectiveness of group-wide 
controls, changes in the business environment and other factors such as recent internal audit results when assessing 
the level of work to be performed at each component. 

The Group has common financial systems, processes and controls covering the majority of its operations. Six of the 
Group’s managed house operations are managed on stand-alone systems maintained by third party managers.

In assessing the risk of material misstatement to the financial statements, and to ensure we had adequate coverage of 
significant accounts in the financial statements, of the 19 (2015:14) reporting components of the Group, our scoping was 
as set out below:

Number of components

Group pre-exceptional 
profit before tax (including 

loss on disposal of 
property, plant and 

equipment) Group revenue Group total assets

2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015

Full scope audit 4 4 97% 99% 96% 99% 99% 99%

Specific scope 
procedures

7 – 3% – 4% – 1% –

Specified 
procedures

8  10 In the current year, these components contain no transactions or balances external 
to the Group (2015: less than 1%). We have performed specified procedures to 
ensure that such transactions and balances eliminate on consolidation.

19 14

The audits of the entities subject to full scope audits (which represent the principal business units within the Group, one 
being the Parent Company itself) are performed at a materiality level calculated by reference to a proportion of the Group 
materiality appropriate to the relevant scale of the business concerned. In the current year, the range of performance 
materiality allocated to these components was £1.8m (2015: £1.7m) to £3.1m (2015: £3.0m).

The audit of the components within the Group is undertaken by one audit team, with the exception of four (2015: nil) 
managed house operations. Due to the nature of the significant risk areas noted below, the audit team includes tax 
specialists and is supported by specialists in property valuations and the evaluation of the weighted average cost of 
capital.

Our assessment of the risks of material misstatement
We identified the risks of material misstatement described below as those that had the greatest effect on our overall 
audit strategy, the allocation of resources in the audit and the direction of the efforts of the audit team. In addressing 
these risks, we have performed the procedures below which were designed in the context of the financial statements 
as a whole and, consequently, we do not express any opinion on these individual areas.
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to the members of Enterprise Inns plc

Risk Our response to the risk

Key observations 
communicated to the 
Audit Committee

Over valuation of the property estate 

Refer to the Audit Committee report 
(pages 51 to 56); accounting policies 
(pages 81 to 88); and note 17 of the 
consolidated financial statements 
(pages 96 to 103).

This is the largest estimate within 
the financial statements, prepared 
on an asset by asset basis for 4,603 
individual assets. The valuation is 
performed by a combination of 
internal and external appropriately 
qualified valuers (as described in note 
17). The valuation has been performed 
by third party independent valuers for 
94% of the valuation (by value) (2015: 
92%). 

The recently enacted legislation 
surrounding MRO (see page 18) 
and the potential macro-economic 
impact of Brexit, has increased the 
estimation uncertainty over the year 
end valuation.

There remains a risk that, as a result 
of individual assets being over 
valued, there is a material error in the 
valuation of the overall estate.

Valuation of the property estate 
was included wholly within that part 
of the audit subject to full scope 
procedures.

Our approach was to understand the valuation process 
and perform detailed testing.

We identified, documented and confirmed our 
understanding of the controls operated by the Group 
surrounding the valuation process.

We considered the trading and valuation trends in 
the UK pub market, together with the specific factors 
affecting the Group as noted in column 1, to develop our 
expectations.

We checked that the data provided to the internal and 
external valuers agreed to the underlying financial 
records. 

Together with our internal property valuation specialists, 
we met with the Group’s internal and external valuers to 
challenge the method adopted, the derivation of the key 
inputs of fair maintainable trade and earnings multiple 
(as described in note 17) and the nature and extent of 
the work they performed in preparing the valuations. 
We assessed the valuers conclusions regarding the 
potential impact of MRO and Brexit on the valuation of 
the property estate.

We sought explanations for the movement in the 
value of the estate as a whole, movement in the 
value of appropriate sub divisions of the estate, and 
where necessary, movement in the value of individual 
assets, satisfying ourselves that the explanations were 
consistent with our expectations.

In addition, these enquiries sought to ensure that 
for assets moving across operating segments, such 
properties continued to be valued on the basis of 
highest and best use, and where appropriate, reflect the 
changing income streams.

In order to select a sample focused on those asset 
valuations we considered to be most at risk of 
misstatement, we analysed features including the trading 
performance of the individual asset and the nature of 
the rent agreement. Utilising bespoke analytics over 
the whole estate, sorted by valuer, we highlighted 
those classes of assets, or individual assets, where 
the movement in value was inconsistent with our 
expectations. From this analysis, we selected a sample 
of 91 asset valuations which were representative of the 
movements in value that were inconsistent with our 
expectations. For our sample, we obtained explanations 
for movements identified from the internal and external 
valuers. We agreed changes in factual circumstances to 
relevant documentation.

The valuers had 
adopted an approach 
to the valuation of 
the estate which 
was appropriate, 
consistent, and in 
accordance with 
applicable guidance. 

The result of the 
estate valuation was 
suitable for inclusion 
in the financial 
statements.
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Risk Our response to the risk

Key observations 
communicated to the 
Audit Committee

Failure to impair goodwill when 
required

Refer to the Audit Committee report 
(pages 51 to 56); accounting policies 
(pages 81 to 88); and note 15 of the 
consolidated financial statements 
(pages 94 to 95).

As discussed in note 15 the Group 
has five operating segments 
(2015: five). There continues to be 
a requirement for the Group to 
allocate goodwill between operating 
segments and test impairment for 
each segment.

The Group has goodwill with a total 
carrying value of £321m (2015: 
£330m) of which £296m relates to 
the leased and tenanted estate (2015: 
£315m). This is considered to be a 
risk area due to the sensitivity of the 
review to the key assumptions of 
discount rate and long term growth 
rate as described in note 15. 

As a result of the uncertainty over 
the potential impact of MRO and 
Brexit, we consider this risk to have 
increased compared to the prior year. 

Goodwill was included wholly within 
that part of the audit subject to full 
scope procedures.

  

We identified, documented and confirmed our 
understanding of the controls operated by the Group 
surrounding the goodwill allocation and impairment 
process.

We challenged the basis on which goodwill had been 
allocated to operating segments on a segment by 
segment basis.

We examined the reasonableness of the cash flow 
forecasts by testing the underlying models, including 
analysis of the underlying assumptions, and by reference 
to the accuracy of previous forecasts and underlying 
assumptions. 

The reasonableness of the key assumptions of 
discount rate and long term growth rate underlying the 
goodwill impairment review were challenged through a 
combination of testing the Group’s detailed calculations, 
benchmarking the output against comparator companies 
and, in respect of the discount rate assumption, an 
independent assessment by our specialists based on 
general market indicators. 

  

The allocation of 
goodwill to operating 
segments was 
appropriate and 
in line with the 
requirements of 
IAS 36.

The discount rate 
assumption for the 
leased and tenanted 
estate, although 
at the low end of 
our range, was 
acceptable.

The assumption for 
long-term growth 
rate was consistent 
with comparator 
groups and 
reasonable.
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Risk Our response to the risk

Key observations 
communicated to the 
Audit Committee

Deferred tax on the revaluation  
of the estate

Refer to the Audit Committee report 
(pages 51 to 56); accounting policies 
(pages 81 to 88); and note 27 of the 
consolidated financial statements 
(pages 117 to 118).

The calculation of the deferred tax 
liability associated with the valuation 
of the estate is complex, involving the 
interaction of accounting standards 
and multiple elements of tax 
legislation. 

This element of the deferred tax 
provision, which totals £146m 
(2015: £177m), has to be calculated 
in respect of circa 4,600 individual 
assets using a bespoke tax model.

The deferred tax is wholly within the 
components subject to full scope 
audits.

We consider the risk to remain 
consistent with the prior period 
given there have been no changes in 
accounting and tax regulations. 

  

We identified, documented and confirmed our 
understanding of the controls operated by the Group 
surrounding the recognition of the deferred tax liability 
arising on the valuation of the estate.

We selected a sample of 72 assets across the estate.
With support from our tax specialists, we re-performed 
the calculation of deferred tax to validate the integrity of 
the model utilised by the Group to calculate deferred tax 
on the estate valuation. 

We reperformed the overall proof of tax prepared by 
management on a performance statement basis and 
compared movements in the year with our expectations. 
We investigated representative assets to validate the 
movement.

 

 
The process for 
deriving the deferred 
tax liability in 
respect of the estate 
held at valuation 
has resulted in 
provisions which are 
fairly stated.

In the prior year, we also included going concern as a risk of material misstatement. Since the prior year, the Group has 
amended key terms of its securitised debt and has refinanced £250m of its 2018 corporate bond. We consider the risk 
of material misstatement in respect of the going concern assumption to be reduced such that it is no longer an area 
that has the greatest effect on our overall audit strategy, the allocation of resources in the audit and the direction of the 
efforts of the audit team. 

Revenue recognition and the risk of fraud arising from management override in internal controls, being significant risks 
prescribed by ISAs, are not included above, as they were not areas of greatest audit effort. In addition, failure to correctly 
account for the terms of new contractual arrangements for wet products entered into during the current year, being 
identified as a new significant risk for the year, is not included in the above as this too was not an area of greatest audit 
effort.

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion:

• the part of the directors’ remuneration report to be audited has been properly prepared in accordance with the 
Companies Act 2006; and

• the information given in the strategic report and the directors’ report for the financial year for which the financial 
statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements.
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Matters on which we are required to report by exception

ISAs (UK and 
Ireland) reporting

We are required to report to you if, in our opinion, financial and non-financial 
information in the annual report and accounts is: 

• materially inconsistent with the information in the audited financial 
statements; or 

• apparently materially incorrect based on, or materially inconsistent with, our 
knowledge of the Group acquired in the course of performing our audit; or 

• otherwise misleading. 

In particular, we are required to report whether we have identified any 
inconsistencies between our knowledge acquired in the course of performing 
the audit and the directors’ statement that they consider the annual report and 
accounts taken as a whole is fair, balanced and understandable and provides 
the information necessary for shareholders to assess the Group’s performance, 
business model and strategy; and whether the annual report and accounts 
appropriately addresses those matters that we communicated to the Audit 
Committee which we consider should have been disclosed.

We have no 
exceptions to 
report.

Companies Act 
2006 reporting

We are required to report to you if, in our opinion:

• adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Parent Company, 
or returns adequate for our audit have not been received from branches not 
visited by us; or

• the Parent Company financial statements and the part of the directors’ 
remuneration report to be audited are not in agreement with the accounting 
records and returns; or

• certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; 
or

• we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our 
audit.

We have no 
exceptions to 
report.

Listing 
Rules review 
requirements

We are required to review:

• the directors’ statement in relation to going concern, set out on page 38, and 
longer term viability, set out on page 38; and

• the part of the Governance report relating to the Company’s compliance with 
those provisions of the UK Corporate Governance Code specified for our 
review.

We have no 
exceptions to 
report.
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Statement on the directors’ assessment of the principal risks that would threaten 
the solvency or liquidity of the Group
In accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) we are required to give a statement as to 
whether we have anything material to add or to draw attention to in relation to:

• the directors’ confirmation in the Annual Report and Accounts that they have carried out a robust assessment of the 
principal risks facing the Group, including those that would threaten its business model, future performance, solvency 
or liquidity;

• the disclosures in the Annual Report and Accounts that describe those risks and explain how they are being managed 
or mitigated;

• the directors’ statement in the financial statements about whether they considered it appropriate to adopt the 
going concern basis of accounting in preparing them, and their identification of any material uncertainties to the 
Group’s ability to continue to do so over a period of at least twelve months from the date of approval of the financial 
statements; and

• the directors’ explanation in the Annual Report and Accounts as to how they have assessed the prospects of the 
Group, over what period they have done so and why they consider that period to be appropriate, and their statement 
as to whether they have a reasonable expectation that the Group will be able to continue in operation and meet its 
liabilities as they fall due over the period of their assessment, including any related disclosures drawing attention to 
any necessary qualifications or assumptions.

We have nothing material to add or to draw attention to.

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditor 
As explained more fully in the directors’ responsibilities statement set out on page 73, the directors are responsible for 
the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view. Our responsibility 
is to audit and express an opinion on the Group financial statements in accordance with applicable law and International 
Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board’s Ethical 
Standards for Auditors.

This report is made solely to the Company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the 
Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company’s members those 
matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted 
by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the Company’s members as a 
body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Christopher Voogd (Senior statutory auditor) 
for and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP, Statutory Auditor Birmingham
14 November 2016

Notes:

1.  The maintenance and integrity of the Enterprise Inns plc web site is the responsibility of the directors; the work carried out by the auditors does not 
involve consideration of these matters and, accordingly, the auditors accept no responsibility for any changes that may have occurred to the financial 
statements since they were initially presented on the web site.

2. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.
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Five year record
year ended 30 September 2016

Analysis of ordinary shareholders
at 30 September 2016

Range
No. of 

shareholders % Shares held %

1 – 1,000 483 32.88% 215,765 0.04%

1,001 – 10,000 559 38.05% 2,169,460 0.40%

10,001 – 50,000 183 12.46% 4,323,003 0.79%

50,001 – 100,000 53 3.61% 3,960,649 0.73%

100,001 – 150,000 21 1.43% 2,537,968 0.47%

150,001 – 500,000 69 4.70% 19,889,697 3.65%

500,001 – 1,000,000 32 2.18% 23,895,814 4.38%

1,000,001 – 5,000,000 40 2.72% 79,848,345 14.64%

5,000,001 and over 29 1.97% 408,416,010 74.90%

  1,469 100% 545,256,711 100%

2016
£m

2015
£m

2014
£m

2013
£m

2012
£m

Revenue 632 625 632 639 692

Operating profit 273 279 273 296 322

Profit before tax and exceptional items 122 122 121 121 137

Profit/(loss) after tax 71 (65) 30 (4) 44

Adjusted earnings per share (pence) 19.6 19.4 19.0 19.0 20.5

2016
£m

2015
£m

2014
£m

2013
£m

2012
£m

Non-current assets 3,963 4,006 4,185 4,303 4,629 

Current assets† 212 200 189 231 229 

Current liabilities (275) (255) (303) (328) (298)

Non-current liabilities (2,452) (2,605) (2,668) (2,804) (3,135)

Net assets 1,448 1,346 1,403 1,402 1,425 

† Includes non-current assets held for sale.

Enterprise Inns - AR2016 - Gov and Financials.indd   137 07/12/2016   14:21:21



24766.04    7 December 2016 1:54 PM    Proof 6

138 www.enterpriseinnsplc.com
Stock code: ETI

Notice of Annual  
General Meeting

This Notice is important and requires your immediate attention. If you are in any doubt about the action 
you should take, you should immediately consult your stockbroker, bank manager, solicitor, accountant or 
other independent adviser duly authorised under the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000.

The 2017 Annual General Meeting of Enterprise Inns plc (the “Company”) will be held at the offices of the 
Company, 3 Monkspath Hall Road, Solihull, West Midlands, B90 4SJ at 11.00 a.m. on 9 February 2017 for the 
following purposes:

Ordinary resolutions
To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolutions, which will be proposed as ordinary resolutions:

1. To receive the directors’ reports and the audited accounts for the year ended 30 September 2016 and the auditor’s 
report on the accounts.

2. To approve the directors’ remuneration report for the year ended 30 September 2016.

3. To re-elect Robert Walker as a director.

4. To re-elect Simon Townsend as a director.

5. To re-elect Neil Smith as a director.

6. To re-elect David Maloney as a director.

7. To re-elect Peter Baguley as a director.

8. To re-elect Adam Fowle as a director.

9.  To re-elect Marisa Cassoni as a director.

10. To re-appoint Ernst & Young LLP as auditor of the Company, to hold office until the conclusion of the next Annual 
General Meeting of the Company. 

11. To authorise the directors to determine Ernst & Young LLP’s remuneration as auditor of the Company.

12. That the directors be generally and unconditionally authorised pursuant to section 551 of the Companies Act 2006 
to exercise all the powers of the Company to allot shares in the Company and grant rights to subscribe for or to 
convert any security into shares in the Company (together “relevant securities”) up to an aggregate nominal amount 
of £8,162,942.62 comprising:

a. an aggregate nominal amount of £4,081,471.31 (whether in connection with the same offer or issue as under  
(b) below or otherwise); and

b. an aggregate nominal amount of £4,081,471.31, in the form of equity securities (within the meaning of section 
560(1) of the Companies Act 2006) in connection with an offer or issue by way of rights, open for acceptance 
for a period fixed by the directors, to holders of ordinary shares (other than the Company) on the register on 
any record date fixed by the directors in proportion (as nearly as may be) to the respective number of ordinary 
shares deemed to be held by them, subject to such exclusions or other arrangements as the directors may 
deem necessary or expedient in relation to fractional entitlements, legal or practical problems arising in any 
overseas territory, the requirements of any regulatory body or stock exchange or any other matter whatsoever.

This authority shall expire (unless renewed, varied or revoked by the Company in general meeting) on the earlier 
of fifteen months from the date this resolution is passed and the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting of 
the Company to be held in 2018, except that the Company may before such expiry make any offer or agreement 
which would or might require relevant securities to be allotted after such expiry and the directors may allot relevant 
securities pursuant to any such offer or agreement as if such authority had not expired.
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Special resolutions
To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolutions, which will be proposed as special resolutions:

13. That the directors be empowered pursuant to section 570 of the Companies Act 2006 to allot equity securities (as 
defined in section 560(1) of that Act) for cash pursuant to the general authority conferred on them by resolution 12 
above and/or to sell equity securities held as treasury shares for cash pursuant to section 727 of the Companies 
Act 2006, in each case as if section 561(1) of that Act did not apply to any such allotment or sale, provided that this 
power shall be limited to:

a. any such allotment and/or sale of equity securities in connection with an offer or issue by way of rights or other 
pre-emptive offer or issue, open for acceptance for a period fixed by the directors, to holders of ordinary shares 
(other than the Company) on the register on any record date fixed by the directors in proportion (as nearly as 
may be) to the respective number of ordinary shares deemed to be held by them, subject to such exclusions 
or other arrangements as the directors may deem necessary or expedient in relation to fractional entitlements, 
legal or practical problems arising in any overseas territory, the requirements of any regulatory body or stock 
exchange or any other matter whatsoever; and

b. any such allotment and/or sale, otherwise than pursuant to paragraph (a) above, of equity securities having, in 
the case of ordinary shares, an aggregate nominal value or, in the case of other equity securities, giving the right 
to subscribe for or convert into ordinary shares having an aggregate nominal value, not exceeding the sum of 
£612,220.70.

This authority shall expire, unless previously revoked or renewed by the Company in general meeting, at such time 
as the general authority conferred on the directors by resolution 12 above expires, except that the Company may 
at any time before such expiry make any offer or agreement which would or might require equity securities to be 
allotted or equity securities held as treasury shares to be sold after such expiry and the directors may allot equity 
securities and/or sell equity securities held as treasury shares in pursuance of such an offer or agreement as if the 
power conferred by this resolution had not expired.

14. That, in addition to any authority granted under resolution 13, the directors be empowered pursuant to section 570 
of the Companies Act 2006 to allot equity securities (as defined in section 560(1) of that Act) for cash pursuant to 
the general authority conferred on them by resolution 12 and/or to sell equity securities held as treasury shares for 
cash pursuant to section 727 of the Companies Act 2006, in each case as if section 561 of that Act did not apply to 
any such allotment or sale, provided that this power shall be:

a. limited to any such allotment and/or sale of equity securities having, in the case of ordinary shares, an aggregate 
nominal value or, in the case of other equity securities, giving the right to subscribe for or convert into ordinary 
shares having an aggregate nominal value, not exceeding the sum of £612,220.70; and

b. used only for the purposes of financing (or refinancing, if the authority is to be used within six months after the 
original transaction) a transaction which the directors determine to be an acquisition or other capital investment 
of a kind contemplated by the Statement of Principles on Disapplying Pre-Emption Rights most recently 
published by the Pre-Emption Group prior to the date of this Notice. 

This authority shall expire, unless previously revoked or renewed by the Company in general meeting, at such time 
as the general authority conferred on the directors by resolution 12 expires, except that the Company may before 
such expiry make any offer or agreement which would or might require equity securities to be allotted or equity 
securities held as treasury shares to be sold after such expiry and the directors may allot equity securities and/or sell 
equity securities held as treasury shares in pursuance of such an offer or agreement as if the power conferred by 
this resolution had not expired.
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15. To authorise the Company generally and unconditionally to make market purchases (as defined in section 693(4) of 
the Companies Act 2006) of its ordinary shares of 2½ pence each provided that in doing so it: 

a. purchases no more than 73,417,505 ordinary shares of 2½ pence each in aggregate; 

b. pays not less than 2½ pence (excluding expenses) per ordinary share of 2½ pence each; and

c. pays a price per share that is not more (excluding expenses) per ordinary share than the higher of: (i) 5% above 
the average of the middle market quotations for the ordinary shares as derived from the London Stock Exchange 
Daily Official List for the five business days immediately before the day on which it purchases that share; and 
(ii) the price stipulated by Article 3(2) of Delegated Regulation (EU) 2016/1052 of 8 March 2016 relating to the 
conditions applicable to buy-back programmes and stabilisation measures.

This authority shall expire fifteen months after the date of the passing of this resolution or, if earlier, at the 
conclusion of the Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held in 2018, except that the Company may, if it 
agrees to purchase ordinary shares under this authority before it expires, complete the purchase wholly or partly 
after this authority expires.

16. To authorise the directors to call a general meeting of the Company, other than an Annual General Meeting, on not 
less than 14 clear days’ notice.

The directors believe that the proposals in resolutions 1 to 16 are in the best interests of shareholders 
as a whole and they unanimously recommend that you vote in favour of all the resolutions.

On behalf of the Board

L Togher 
Company Secretary
6 December 2016

Registered office: 
3 Monkspath Hall Road 
Solihull 
West Midlands  
B90 4SJ

Registered in England and Wales No. 2562808
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Notes to the Notice of  
Annual General Meeting

1. A member who is an individual is entitled to attend, speak and vote at the meeting or to appoint one or more other 
persons as his proxy to exercise all or any of his rights on his behalf. Further details of how to appoint a proxy, and 
the rights of proxies, are given in the paragraphs below. A member that is a company can appoint one or more 
corporate representatives (such as a director or employee of the company) whose attendance at the meeting is 
treated as if the company were attending in person, or it can appoint one or more persons as its proxy to exercise 
all or any of its rights on its behalf. In each case, a person attending the meeting will need to provide the Company 
or its Registrars, Computershare Investor Services PLC, with evidence of their identity and, if applicable, their 
appointment as a proxy or corporate representative with authority to vote on behalf of a member. 

2. A shareholder may appoint more than one proxy in relation to the Annual General Meeting provided that each proxy 
is appointed to exercise the rights attached to a different share or shares held by that shareholder. A proxy need not 
be a shareholder of the Company. To appoint a proxy or proxies, shareholders must complete: (a) a form of proxy, 
sign it and return it, together with the power of attorney or other authority (if any) under which it is signed, or a 
notarially certified copy of such authority, to the Company’s Registrars, Computershare Investor Services PLC, The 
Pavilions, Bridgwater Road, Bristol, BS99 6ZY; or (b) a CREST Proxy Instruction (as set out in paragraph 11 below); 
or (c) an online proxy appointment at www.investorcentre.co.uk/eproxy (you will need to enter the Control Number, 
together with your unique PIN and Shareholder Reference Number printed on your personalised form of proxy), in 
each case so that it is received no later than 11.00 a.m. on 7 February 2017. To appoint more than one proxy, you will 
need to complete a separate proxy form in relation to each appointment. A personalised form of proxy for use in 
connection with the Annual General Meeting is enclosed with this document. If you do not have a personalised form 
of proxy and believe that you should, please contact the Company’s Registrars, Computershare Investor Services 
PLC, on 0370 889 4080 or at Computershare Investor Services PLC, The Pavilions, Bridgwater Road, Bristol, 
BS99 6ZY. 

3. You will need to state clearly on each proxy form the number of shares in relation to which the proxy is appointed. 
A failure to specify the number of shares each proxy appointment relates to, or specifying a number of shares in 
excess of those held by the member, will result in the proxy appointment being invalid.

4. The return of a completed proxy form, other such instrument or any CREST Proxy Instruction (as described in 
paragraph 11 below) will not prevent a shareholder attending the Annual General Meeting and voting in person if he/
she wishes to do so. 

5. In the case of joint holders, where more than one of the joint holders purports to appoint a proxy, only the 
appointment submitted by the most senior holder will be accepted. Seniority is determined by the order in which 
the names of the joint holders appear in the Company’s register of members in respect of the joint holding (the first-
named being the most senior).

6. Any person to whom this Notice is sent who is a person nominated under section 146 of the Companies Act 2006 
to enjoy information rights (a “Nominated Person”) may, under an agreement between him/her and the shareholder 
by whom he/she was nominated, have a right to be appointed (or to have someone else appointed) as a proxy 
for the Annual General Meeting. If a Nominated Person has no such proxy appointment right or does not wish to 
exercise it, he/she may, under any such agreement, have a right to give instructions to the shareholder as to the 
exercise of voting rights. 

7. The statement of the rights of shareholders in relation to the appointment of proxies in paragraphs 1, 2 and 3 
above does not apply to Nominated Persons. The rights described in these paragraphs can only be exercised by 
shareholders of the Company.

8. Pursuant to regulation 41 of the Uncertificated Securities Regulations 2001, the Company gives notice that only 
those shareholders included in the register of members of the Company at 6.30 p.m. on 7 February 2017 or, if the 
meeting is adjourned, in the register of members at 6.30 p.m. on the day which is two days before the day of any 
adjourned meeting, will be entitled to attend and to vote at the Annual General Meeting in respect of the number of 
shares registered in their names at that time. Changes to entries on the share register after 6.30 p.m. on 7 February 
2017, or, if the meeting is adjourned, in the register of members at 6.30 p.m. on the day which is two days before 
the day of any adjourned meeting, will be disregarded in determining the rights of any person to attend or vote at 
the Annual General Meeting.

9. As at 9.00 a.m. on 6 December 2016, the Company’s issued share capital comprised 539,776,557 ordinary shares 
of 2½ pence each. Each ordinary share carries the right to one vote at a general meeting of the Company and, 
therefore, the total number of voting rights in the Company as at 9.00 a.m. on 6 December 2016 is 539,776,557. 
After excluding treasury shares, which cannot be voted, the total number of voting rights in the Company as at 
9.00 a.m. on 6 December 2016 is 489,776,557.
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10. CREST members who wish to appoint a proxy or proxies through the CREST electronic proxy appointment service 
may do so for the Annual General Meeting and any adjournment(s) of the meeting by using the procedures 
described in the CREST Manual (available via www.euroclear.com/CREST). CREST personal members or other 
CREST sponsored members, and those CREST members who have appointed a service provider(s), should refer to 
their CREST sponsor or voting service provider(s), who will be able to take the appropriate action on their behalf.

11. In order for a proxy appointment or instruction made using the CREST service to be valid, the appropriate CREST 
message (a “CREST Proxy Instruction”) must be properly authenticated in accordance with Euroclear UK & Ireland 
Limited’s specifications, and must contain the information required for such instruction, as described in the CREST 
Manual. The message, regardless of whether it constitutes the appointment of a proxy or is an amendment to the 
instruction given to a previously appointed proxy must, in order to be valid, be transmitted so as to be received 
by the Company’s agent (ID 3RA50), by the latest time for receipt of proxy appointments set out in paragraph 2 
above. For this purpose, the time of receipt will be taken to be the time (as determined by the timestamp applied 
to the message by the CREST Applications Host) from which the Company’s agent is able to retrieve the message 
by enquiry to CREST in the manner prescribed by CREST. After this time, any change of instructions to proxies 
appointed through CREST should be communicated to the appointee through other means.

12. CREST members and, where applicable, their CREST sponsors or voting service providers, should note that 
Euroclear UK & Ireland Limited does not make available special procedures in CREST for any particular messages. 
Normal system timings and limitations will, therefore, apply in relation to the input of CREST Proxy Instructions. It is 
the responsibility of the CREST member concerned to take (or, if the CREST member is a CREST personal member, 
or sponsored member, or has appointed any voting service provider(s), to procure that his CREST sponsor or voting 
service provider(s) take(s)) such action as shall be necessary to ensure that a message is transmitted by means of 
the CREST system by any particular time. In this connection, CREST members and, where applicable, their CREST 
sponsors or voting service providers are referred, in particular, to those sections of the CREST Manual concerning 
practical limitations of the CREST system and timings.

13. Under section 527 of the Companies Act 2006, members meeting the threshold requirements set out in that 
section have the right to require the Company to publish on a website a statement setting out any matter relating 
to: (i) the audit of the Company’s accounts (including the auditor’s report and the conduct of the audit) that are to 
be laid before the Annual General Meeting; or (ii) any circumstance connected with an auditor of the Company 
ceasing to hold office since the previous meeting at which annual accounts and reports were laid in accordance 
with section 437 of the Companies Act 2006. The Company may not require the shareholders requesting any such 
website publication to pay its expenses in complying with sections 527 or 528 of the Companies Act 2006. Where 
the Company is required to place a statement on a website under section 527 of the Companies Act 2006, it must 
forward the statement to the Company’s auditor not later than the time when it makes the statement available on 
the website. The business which may be dealt with at the Annual General Meeting includes any statement that the 
Company has been required under section 527 of the Companies Act 2006 to publish on a website.

14. Any member attending the meeting has the right to ask questions. The Company must answer any such question 
relating to the business being dealt with at the meeting but no such answer need be given if: (a) to do so would 
interfere unduly with the preparation for the meeting or involve the disclosure of confidential information; (b) the 
answer has already been given on a website in the form of an answer to a question; or (c) it is undesirable in the 
interests of the Company or the good order of the meeting that the question be answered.

15. If you have sold or otherwise transferred all your ordinary shares in the Company, please forward this Annual Report 
and Accounts to the purchaser or transferee or to the stockbroker, bank or other person through whom the sale or 
transfer was effected for transmission to the purchaser or transferee.

16. The service agreements of the executive directors and copies of the letters of appointment of the non-executive 
directors are available for inspection during normal business hours on any weekday (excluding Saturdays, Sundays 
and public holidays) at the registered office of the Company and will be available for inspection for fifteen minutes 
prior to and during the Annual General Meeting.

17. You may not use any electronic address provided in this Notice, or any related documents including the proxy form, 
to communicate with the Company for any purposes other than those expressly stated.

18. A copy of this Notice, and other information required by section 311A of the Companies Act 2006, can be found at 
www.enterpriseinnsplc.com.
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Explanatory Notes to the Notice of 
Annual General Meeting

The Notice of the Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on 9 February 2017 is set out on pages 138 to 140 
of the Annual Report and Accounts. The following notes provide an explanation as to why the resolutions set out in the 
Notice are to be put to shareholders.

Resolutions 1 to 12 are ordinary resolutions. These resolutions will be passed if more than 50% of the votes cast for or 
against are in favour.

Resolution 1 — Laying of accounts
The directors are required by the Companies Act 2006 to present to the shareholders of the Company at a general meeting the reports 
of the directors and auditor, and the audited accounts of the Company, for the year ended 30 September 2016. The reports of the 
directors and the audited accounts have been approved by the directors, and the report of the auditor has been approved by the auditor, 
and a copy of each of these documents may be found in the Annual Report and Accounts. 

Resolution 2 — Directors’ remuneration report 
The Companies Act 2006 requires the Company to seek shareholder approval of the annual remuneration report on an annual basis. This 
is sought in resolution 2.

The Companies Act 2006 also now requires the Company to have received shareholder approval of a remuneration policy for its 
directors. This is a binding policy and, after it takes effect, the directors will not be entitled to remuneration unless such remuneration 
is consistent with the approved policy from time to time or shareholders otherwise approve the remuneration. The Company obtained 
shareholder approval for a policy at its AGM in February 2016 and do not expect to seek fresh approval from its shareholders for its 
policy until its AGM in 2019.

Resolutions 3–9 — Re-election of directors
In accordance with the UK Corporate Governance Code, all of the directors of the Company will stand for re-election. Biographical 
information for the directors is shown on pages 44 and 45 of the Annual Report and Accounts. Details of why the Board believes that 
the relevant directors should be re-elected are included in the governance report in the Annual Report and Accounts, starting at  
page 46.

Resolution 10 — Auditor’s re-appointment 
The Companies Act 2006 requires that an auditor is appointed at each general meeting at which accounts are laid, to hold office until 
the next such meeting. The resolution seeks shareholder approval for the re-appointment of Ernst & Young LLP. The Audit Committee 
keeps under review the independence and objectivity of the external auditor, further information on which can be found in the Annual 
Report and Accounts on pages 51 to 56. After considering relevant information, the Audit Committee recommended to the Board that 
Ernst & Young LLP be re-appointed.

Resolution 11 — Auditor’s remuneration
This resolution gives the directors the authority to determine the remuneration of the auditor for the audit work to be carried out by 
them in the next financial year. The amount of the remuneration paid to the auditor for the next financial year will be disclosed in the 
next audited accounts of the Company.

Resolution 12 — Authority to the directors to allot shares
The Companies Act 2006 provides that the directors may only allot shares if authorised by shareholders to do so. Resolution 12 will, if 
passed, authorise the directors to allot shares and to grant rights to subscribe for, or convert securities into, shares up to a maximum 
nominal amount of £8,162,942.62 which represents an amount which is approximately equal to two-thirds of the issued ordinary 
share capital of the Company as at 6 December 2016 (excluding treasury shares), the latest practicable date prior to the publication 
of the Notice. The Company did not issue any shares during the period under review but, pursuant to the terms of convertible bonds 
previously issued by a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, it has agreed to issue up to 50,800,000 shares on conversion of the 
bonds.

As provided in paragraph (a) of the resolution, up to half of this authority (equal to one-third of the issued ordinary share capital of 
the Company) will enable the directors to allot and issue new shares in whatever manner (subject to pre-emption rights) they see fit. 
Paragraph (b) of the resolution provides that the remainder of the authority (equal to a further one-third of the issued ordinary share 
capital of the Company) may only be used in connection with a rights issue in favour of ordinary shareholders. As paragraph (a) imposes 
no restrictions on the way the authority may be exercised, it could be used in conjunction with paragraph (b) so as to enable the whole 
two-thirds authority to be used in connection with a rights issue.

The authority will expire at the earlier of the date that is fifteen months after the date of the passing of the resolution and the conclusion 
of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company.

Passing resolution 12 will ensure that the directors continue to have the flexibility to act in the best interests of shareholders, when 
opportunities arise, by issuing new shares. There are no current plans to issue new shares except in connection with employee share 
schemes and on conversion of the bonds.

Enterprise Inns - AR2016 - Gov and Financials.indd   143 07/12/2016   14:21:22



24766.04    7 December 2016 1:54 PM    Proof 6

144 www.enterpriseinnsplc.com
Stock code: ETI

Explanatory Notes to the Notice of 
Annual General Meeting

As at 6 December 2016, the latest practicable date prior to the publication of the Notice, the Company had 539,776,557 ordinary shares 
of 2½ pence each in issue and held 50,000,000 treasury shares, which is equal to approximately 10.21% of the issued share capital of 
the Company (excluding treasury shares) as at that date.

Resolutions 13–16 are special resolutions. These resolutions will be passed if not less than 75% of the votes cast for or against are in 
favour.

Resolutions 13 and 14 — Disapplication of statutory pre-emption rights
The Companies Act 2006 prescribes certain pre-emption rights under which, if the Company issues new shares, or grants rights 
to subscribe for or to convert any security into shares, for cash or sells any treasury shares, it must first offer them to existing 
shareholders in proportion to their current holdings. 

Under Resolution 13, it is proposed that the directors be authorised to issue shares for cash and/or sell shares from treasury without 
offering them first to existing shareholders in proportion to their current holdings:

i. up to an aggregate nominal value of £612,220.70 (up to 24,488,827 new ordinary shares of 2.5 pence each). This amount 
represents approximately 5% of the Company’s issued share capital (excluding shares held in treasury) as at 6 December 2016, 
the latest practicable date prior to the publication of the Notice. This part of the authority is designed to provide the directors with 
flexibility to raise further equity funding and to pursue acquisition opportunities as and when they may arise; or

ii. in respect of a rights issue, open offer or other offer that generally provides existing shareholders with the opportunity to subscribe 
for new shares pro rata to their existing holdings. This part of the authority is designed to give the Directors flexibility to exclude 
certain shareholders from such an offer where the directors consider it necessary or desirable to do so in order to avoid legal, 
regulatory or practical problems that would otherwise arise. 

Under Resolution 14, it is proposed that the directors be authorised to disapply statutory pre-emption rights in respect of an additional 
5% of the Company’s issued share capital (as at 6 December 2016, the latest practicable date prior to the publication of the Notice, and 
excluding shares held in treasury). In accordance with the Pre-Emption Group’s Principles, the directors confirm that this authority will 
be used only in connection with an acquisition or specified capital investment that is announced contemporaneously with the issue, or 
that has taken place in the preceding six-month period and is disclosed in the announcement of the issue.

If passed, the authorities in Resolution 13 and Resolution 14 will expire at the same time as the authority to allot shares given pursuant 
to Resolution 12.

Excluding any shares issued in connection with an acquisition or specified capital investment as described above, the directors do not 
intend to issue more than 7.5% of the issued share capital on a non-pre-emptive basis in any rolling three-year period.

Resolution 15 — Purchase of own shares by the Company
If passed, this resolution will grant the Company authority for a period of up to fifteen months after the date of passing of the resolution 
to buy its own shares in the market. The resolution limits the number of shares that may be purchased to 14.99% of the Company’s 
issued share capital (excluding treasury shares) as at 6 December 2016, the latest practicable date prior to the publication of the Notice. 
The price per ordinary share that the Company may pay is set at a minimum amount (excluding expenses) of 2½ pence per ordinary 
share and a maximum amount (excluding expenses) of the higher of: (i) 5% over the average of the previous five business days’ middle 
market prices; and (ii) the higher of the price of the last independent trade and the highest current independent bid on the trading venue 
where the purchase is carried out. This authority will only be exercised if market conditions make it advantageous to do so.

The directors’ present intention is that shares purchased pursuant to this authority will be cancelled immediately on purchase. 
Alternatively, the shares may be held in treasury, sold for cash or (provided Listing Rule requirements are met) transferred to an 
employees’ share scheme. The effect of any cancellation would be to reduce the number of shares in issue. For most purposes, 
while held in treasury, shares are treated as if they have been cancelled (for example, they carry no voting rights and do not rank for 
dividends). The directors will only make purchases under this authority if they believe that the effect of such purchases (where such 
shares are purchased for cancellation) would result in increased earnings per share, and would be in the interests of the shareholders 
generally.

As at 6 December 2016, the latest practicable date prior to the publication of the Notice, the total number of options to subscribe for 
ordinary shares of 2½ pence each in the Company was 6,628,470, representing approximately 1.35% of the issued share capital of 
the Company (excluding treasury shares) at that date. If the proposed market purchase authority were to be used in full and all of the 
repurchased ordinary shares were cancelled (but the Company’s issued share capital otherwise remained unaltered), the total number 
of options to subscribe for ordinary shares at that date would represent approximately 1.59% of the Company’s issued share capital 
(excluding treasury shares).

Resolution 16 — Approving the notice period for General Meetings
In order to maintain its ability to call general meetings (other than an Annual General Meeting) on 14 clear days’ notice, the Company 
must offer all shareholders the ability to appoint a proxy electronically (via the website of the Company or its Registrars) and must 
obtain the approval of its shareholders by means of a special resolution passed each year. Resolution 16 seeks such approval. It is 
intended that a similar resolution will be proposed at future Annual General Meetings.
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Shareholder information

Annual General Meeting
Will be held at 11.00 a.m. on Thursday 9 February 2017 at 
3 Monkspath Hall Road, Solihull, West Midlands, B90 4SJ.

Financial calendar
Trading update – 9 February 2017 
Interim results announcement – 16 May 2017 
Annual results announcement – 21 November 2017 
Annual General Meeting – 8 February 2018

Shareholder enquiries
Enquiries relating to shareholdings should be made to the 
Company’s Registrars, Computershare Investor Services 
PLC. If you have a query regarding your shareholding 
please contact them direct by using the dedicated 
telephone enquiry line 0870 889 4080. You can also  
use the Registrar’s website to check and maintain  
your records. Details can be found at  
www-uk.computershare.com/investor.

Computershare Investor Services PLC 
The Pavilions 
Bridgwater Road 
Bristol 
BS99 6ZZ

Electronic communications
The Company has introduced innovative ways of 
communicating to shareholders electronically via eTree,  
an environmental incentive programme. For full 
details and to register to receive future communications 
electronically please visit  
www.investorcentre.co.uk/ecomms/enterpriseinns.

Share dealing service
The Registrars offer a share dealing service which allows 
you to buy and sell the Company’s shares if you are a UK 
resident. You can deal in your shares on the internet or by 
telephone. Log onto www.computershare.com/dealing/uk 
or call 0870 703 0084 for more details on this service.

ShareGift
If you only have a small number of shares whose value 
makes it difficult to sell, you may wish to consider 
donating to charity through ShareGift, an independent 
charity share donation scheme. For further details please 
contact Computershare or ShareGift, telephone  
+44 (0) 20 7930 3737 or visit www.sharegift.org. 

Share price information
The Company’s ordinary shares are listed on the London 
Stock Exchange. Share price information can be found on 
the website www.enterpriseinnsplc.com or through your 
broker.

ISIN Number: GB00B1L8B624 
SEDOL Number: B1L8B62 
EPIC Number: ETI

Registered office
If you would like to contact us:

Enterprise Inns plc 
3 Monkspath Hall Road 
Solihull 
West Midlands 
B90 4SJ

Telephone: 0121 272 5000 
Email: investorrelations@enterpriseinns.com

Company number
2562808

Advisers:
Auditor
Ernst & Young LLP, No. 1 Colmore Square, Birmingham 
B4 6HQ

Banker
Lloyds Bank plc, 33 Old Broad Street, London EC2N 1HZ

stockbrokers
Deutsche Bank AG, London Branch, Winchester House, 
1 Great Winchester Street, London EC2N 2DB

Barclays Bank plc, 5 The North Colonnade, Canary Wharf, 
London E14 4BB

solicitor
CMS Cameron McKenna LLP, Cannon Place, 78 Cannon 
Street, London EC4N 6AF

financial public relations
Tulchan Communications Group Ltd, 85 Fleet Street, 
London EC4Y 1AE
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Enterprise Inns plc
3 Monkspath Hall Road 
Solihull 
West Midlands 
B90 4SJ

Tel: +44 (0) 121 272 5000 
www.enterpriseinnsplc.com
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